Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
CSING

22 February 2013

Tracy Waters 01352 702331
tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL will be held in the COUNCIL
CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on FRIDAY, 1ST MARCH, 2013 at
2.00 PM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

[ P—

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interests from Members.
4  COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on the 29
January, 2013 (copy enclosed).

5 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS
PETITIONS

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

11

12

13

14

15

NOTICE OF MOTION
QUESTIONS

To note the answers to any questions submitted in accordance with County
Council Standing Order No. 9.4(A).

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14 (Pages 15 - 76)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL TAX SETTING FOR 2013-14 (Pages 77 - 90)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 - 2022/23 (Pages 91 -
130)

Joint report of Head of Finance, Chief Executive and Director of Environment
enclosed.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY & STRATEGY STATEMENT 2013/14
(Pages 131 - 198)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2013/14 - 2015/16 (Pages 199 - 208)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2013/14 (Pages 209 - 216)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT (Pages 217 - 234)

Report of Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
enclosed.




Agenda Item 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
29 JANUARY 2013

Minutes of the Meeting of Flintshire County Council held in the Council
Chamber, County Hall, Mold on Tuesday 29 January 2013

PRESENT: Councillor A. Minshull (Chair)

Councillors: L.A. Aldridge, J.B. Attridge, G. Banks, G.H. Bateman, M.
Bateman, R.C. Bithell, A. Bragg, H. Brown, D. Butler, C.S. Carver, D.L. Cox,
P.J. Curtis, R. Davies, A. Davies-Cooke, C.J. Dolphin, R. Dolphin, I. Dunbar,
C.A. Ellis, E.F. Evans, J.E. Falshaw, V. Gay, R.J.T. Guest, A.M. Halford, G.
Hardcastle, P.G. Heesom, R. Hughes, H.D. Hutchinson, H.T. Isherwood, J.
Johnson, C.M. Jones, R.B. Jones, R.K. Jones, S. Jones, C. Legg, B. Lloyd,
R. Lloyd, M. Lowe, R.P. Macfarlane, D.l. Mackie, N.M. Matthews, W. Mullin, T.
Newhouse, M.J. Peers, N. Phillips, M.A. Reece, H.G. Roberts, L.A. Sharps,
A.P. Shotton, P. Shotton, N.R. Steele-Mortimer, C.A. Thomas, W.O. Thomas,
S. Williams, D.E. Wisinger, A. Woolley and M.G. Wright

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: G.D. Diskin, A. Diskin, B. Dunn, D. Evans, C. Hinds, H.T.
Howorth, P. Lightfoot, H.J. McGuill, I.B. Roberts, I. Smith and D.T. Williams

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Director of Community Services, Director of Environment,
Director of Lifelong Learning, Head of Finance, Head of Legal and Democratic
Services, Head of Customer Services and ICT, Head of Planning, Interim
Benefits Manager and Committee Officers

101. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The Chair confirmed that no questions had been received.

102. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following Members declared a personal interest in agenda item
number 14 — Annual Report for 2013/14 of the Independent Remuneration
Panel for Wales as they were in receipt of a Member’s Allowance:-

Councillors: L.A. Aldridge, J.B. Attridge, G. Banks, G.H. Bateman, M.
Bateman, R.C. Bithell, A. Bragg, H. Brown, D. Butler, C.S. Carver, D.L. Cox,
P.J. Curtis, R. Davies, A. Davies-Cooke, C.J. Dolphin, R. Dolphin, |I. Dunbair,
C.A. Ellis, E.F. Evans, J.E. Falshaw, V. Gay, R.J.T. Guest, A.M. Halford, G.
Hardcastle, R. Hughes, H.D. Hutchinson, H.T. Isherwood, J. Johnson, C.M.
Jones, R.B. Jones, R.K. Jones, S. Jones, C. Legg, B. Lloyd, R. Lloyd, M.
Lowe, R.P. Macfarlane, D.l. Mackie, N.M. Matthews, A. Minshull, W. Mullin, T.
Newhouse, M.J. Peers, N. Phillips, M.A. Reece, H.G. Roberts, L.A. Sharps,
A.P. Shotton, P. Shotton, N.R. Steele-Mortimer, C.A. Thomas, W.O. Thomas,
S. Williams, D.E. Wisinger, A. Woolley and M.G. Wright

Page 1



103.

104.

Councillor D. Butler declared a personal interest in agenda item
number 12 — Service Review Decisions of the Betsi Cadwaladr University
Health Board (BCUHB) as his wife was employed by BCUHB.

COUNCIL MINUTES

25 October 2012

Councillor M.J. Peers referred to the sixth paragraph on page 6 of the
minutes and asked that the words’ North East England’ be replaced with the
words ‘North West England’.

Councillor M.G. Wright said that page 7 of the minutes did not
accurately reflect his comments. He said that the concerns he had raised had
been around General Practitioners reluctance to transfer patients across the
border to England as they were unsure whether payment for any treatment
provided would be received. He also asked the Leader of the Council whether
he had sought a meeting with the Minister for Health and Social Services to
outline Flintshire County Council’s concerns.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, Leader of the Council, responded that reasons
why he had not met with the Minister for Health and Social Services would be
explained later on in the meeting during consideration of agenda item 12.

Councillor R.B. Jones referred to page 10 of the minutes and explained
that his concerns had been around how regional collaboration projects should
be reviewed by Overview & Scrutiny and how this should be approached.

Councillor Shotton shared the concerns of Councillor Jones and said
that there was a need for a mechanism to be agreed on how regional
collaboration projects were scrutinised. He suggested that this could be
achieved through an agreed approach with all Overview & Scrutiny Chair’s
and said that he would raise it during the next meeting of Group Leaders.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the amendments listed above, the minutes be approved as a
correct record and singed by the Chair.

CHAIR’S COMMUNICATIONS

A copy of the Chair's communication had been circulated to all
Members before the meeting.

The Chair commented on the number of schools visits she had carried
out together with the number of school children who had visited her at County
Hall. She also thanked the Vice-Chair for attending a number of functions on
her behalf due to unforeseen changes in her own personal circumstances.

Page 2



105.

106.

Councillor H.D. Hutchinson praised the work of the Director of
Environment and the Highways Gritting Team for their work during the recent
bad weather. He said that he had been contacted by a local business,
Scania, who had asked that their thanks also be passed to the team for
keeping the roads throughout Flintshire clear.

Councillor J.B. Attridge, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment thanked Councillor Hutchinson for his comments and said that
he had received a number of letters and e-mails from members of the public
praising the work of the Highways Gritting Team. The thanks of Members and
members of the public would be passed to the team.

PETITIONS

Councillor R. Lloyd submitted a petition on behalf of Owen Butler aged
11, requesting a skate park located centrally in the Saltney area.

NOTICES OF MOTION

The following Notices of Motion has been received from Councillors: A.
Bragg, C.S. Carver, C.J. Dolphin, R. Dolphin, R.J.T. Guest, N.M. Matthews,
H.J. McGuill and N. Phillips:-

(i) Statement of Accounts — Councillor C.S. Carver

The following Notice of Motion had been submitted by Councillor C.S.
Carver:-

“In the interests of openness and transparency, this Motion calls for the
Council to publish a separate supplementary report to coincide with and
accompany the presentation to Council of Annual Statement of Accounts.

This supplementary report to contain in the same style and presentation as
the existing Senior Employee Emoluments — Salary over £150,000 per year
and Salary over £60,000 per year, the same financial information for all the
non schools individuals listed in the table which shows remuneration of
£60,000 or more per year”.

Councillor Carver formally proposed the motion and this was duly
seconded.

In speaking to his motion, Councillor Carver commented on the
Statement of Accounts 2011/12 which was presented to the County Council
on the 25 September 2012 and detailed officers’ remuneration. He reported
that following the County Council meetings he had received information on
officer posts where their salary had been between £60,000 and £150,000 and
that this figure had been 21. This information had not been shown in the
Statement of Accounts as 14 of the posts did not fall into the category of
Senior Officer and the remaining 7 post were non-permanent. He explained
that the notice of motion was seeking the creation of a supplementary report

Page 3



in future to coincide with and accompany the presentation to Council of the
Annual Statement of Accounts.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, Leader of the Council thanked Councillor
Carver for the notice of motion and explained that the Statement of Accounts
for 2011/12 had been presented in line with the guidelines of the Wales Audit
Office. He said that the information requested was available to Members and
supported providing this information as a supplementary report in future.

In response to a question from Councillor Shotton, the Head of Finance
confirmed that the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 presented to the County
Council meeting held on the 25 September, 2012 had included more
information than was expected of the Council to report. The information
requested by Councillor Carver could be provided in future years.

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised Councillor Carver
not to identify those officers whose salaries had not been included within the
Statement of Accounts 2011/12. They would be advised that this information
would be provided alongside future reports.

In summing up, Councillor Carver asked the Council to support his
notice of motion and said that he was happy to provide details salaries of
officers not contained within the Statement of Accounts 2011/12 to Members
following the meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Council publish a separate supplementary report to coincide with and
accompany the presentation to Council of the Annual Statement of Accounts.
This supplementary report to contain in the same style and presentation as
the existing Senior Employee Emoluments — Salary over £150,000 per year
and Salary over £60,000 per year, the same financial information for all the
non schools individuals listed in the table which shows remuneration of
£60,000 or more per year.

(ii) Switching Energy Scheme — Councillors: A. Braqgg, C.J. Dolphin,
R. Dolphin, R.J.T. Guest, N.M. Matthews, H.J. McGuill and N.

Phillips

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted by Councillors: A.
Bragg, C.J. Dolphin, R. Dolphin, R.J.T. Guest, N.M. Matthews, H.J. McGuill
and N. Phillips:-

“Council notes:
1. The relentless increase in domestic energy costs and the
consequence similar increase in instances of foul poverty in Flintshire.

2. The Switching Energy Scheme operated by South Lakeland District
Council for the benefit of residents of that Council.

Page 4



Accordingly, Council requests the Director of Environment to investigate the
advantages and disadvantages of introducing a similar scheme in Flintshire
and to bring a report to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee as
soon as practical”.

Councillor C.J. Dolphin formally proposed the motion and this was duly
seconded.

In speaking to his motion, Councillor Dolphin said that the motion
provided an opportunity for the Council to work together and assist residents
of Flintshire in targeting increasing domestic energy costs. He highlighted the
Switching Energy Scheme operated by South Lakeland District Council which
had assisted more than 1600 residents financially through a grant from
National Government. The motion was seeking the Director of Environment to
investigate the advantages and disadvantages of introducing a similar scheme
which could be introduced in collaboration with neighbouring North Wales
Authorities. Councillor Dolphin urged the Council to support the motion.

Councillor J.B. Attridge, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment thanked the signatories for the notice of motion and reported that
he had asked the Director of Environment to submit a report, as soon as
practically possible, to the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee,
detailing the advantages and disadvantages of introducing a similar scheme.

Councillor M.G. Wright, Chairman of the Environment Overview &
Scrutiny Committee spoke in support of the notice of motion and welcomed a
report being submitted to the Committee in due course.

Councillor H.T. Isherwood asked if a similar scheme was introduced by
the Council could the VAT on domestic energy costs be re-claimed. The
Head of Finance confirmed that she would provide a response on this matter
following the meeting.

In seconding the motion, Councillor R.J.T. Guest reported that more
than five million households were currently benefiting from the introduction of
such schemes across England and Wales with more than 25 Local Authorities
introducing or in the process of introducing a variety of schemes since June,
2012.

Councillor R.B. Jones spoke in support of the motion and suggested
that similar schemes should be offered to Council tenants where a financial
benefit may improve the impact of the Welfare Reform.

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported that a report on
the Switching Energy Scheme had been included on the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme and was due to be submitted
to the Committee on the 6 March, 2013.

Page 5



107.

108.

109.

RESOLVED:

That the Council requests the Director of Environment to investigate the
advantages and disadvantages of introducing a similar scheme to the
Switching Energy Scheme operated by South Lakeland District Council and to
bring a report to the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee as soon as
practical.

QUESTIONS
The Chair confirmed that no Questions had been received.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS ON COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Chair confirmed that no Questions had been received.

FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY COVENANT

The Chief Executive welcomed Tanya Clancy, Military Civil Integration
Officer for 160 (Wales) Brigade to the meeting and invited her to provide a
presentation on the Community Covenant for Wales.

Ms. Clancy provided a detailed presentation on the following areas:-

Why are we here?

What is a Community Covenant?

Aim of the Community Covenant

What does it do?

Focus Areas

Who is involved?

The Facts v Media Myth

Service Leavers

Who has signed up to the Community Covenant in Wales?
What is the Aim of the Community Covenant Grant Scheme
Grants

Councillor N.R. Steele-Mortimer thanked Tanya Clancy for the
presentation and spoke in support of the report. He proposed that the County
Council support the recommendations as outlined within the report. In
seconding the proposal, Councillor P.J. Curtis also spoke in support of the
report and said that as a member of the Nannerch Royal British Legion he
would be pleased to report to them Flintshire County Council’s commitment to
the Community Covenant.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, Leader of the Council thanked Tanya Clancy
for her presentation and Sharron Jones for preparing the report. He spoke in
support of the report and commented on the opportunity that the Community
Covenant presented to reaffirm the Authority’s commitment t the Armed

Page 6



110.

Forces. He reported that Flintshire would be hosting the North Wales Armed
Forces Day event on the 22 June, 2013.

Councillor M.J. Peers outlined his and all Member’s appreciation for the
work of the Armed Forces. He commented on the ‘practical steps’ shown at
Appendix 3 of the report and asked that a timetable on when the steps would
be completed be provided to Members to ensure that the Community
Covenant be introduced as soon as practically possible.

In response to a question from Councillor Aldridge, Tanya Clancy
advised that the term ‘Veteran’ applied to any person who had spend one day
or more in the Armed Forces.

Councillor R.J.T. Guest spoke in support of the report and commented
on the need for effective communication with Armed Forces personnel to
ensure that the Flintshire Community Covenant met with their needs.

Councillor C. Legg said that the word ‘compliments’ as shown in
paragraph 2.03 of the report should be amended to read ‘complements’.

The Chief Executive reported that following formal adoption of the
Flintshire Community Covenant a formal public event will be organised with
the participation of agencies, as listed within the Community Covenant.
Details of the public event will be provided to all Members in due course.
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the adopted of a Community Covenant for Flintshire be approved;
(b)  That the signatories as proposed within the report be approved; and

(c)  That the launch of the Community Covenant.

ADOPTION OF THE COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME — APRIL 2013

The Head of Finance introduced a report which explained the change
from Council Tax Benefit to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, addressed
the funding implications and the requirement to adopt the scheme by the 31
January 2013.

The report had been considered by the Corporate Resources Overview
& Scrutiny Committee on the 17 January 2013 prior to the announcement by
Welsh Government (WG) to increase the maximum level of support from 90%
to 100%. This meant that claimants would receive the full amount of support
for their council tax bills to which they were eligible. The report had also been
considered by Cabinet on the 22 January 2013 and the recommendations of
Cabinet which incorporated the changes announced by WG were shown at
Appendix 3 of the County Council report.

Page 7



111.

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management proposed that the
County Council support the recommendations as shown in the report and
thanked the Head of Finance and her team for the work undertaken in
preparing the report. This proposal was seconded by Councillor J.B. Attridge.

The Chief Executive advised that a letter to all Council Tax benefit
claimants would be sent out within the next week and a short briefing note
would also be circulated to all Members.

Councillor R.J.T. Guest asked that a briefing note also be sent to all
Town and Community Council Clerks to explain the changes to the Council
Tax Reduction Scheme as a result of the announcement by WG.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the endorsements of Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee on the 17 January and Cabinet on the 22 January 2013 with
regard to the Prescribed Regulations and the Discretions for 2013/14
be noted;

(b)  That the making of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations, (“the Prescribed Requirement
Regulations”) by the National Assembly for Wales on the 19 December
2012 be noted;

(c) That the outcome of the consultation exercise undertaken by the
Council on the introduction of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, as
set out at Appendix 2 of the report be noted;

(d)  That the written statement by the Minister for Local Government and
Communities on the 17 January 2013 which sets out the intention to
increase the maximum level of support from the current 90% to 100%,
as shown at Appendix 1 of the report, be noted;

(e)  That the Prescribed Requirement Scheme as set out at Appendix 2 of
the report be adopted, subject to any changes in prescribed limits set
by Welsh Government and the consequential detail; and

() That the proposed Discretionary Elements as set out at Appendix 2 of
the report be adopted for 2013/14.

SERVICE REVIEW DECISIONS OF THE BETSI CADWALADR
UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

The Chief Executive provided a verbal update on the implementation of
the decisions of the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (Board) on the
service review reports presented to it on the 18 January, and on the
arrangements for service transition. The decisions of the Board and the
background reports were available on the Board’s website.

Page 8



The County Council considered and recommended its formal response
to the BCUHB review at its meeting on the 25 October, 2012. The areas of
concern outlined within the formal response were as follows:-

Neonatal Intensive Care Services
Vascular Services

Homes Enhanced Care (HEC)
Hospitals in our community
Transport

The Chief Executive reported that the Community Health Council
(CHC) was now the key statutory consultee on the Board decisions and the
Council must await their response to the board and any objections to be made
to Ministers. A response from the CHC was expected around the 1 March,
2013.

Assuming that the proposals of the Board were approved all North
Wales Local Authorities would be working with the Board on a number of
risks/assumptions which may have financial implications for the Council. It
was not clear at this stage what the full costs of introducing HEC would be.
On the proposals for Community Hospitals, consideration would also need to
be given to ensuring that no changes would be put in place until suitable
services were available.

The Chief Executive confirmed that Members could submit their own
comments/concern on the proposals directly to the CHC.

Councillor L.A. Aldridge thanked the Chief Executive for the detailed
update. He proposed that the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council
commence urgent dialogue with the BCUHB to identify land in Flint for the
creation of a Primary Health Care Facility. Two nominated representatives
from Flint Town Council should also be invited to participate in those
discussions and pressure should be put on the BCUHB to seek capital funding
through the Welsh Government (WG) to deliver the facility. This proposal was
seconded by Councillor C.A. Ellis.

The Chief Executive commented on the Board’s previous commitment
in delivering a Primary Health Care Facility in Flint and said that the proposal
would enable a debate to begin on how this could be achieved, taking into
account lessons learnt in delivering the health facilities in Connah’s Quay and
Buckley.

Councillor C.A. Ellis confirmed that she was the representative of the
Council on the CHC but explained that the decisions on the proposals of the
Board would be made by the Executive Committee of the CHC. She also
confirmed that as the Chair of the Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny
Committee she had asked the Chief Executive to invite representatives of the
BCUHB to a special meeting of the Committee to discuss the proposed
changes.

Page 9



Councillor P. Shotton outlined his disappointment on the decision to
reverse the original proposal to open the un-commissioned minor injuries unit
at Deeside Community Hospital. His comments were echoed by Councillor
Dunbar who was also disappointed with this decision.

Councillor M.J. Peers outlined his concerns around referrals being
made to transfer patients across the border to England uncertainty remained
on whether payments for treatment provided would be received. He felt that
clarification on this matter had not been forthcoming from the BCUHB.

Councillor H.G. Roberts outlined his concerns around the proposals for
Neonatal Intensive Care Services and was disappointed that this service,
under the current proposals, would be lost from both the Wrexham Maelor and
Glan Clwyd Hospitals.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, Leader of the Council congratulated residents
of Mold and Flint for the campaigns they had fought on the proposals for their
community hospitals and recognised that Flintshire County Council had put
forward the views of all residents across Flintshire as part of the consultation
process. He also commended all Members for the way in which they had
worked together in formulating the Councils response to the proposals. He
said that many of the Councils questions around HEC and Neonatal Intensive
Care Services remained unanswered. On the proposals for Deeside
Community Hospital he was also disappointed that the original proposals had
been removed but said that the Council had previously made clear that the
service to be provided at Deeside should not be at the expense of the current
Minor Injuries Services provided at Mold Community Hospital.

In response to Councillor M.G. Wright's previous question, Councillor
Shotton explained that given that CHC was now the key statutory consultee
on the proposals it was not appropriate at this time for his to meet with the
Minister for Health and Social Services to outline the concerns of Flintshire
County Council.

The Chief Executive confirmed that responses would be provided on all
questions and issues previously raised where a response had not already
been provided.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the verbal update be noted; and

(b)  That the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council commence urgent
dialogue with the BCUHB to identify land in Flint for the creation of a
Primary Health Care Facility. Two nominated representatives from
Flint Town Council should also be invited to participate in those
discussions and pressure should be put on the BCUHB to seek capital
funding through the Welsh Government (WG) to deliver the facility.

Page 10



112.

FLINTSHIRE LOCAL HOUSING STRATEGY

The Director of Community Services introduced a report seeking
County Council support to adopt the Local Housing Strategy.

The Welsh National Housing Strategy 2010: Improving Lives and
Communities — Homes in Wales had three objectives and Flintshire’s strategy
had adopted these as it's, which were shown below:-

¢ Providing more housing, more choice
e Improve homes and communities
e Improve housing-related services and support

Details of the objectives of each of the three strategies and how they
would be met were highlighted within the report.

Councillor H. Brown, Cabinet Member for Housing thanked the
Members of the Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee for their input in
preparing the Local Housing Strategy and proposed that the County Council
adopt the Local Housing Strategy. Councillor J.B. Attridge seconded the
proposal.

Councillor N.R. Steele-Mortimer proposed an amendment to the
proposal that an independent body be invited to hold a workshop for all
Members on the impacts of the Welfare Reform. He said that there had been
misinformation given to Council tenants in Flintshire but confirmed that this
information had not been provided by the Council. He said that a workshop
would assist Members in addressing questions raised by Council tenants.
This amendment was seconded by Councillor W.O. Thomas.

Councillor J.B. Attridge, in speaking to the amendment, reported that all
Group Leaders had been invited to site on the Welfare Reform Board and that
information considered during meetings of the Board should be cascaded
down to all Members. Home visits had been carried out to all Council tenants
in order to explain to them how the Welfare Reform would affect them
personally. Councillor H. Brown added that a number of workshops on
Welfare Reform had been held for all Members and that a briefing note on the
proposed bedroom tax had been circulated to all Members before the
meeting.

A number of Members confirmed that they had received a great deal of
information on Welfare Reform. Councillor C.A. Ellis confirmed that the Social
& Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee had requested that Paul
Neave attend a future meeting of the Committee to address concerns of
Members on how Welfare Reform could impact disabled people, carers and
foster parents. All Members were welcome to attend and observe this
discussion.

Councillor R. Dolphin confirmed that housing officers had visited the
Council tenants within her ward but raised concern that the creation of 740

Page 11



113.

new homes as outlined within the report would not be sufficient to meet the
needs of Council tenants affected by Welfare Reform.

Councillor A.M. Halford spoke in support of the amendments and
commented on a number of questions which had been raised during a
meeting of the Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee which had been
difficult to answer. The amendment was seeking a further workshop to ensure
that Members were fully aware of the impact for all aspects of the Welfare
Reform. Councillor H.T. Isherwood sought clarification on whether a person
born before the 1 October, 1995 would be exempt from the bedroom tax as
would disabled persons requiring full time carers.

The Chief Executive explained that the Welfare Reform was a major
issue for the Council and full debate would continue to be undertaken with all
Members. He said that responses would be provided to all Members on
specific questions relating to Welfare Reform following the meeting.

When put to the vote, the amendment was lost.

RESOLVED:
That the Local Housing Strategy be adopted.

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2013/14 OF THE INDEPENDENT
REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES

The Democracy and Governance Manager introduced a report to
inform County Council of the annual report issued by the Independent
Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) for 2013/14.

The Council currently pays a mileage rate of 40p per mile to Member
and co-opted Members when using their own vehicle to travel to meetings and
on other approved duties. The annual report withdraws the ability for Councils
to pay less than 45p per mile and at the annual meeting the Council’s
schedule of member remuneration would have to be amended to increase this
rate to 45p per mile in future.

In relation to co-opted members the annual report makes two changes
to the current arrangements. Firstly, it had been recognised that time spent
on attending authorised training events, conferences and pre-meetings with
officers qualify for payment to a co-optee. This change was one that the
Council had suggested when responding to consultation on the draft report.
Secondly, the annual report removed the limit of 10 days which currently was
the maximum number of days for which a co-opted member may be paid in
any one year and left it to individual Councils to decide a maximum number of
days.

Councillor W. Mullin proposed that the County Council support the

recommendation as shown in the report. This proposal was seconded by
Councillor J.B. Attridge.

Page 12



114.

Councillor A.M. Halford thanked the Democracy and Governance for
the report. She outlined the work of the co-opted member for the Audit
Committee, Mr. Paul Williams, who was the Vice-Chair of the Committee and
was pleased that he would be reimbursed for the work he carried out.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the annual report and the decisions that will need to be
made at the Council’s annual meeting be noted.

BUILDINGS OF LOCAL INTEREST PROCEDURE

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment introduced a
report to seek approval for the adoption of a procedure for designating and
protecting Buildings of Local Interest (BLIs). He proposed that the County
Council support the recommendations as outlined within the report.

In seconding the proposals, Councillor R.C. Bithell welcomed the report
which he said would protect important BLIs in the future. He asked if all
Members could be provided with a list of current BLIs as there could be
additional buildings that Members may wish to suggest for inclusion in the list.
He also asked if consideration could be given to providing a grant to owners of
BLIs who may find it financially difficult to restore such buildings. A number of
Members concurred with the comments on providing financial assistance
which was currently unavailable.

Councillor N.M. Matthews commented on the designation and
recording procedure outlined within Appendix 1 of the report and sought
confirmation that local knowledge would be given sufficient consideration
before a decision was taken.

The Head of Planning responded to the questions and comments made
and reported that the need to publish and formalise the Councils procedure for
designating BLIs arose from a case at Gelli Farm, Whitford where a BLI was
made on a property that was the subject of a planning application. The
applicant sought to challenge the BLI and the Council had been criticised for
not having a published procedure. He confirmed that local Member(s) and
Town and Community Councils would be consulted for their views when sites
within their area were being considered and took on board the comments of
available funding to restore BLIs in the future.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the Buildings of Local Interest (BLI) procedure not, shown at
Appendix 1 of the report, including the establishment of the (BLI)

Advisory Panel be approved;

(b)  That a review of the current list of BLI's be supported; and

Page 13



115.

116.

117.

(c) That delegated authority be granted to the Director of Environment
following consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment to format (and where necessary typographically correct)
the wording of the procedure note into the appropriate house style for
publication.

CHINESE LANTERNS

The Chief Executive provided a brief update on guidance which had
been issued by the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) and
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) following
representations made by the Council to Westminster Government calling for
Parliament to introduce legislation to ban the sale and use of Chinese
lanterns.

Councillor R.J.T. Guest welcomed the representations made following
a notice of motion which had been submitted by Councillor Q.R.H. Dodd to
County Council on the 13 September, 2011. He also welcomed the response
from DEFRA and looked forward to their report following their review of
Chinese lanterns.

Councillor M.J. Peers commented on the Council’s decision to advise
some market traders on the issues surrounding the lanterns and suggested
that the Council also advise local shops, known to sell the lanterns, to
encourage them not to stock them in future.

RESOLVED:
That the update be noted.

DURATION OF MEETING

The meeting commenced at 2.00 p.m. and ended at 4.12 p.m.

ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were two members of the press present.

Page 14



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: FRIDAY, 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the recommendations of the Cabinet for the
Council Fund Revenue Budget 2013/14.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 A report was considered by Cabinet on 18 December 2012 which
presented a first draft of the Council Fund Revenue Budget for
2013/14 for initial approval.

2.02 The Cabinet's initial budget proposals for 2013/14, which at that stage
identified a budget gap of £1.480m, were also referred to Overview
and Scrutiny for consideration.

2.03 The Overview and Scrutiny meetings were held between 22 and 31
January 2013 where Members offered comments and asked a
number of questions to clarify issues. A summary of these, together
with Officer responses is included in Appendix 9 of the February
report.

2.04 The final budget proposals for 2013/14, which show a balanced
position, were considered by Cabinet on 19 February and were
recommended to County Council. A copy of this report is attached as
Appendix A.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of the Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Section 8 of the February report.

3.02 Section 3 of the February report provides an overview of the budget
strategy for 2013/14, feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny
meetings and details of other budget adjustments made to enable a
balanced position to be reached. The Section also provides further
information on the proposed Schools Budget for 2013/14.

Page 15



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

Details of the final proposed budget and its funding are set out in
Section 4 of the February report.

Section 5 of the February report sets out details of earmarked and
unearmarked reserves.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty
on the Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is
considering its Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the
estimates and adequacy of reserves. Section 6 of the February report
provides this statement in detail.

Section 7 of the February report provides detail on the Council's
arrangements for managing its finances over the next few years, by
the development of its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), which
will be produced within the framework of the Council's Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS).

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council approves the recommendations of the Cabinet as set
out in Section 8 of the attached report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific anti-poverty
impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific equalities
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific personnel
implications.

Page 16



10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 Overview and Scrutiny, Business Ratepayers, School Budget Forum,
Flintshire Joint Trades Union Committee.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Overview and Scrutiny as set out in the February report.

School Budget Forum and Flintshire Joint Trades Union have been
updated throughout the process.

No responses received to the formal consultation with business
ratepayers.

No objections received from proposals shared with Local Service
Board and Regional Partners.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix A - Report to Cabinet 19 February 2013 - Council Fund
Budget 2013/14

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: (01352) 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY., 19 FEBRUARY 2013

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the finalised Council Fund Revenue budget strategy and detailed

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

3.00

3.01

proposals for 2013/14 for recommendation to County Council on 1 March
2013.

BACKGROUND

A report was considered by Cabinet on 18 December 2012 which presented a
first draft of the Council Fund Revenue Budget for 2013/14 for initial approval.
Further work was to follow and the draft was to be presented to Overview and
Scrutiny Committees throughout January for consultation.

The budget strategy and proposals were considered by the five Overview and
Scrutiny Committees between 22 and 31 January 2013 and feedback is
detailed in sections 3.07 — 3.11.

The budget strategy and proposals and their implications for school budgets
were discussed with the School Budget Forum on 31 January 2013. The
budget strategy and proposals were shared with the Flintshire Joint Trades
Union Committee on 23 January 2013.

The formal Council Fund budget setting for 2013/14 and setting of the Council
Tax for the year will take place at County Council on 1 March 2013.

DEVELOPING THE BUDGET STRATEGY AND CLOSING THE GAP

National and Local Context
The national and local financial context in which the budget is being set was

shared and explored at Cabinet in December and with the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees throughout January.

Page 19



3.02 The budget strategy has been developed within the context of the Council's
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The aims of the developing
strategy are:-

To ensure revenue and capital resources are targeted to support
Council priorities and to achieve their outcomes

To fully integrate revenue and capital plans

To maintain Council Tax increases at affordable levels for the tax payer
To optimise opportunities for income generation from fees, charges
and grants

To maintain appropriate level of reserves and provisions

To ensure strong financial services, systems and processes to
underpin the strategy and balance annual budgets

Budget Strategy 2013/14

3.03 The objectives of the budget strategy for 2013/14 have been:-

To respond to the reduced level of funding available to local
government and the wider public sector and the ongoing impacts of the
economic position

To protect ‘front line’ public services despite the scale of the fiscal
challenge

To minimise the effects on communities

To reinvest in new, expanded or improved services to meet Council
Priorities wherever possible

3.04 We have sought to achieve these objectives by:-

Challenging and ‘compressing’ identified service/budget pressures by
drawing on evidence-based forecasting and a risk management
approach

Reviewing service/budget pressures and efficiencies identified in
previous years and revising them to meet current need

Taking a targeted approach to inflation — providing additional resources
only where necessary

Ongoing review and challenge of the in-year budget position to identify
challenges and opportunities for the 2013/14 budget year

Reviewing reserves and balances to ensure they are at the level
needed

Progressing the work streams within the Flintshire Futures Programme
to achieve our efficiency savings targets.

Page 20



Budget ‘Headlines’

3.05 The budget headlines are:-

3.06

3.07

The draft budget as recommended is now balanced

There are no significant cuts to services or new job reductions

There is additional investment in Council Priorities. The investment in
Schools and Social Care budgets both meets Council Priorities and
exceeds the levels set by Ministers as expectations

Core services are protected where national grant is reducing
Provision is made to prepare communities for the impacts of Welfare
Reform

Resources are provided to invest-to-save

The budget is protected for inflationary, economic and demographic
impacts on a measured basis

The recommended increases in council tax and fees and charges and
the recommended new charges for introduction, meet the test of
reasonableness and affordability

On Council Priorities specific additional investment is made in:-

Council Priority 1: Modern and Efficient Organisation

Council Priority 3: Modern Employer

Council Priority 4: Customer Services

Council Priority 5: Safeguarding the Vulnerable

Council Priority 7: Independent and Healthy Living

Council Priority 8: Meeting Housing Need (in conjunction with the
separate report on the Housing Revenue Account Budget 2013/14)
Council Priority 9: Learning, Play and Leisure

Overview and Scrutiny Considerations

The report to Cabinet on 18 December 2012 identified a budget shortfall at
that stage of £1.480m made up of £0.417m for one-off costs and £1.063m for
ongoing base budget items. This report formed the basis of the Overview and
Scrutiny meetings held during January:-

1. Housing (inc HRA) 22 January
2. Environment 24 January
3. Lifelong Learning 25 January
4, Social & Health Care 28 January
5. Corporate Resources 28 January

A further Corporate Resources meeting, open to all members was held on
31 January. The purpose of the meeting was to summarise the key issues
discussed for consideration by the Cabinet within this report and to resolve
specific information requests from members.

Page 21



3.08

3.09

Each of the meetings began with a corporate overview of the whole budget
and the national and local strategic context jointly presented by the Chief
Executive and Head of Finance. This was followed by a portfolio specific
presentation by Directors on the service strategies behind the service specific
budget proposals along with details of the proposed budget growth, pressures
and efficiencies for 2013/14, the investment in the service area arising from
the budget proposals and a forward look at the key service issues for the
medium term. Cabinet members were present to explain their priorities and
the reasoning behind decisions on the draft budget.

In addition, members were advised of a number of “live issues” which had
arisen since the initial budget proposals were made and which were still under
consideration. These are summarised as follows and are covered in
Section 3.10 to 3.20:-

Environment
e Energy generation at landfill sites

Lifelong Learning

Senior Management Restructure

Music Service

Out of County Placements

Leisure Service

Play Schemes

Play Areas

Reduction in Schools Service Level Agreement pressure

Social and Health Care
e Out of County Placements

Corporate Resources

e Council Tax Support Scheme

Council Fund improving in-year budget projection

Level of reserves and balances

Municipal Mutual Insurance Risk

Profiling of investment and organisational change needs

Outcome from Scrutiny Meetings

3.10 The outcomes from the Overview and Scrutiny meetings round were:-

e The budget proposals were noted by each committee

e A specific request the from Lifelong Learning Committee for the
Task and Finish Group’s recommendation for additional funding of
£0.012m for Play Schemes to allow the programme to meet local
demand from Town and Community Councils

Page 22



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

e There was a request for information on the whole budget as
context for investment or efficiency proposals. This was provided
at the Corporate Resources meeting on 31 January.

e Social and Health Care requested detail of £1.9m investment in the
service.

Members offered comments and asked a number of questions to clarify
issues and a summary of these observations and questions, together with the
response of accountable officers, is attached as Appendix 9.

Closing the Gap

At the final Corporate Resources Scrutiny meeting on 31 January, members
were advised that following the Final Local Government Settlement and the
ongoing work to refine efficiencies and pressures, the revised shortfall stood
at £1.400m (0.362 for one-off costs and £1.038m for ongoing base budget
items).

It was noted that to reduce the budget for Out of County Placements in
2013/14 to 60% of the projected underspend in 2012/13, would reduce the
shortfall to £0.745m (further detailed work following the meeting has enabled
a further reduction of £0.128m in this area). However, the cost of including
new pressures raised through the Overview and Scrutiny round was in the
region of £0.300m. Inclusion of these pressures would therefore increase the
shortfall to an estimated £1m.

Achieving a Balanced Budget
Key events since the initial budget proposals were presented were:-
¢ Notification of the Final Local Government Finance Settlement for

2013/14 from Welsh Government

e A decision of the Board of Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) to
‘trigger the scheme of arrangement

e An improved estimate of the projected out-turn in 2012/13 from a
previously projected overspend to an under-spend of £0.611m

¢ Revised regulations laid out by Welsh Government in January
amending the level of Council Tax Support in 2013/14 from 90% to
100%

e Full consideration of service investment and protection needs

Final Local Government Finance Settlement 2013/14

The Final Local Government Settlement was received from the Welsh
Government on 11 December 2012. This included details of the final
Standard Spending Assessment (SSA), Aggregate External Finance (AEF)
and Outcome Agreement Grant.

Page 23



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

A briefing note on the changes included compared to the provisional
settlement stage was sent to all members in December and is attached as
Appendix 1.

Insurance Provision following MMI Scheme of Arrangement

The Board of Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) has decided to ‘trigger’ the
scheme of arrangement. This was identified in the 2011/12 accounts as a
contingent liability, which did not require financial provision to be made.
However, the impact of the decision is to require, under the Accounts and
Audit regulations, the making of provision in the 2012/13 accounts. A
separate report on this agenda provides further information on this issue and
recommends that provision is made from the contingency reserve in 2012/13.

Projected Outturn for 2012/13

The 2012/13 Month 8 Budget Monitoring report (reported separately on this
agenda) shows an estimated balance of £0.497m in the Contingency Reserve
as at 31 March 2013, after provision is made for the additional insurance
costs with MMI (see 3.16). There is the opportunity to meet one-off items of
expenditure (from the under-spend in 2012/13) and to review the level of
budget required in 2013/14 for those services contributing to the under-spend,
most notably the provision of Out of County Placements.

Council Tax Support Scheme 2013/14

In anticipation of the combined impact of Welfare Reform changes and the on-
going economic situation, the initial budget proposals assumed a reduction in
the Council Tax Collection Rate to 97.5% (from 99%).

The announcement in January of Council Tax support for 2013/14 being at
100% (instead of 90%) enables a more optimistic view to be taken of income
to be collected. Whilst a revised collection rate cannot be used in setting the
budget, it is reasonable to assume that there will be a surplus in-year in
2013/14. At this stage there is no indication of the level of support in future
years of the funding.

At a 98.5% collection rate, there would be an in year surplus of £0.750m,
although the final amount will depend on the collection rate achieved. It is
proposed therefore to fund the costs associated with Council Tax support
(£0.215m) from this in-year and to make a further contribution of £0.205m to
base level of reserves to bring this up to 2% of turnover which now includes
£9.6m for Council Tax support. This additional income will also provide
protection against fluctuating caseloads when the level of funding is fixed.
The one-off pressure of £0.027m to fund additional temporary resources
within council tax has also been removed.

Page 24



3.21

3.22

3.23

Council Tax Level

The Council has a policy commitment to maintain Council Tax at an affordable
rate for the payer. The Council has to balance the need to maintain its
Council Tax base to meet cost pressures and inflation, through annual rises in
Council Tax, with this commitment. In recent years the Council has set an
annual Council Tax rise of between 3.0% and 3.5% to achieve this balance.
The Medium Term Financial Strategy needs to profile a revenue base
including local taxation income.

For 2013/14 the Council has to be mindful of the financial pressures on
Council Tax payers which come from the economic position, welfare reform
and high energy and fuel costs. For some Council Tax payers these
pressures will be acute. Therefore, the Council should aim to set the lowest
possible Council Tax rise to achieve the ‘balancing act’ explained above. A
Council Tax rise of 2.9% for 2013/14 is recommended.

Answering the Requests of Overview and Scrutiny

Following the round of Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings the
following is proposed to answer the requests for service investment or
protection.

e Music Service: maintain the service at current levels without change
to the charging policy and subsidised transport policy pending
completion of the review of the service. The investment in service
continuity pending the review, which will be completed and reported by
30 June 2013, is a maximum of £0.130m.

o Play Schemes: the equitable minimum provision to be provided per
area as recommended. The requests for local service enhancements,
above the minimum provision, to match town and community council
requests to be met in full at £0.012m. Given the risks of the continuity
of national grant beyond 2013/14 and the pressure on available
resources, the on-going review of future provision to be completed as
part of a Cabinet-led review of priorities by 30 September 2013. The
initial outcomes of the Task and Finish Group on Play is a valuable
source of advice for both this annual budget recommendation and the
on-going review.

e Play Areas: the additional requests for town and community councils
for matching funds for the renewal of play equipment in local play
areas/parks to be met in full at £0.035m. The future capital and
revenue needs for play areas and the scale and purpose of the annual
budget to be set aside for the matching scheme to be reviewed and
reported by 30 September 2013.

Page 25



3.24

3.25

Further Budget Adjustments

During the budget discussions it has been reported that there was ongoing
refinement to pressures and efficiencies to reflect the latest position. These
have been reflected in the final draft and the significant items are:-

Denominational Transport: the efficiency has been re-profiled for
implementation from the 2014/15 academic year. Entitlement will be
maintained in 2013/14 pending the outcome of the consultation
process.

Out of County Placements: the efficiency has been increased to
reflect current levels of provision with an allowance for two additional
high cost placements within the year. This is seen as a minimum
requirement to respond to anticipated demand.

Car Park Management: the efficiency has been revised in line with
the report to Cabinet (also on this agenda) following consideration by
Overview and Scrutiny.

Investment Costs: the revised amount included reflects available
funding for investment in change which adds to funds remaining from
previous investment allocations.

Landfill Sites: a new pressure has been included in relation to
reduced energy income generation as a result of the deteriorating
quality of gas as a consequence of contamination and the age of the
sites.

Senior Management Restructure: an additional efficiency has been
included in relation to a senior management restructure within Lifelong
Learning (see separate report on this agenda)

Insurance Contingency: a refinement in the efficiency in light of the
MMl issue

Fire Levy: a reduction in the levy amount following final notification
from NW Fire and Rescue Authority.

Taking into account the issues in 3.14 to 3.24 above, and the continuing work
to review new and existing pressures and efficiencies and inflation
assumptions, a balanced budget position for recommendation has been
achieved. A summary of how the total budget gap has been eliminated is
detailed in Appendix 12.

Page 26



3.26

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

Risk Assessment and Budget Management

The approach to the budget has been to take a risk based approach. This
has applied to new costs and efficiencies and also to assessing the on-going
impacts of pressures and efficiencies in the current year's budget to ensure
the robustness of the budget.

Inevitably in managing a budget of this scale across a large and diverse
organisation, variances will occur and will be reported, along with
management action to correct in monthly budget monitoring.

During the year, the Council will be implementing its Single Status Agreement.
Where previous year or new budget proposals link with the implementation
(e.g. part 3 terms and conditions efficiencies), the impact of any delay in
implementation will be met from the Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve in line
with the approach adopted for 2012/13.

Schools Budget

Under the School Funding (Wales) Regulations 2010 local authorities are
required to notify Welsh Government of the proposed budget for schools for
the forthcoming year by 14 February each year.

To fulfil the First Minister's commitment of protecting school budgets by 1%
above the Welsh Government revenue block grant, councils need to ensure
that their net (i.e. excluding specific grants) Individual School Budget is
adjusted by one percent more than the WG block grant adjustment. For
2013/14 this equates to an increase of 2.08%. The equivalent increase for
2014/15 is 1.27%. It should be noted that the protection expectation is
relative to WG's funding from the UK Treasury and not the level of Individual
Council settlements from WG.

The Council is committed to increase the level of school budget and the
amount of the school budget delegated to schools. We aim to do this
progressively over a number of years. This is within the strategic framework
which embraces the school modernisation programme, numbers of children in
school (demographic change) and investment through the 21st Century
Schools Programme.

The proposed schools budget, as notified to WG, increases from £91.874m to
£96.510m, an increase of £4.636m (4.8%). This includes grant transfers into
settlement of £2.258m. The budget has been uplifted for the estimated
impact of inflationary increases for both pay and non-pay costs.

Throughout 2012/13 there has been an ongoing review of the schools funding
formula. The Specialist School formula review has been completed and this
identified a shortfall of funding in this sector of £0.250m which has been
addressed in the 2013/14 budget. A significant amount of analysis has been
undertaken to date on the primary and secondary formulas and the objective
is to have a revised formula in place for 2014/15. Any funding issues
identified will be fed through into the medium term financial plan.

Page 27



3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

4.00

4.01

The Assembly has just notified authorities of their Post 16 Special Education
Needs allocation for 2013/14. The allocations for Mainstream Schools with
Sixth Forms, Special Educational Needs in Mainstream and Adult Community
Learning will increase by 1%. The Welsh Government is intending to
introduce a new funding formula for post 16 education in Wales by 2014/15;
for 2013/14 the post 16 funds will continue to be delegated to schools on the
basis of a locally agreed formula.

Equality Impact Assessment

The Council has an obligation to assess the potential equalities impacts of its
budget proposals.

An initial equalities impact assessment has been undertaken for all proposed
efficiencies and no major risks have been identified through this work.

Further and more detailed impact assessments are being undertaken on a
small number of efficiencies to ensure that there is no discriminatory impact in
their implementation.

FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

As a result of the changes outlined above total expenditure and funding now
equates to £293.346m and the total budget build up is outlined below. Details
of the figures making up the total budget are attached as Appendices 2-8.

It is recommended that the 2013/14 Council Fund Revenue Budget

Requirement be set at £258,284,539 (which is £1,720,145 below the
calculated Standard Spending Assessment).

Page 28



4.02

Funding £m

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 152.733
Additional Allocation (Council Tax Support Scheme) 0.869
National Non Domestic Rates (NDR) 46.872
Council Tax 57.809
Budget Requirement 258.285
Unhypothecated Grants

Outcome Agreement Grant 1.467
Planned Use of Contingency Reserve 0.297
Specific Grants (Estimated) 33.297
Total Funding 293.346
Expenditure

Total Budget 2012/13 280.991
Previous Year's Growth / Items Dropping Out Appendix 2 1.336
Pay & Price Inflation Appendix 3 2.900
New Responsibilies and Transfers into the Settlement Appendix 4 14.042
Pressures and Investments - Ongoing Appendix 5 3.261
Pressures and Investments - One-off and Time Limited  Appendix 6 0.297
Efficiencies Appendix 7 (5.437)
Less Specific Grants 2012/13 Appendix 8 (37.341)
Plus Specific Grants 2013/14 (Estimated) Appendix 8 33.297
Total Expenditure 293.346
Shortfall (0.000)
Income

The budget proposals in this report set a budget requirement of
£258,284,539. At this level of spend, the increase on the Band D Council Tax
Rate (excluding Police and Town/Community Councils' precepts) is 2.9%.
This equates to an increase of £27.04 on 2012/13 and a Band D rate of
£959.43.

The Council Tax system in Wales contains nine property bands ranging from
Band A to Band |. In order to ensure consistency between councils when
reporting Council Tax information it is agreed practice that all related
information is expressed in terms of Band D equivalents.

Members are requested to confirm that there be a 2.9% increase in
Council Tax at Band D and an assumed 97.5% collection rate.

Page 29



4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

4.08

The amount of Outcome Agreement Grant available for 2013/14 has been
advised by the Assembly. Achievement of this is subject to performance.
The Council has been successful in achieving 100% of its grant in previous
years and so it is a reasonable assumption for 2013/14.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of the Outcome
Agreement Grant of £1,467,158 in the budget.

The specific grants figure is provisional, and based on the latest information
known at this time. Expenditure levels will be managed within the final figures
announced by the Assembly.

Members are requested to confirm that the budget will be adjusted to
reflect the actual level of specific grant received.

Expenditure

Inflation

Pay and Price Inflation of £2.900m is included in the budget proposals as
detailed in Appendix 3. The proposals include pay inflation of £1.279m which
assume a 1% increase for teaching staff from September 2013 and 1% for
non-teaching staff from April 2013.

Price inflation of £0.988m has been included which represents a targeted 1%-
2% increase for all services as required. In addition to the standard level of
price inflation outlined above, central non-standard inflation of £0.766m has
been included, as detailed in Appendix 3, to reflect the increasing costs of
energy, fuel, business rates and food for which inflation is anticipated to be at
higher levels based on national intelligence. This sum will be held centrally
until it is demonstrated that there is a requirement for the funding to be
released. This will be reported in budget monitoring reports during the year.

It is recommended that items of non-standard inflation are only
allocated out to services when the actual increase in cost is known.

Inflation on income amounting to £0.133m has been assumed on the yield
from existing fees and charges which has generally been applied at 3%.
Appendix 7a also details service areas where existing charges have been
increased or new charges introduced (including inflation).

Members are requested to confirm the levels of inflation assumed in the
budget.

The final settlement included various transfers in totalling £4.400m of funding
previously received through a specific grant and an additional new
responsibility for the Council Tax Support Scheme of £9.642m as detailed in
Appendix 4.

Members are requested to confirm the amounts included in the budget
relating to transfers into and out of the settlement.

Page 30



4.09

410

4.1

412

5.00

5.01

5.02

Appendix 5 a-d sets out recurring pressures totalling £3.261m recommended
for inclusion in the budget. These pressures are proposed to be funded from
the base budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of £3.261m of pressures
in the budget.

It is recommended that the Council's adopted practice continues that
resource to fund new pressures be approved for the purposes set out.
Any proposals to vary the use of the sums allocated are to be the
subject of a further report to Cabinet.

In addition, Appendix 6 details estimated one-off costs of £0.297m which will
be funded by way of a contribution from the Contingency Reserve.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of estimated one-off
costs totalling £0.297m in the budget.

Appendix 7a-e sets out the efficiencies, totalling £5.437m, recommended for
inclusion in the budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of efficiencies of
£5.437m in the budget.

It is recommended that if it should become apparent that achievement of
any of the savings (in full or in part) is proving to be not as anticipated,
that this is dealt with corporately, with the Corporate Management Team
bringing options to Cabinet for consideration.

Full details of the total budget will be included in the 2013/14 Budget Book
which will be made available early in the new financial year.

UNEARMARKED BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES

Under the Local Authority Accounting Panel (LAAP) Bulletin 55, the level and
utilisation of all reserves must be determined formally by the Council,
informed by the advice and judgement of the Chief Finance Officer. As part of
the budget process, officers have reviewed all of the reserves and balances
held as detailed below. This is to ensure that any reserves held are at a
reasonable level for the purpose for which they are intended and, if no longer
required, are released back into useable funding.

Total Revenue Reserves comprise both the Council Fund Unearmarked

balance and various Earmarked Council Fund Reserves, as reported annually
in the Statement of Accounts.

Page 31



5.03

5.04

5.06

5.06

5.07

The total value of the Council Fund reserves as at 1st April 2012 was
£44.520m as outlined below:

Council Fund (Unearmarked) Balance £m

Base Level of Unearmarked Reserves 5.564
Contingency Reserve 0.992
Sub -Total 6.556

Earmarked Council Fund Reserves

Service Balances 6.479
Corporate Balances 24.156
Schools' Balances 2.658
Other Specific Reserves 4.671
Total 44.520

Council Fund (Unearmarked) Balance

Base Level of Reserves

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy includes a commitment to
achieving a base level of reserves of 2% of turnover. The base level of
reserves as at 1st April 2012 was £5.564m and it is proposed to increase this
by £0.065m in 2013/14 taking the base level of reserves to £5.629m. In
addition it is planned to make a further contribution in-year from the
anticipated council tax collection fund surplus (see para 3.20).

Contingency Reserve

When the 2012/13 budget was set, the Contingency Reserve was estimated
to be £0.414m at 31st March 2012. As a result of the net under-spend
reported in the final outturn for 2011/12 the actual amount in the Contingency
Reserve at the year end was £0.992m.

Cabinet on 18 September 2012, agreed to utilise £0.361m of this additional
funding to support the new leisure facilities in its first year of operation.

The 2012/13 Month 8 Budget Monitoring report which is also on this agenda,
shows an estimated balance of £0.497m in the contingency as at 31st March
2013 after setting aside provision for the MMI trigger of the Scheme of
Arrangement (see 3.16).

Page 32



5.08

5.09

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

The 2013/14 budget proposals include a recommendation to utilise £0.297m
of the contingency reserve to fund one-off costs which would leave an
estimated amount remaining at the end of the current financial year of
£0.200m.

Whilst the base level of reserves is a known sum which is set aside, the level
of Contingency reserve is based on the current estimate and is subject to
change at the end of the financial year. The level of contingency reserve will
continue to be reported through the monthly budget monitoring reports.

Earmarked Council Fund Reserves

Earmarked Council Fund Reserves include service balances/corporate
balances, specific reserves and schools' balances.

Service balances are made up of those balances held by departments which
Cabinet has agreed can be carried forward. Corporate Balances are held to
meet commitments which fall in future years on specific items of expenditure.

The Council also holds Specific Reserves which are set aside for a specific
future purpose.

Appendix 10 details the estimated closing balances for 2012/13 and 2013/14
in respect of all reserves and balances. The Head of Finance is satisfied that
the level of these reserves is appropriate.

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND RESERVES

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty on the
Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is considering its
Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy
of reserves. The Act requires the Council to have regard to this report in
making its decisions (the reference to the first person which follows is to the
Head of Finance in this role).

Consideration of the budget has been within the framework of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy 2011/15. The specific strategy for 2013/14 has been
to target inflation, robustly review the ongoing impacts of in-year pressures,
challenge and compress new pressures and optimise efficiency options.

| confirm the reasonableness of the estimates contained in the proposed
budget, having regard to the Council's spending needs in 2013/14. Inevitably
in managing a budget of this scale across and large and diverse organisation
variances will occur, but | believe that the budget assumptions represent a
measured and acceptable level of risk.

Effective and disciplined in-year financial management will be key to ensuring

that budgets are managed effectively and prompt action taken to mitigate the
impacts should variances occur.

Page 33



6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

The 2013/14 budget has been prepared within the context of reduced funding
available to local government and the ongoing impacts of the economic
downturn. Economic forecasts show that this will be the case for some years
to come. Future rises in spending need (choice and demand led) and real
terms cuts in funding mean that the Council needs not only to plan ahead, but
also to carefully safeguard its levels of balances.

The level of reserves and balances is set out in Section 5.00. Within the
context described above, | recommend that the Council should maintain the
level of general balances of £5.629m and the further planned in-year
contribution of £0.205m in 2013/14 (alongside other specific reserves as
outlined) to safeguard its position and be in a strong position to plan ahead to
meet the continuing period of constraint in public sector funding, the impacts
of the economic downturn and be able to invest in its priorities for the future.

2014/15 AND THE MEDIUM TERM

The national and local financial context which was shared and explored with
members through Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny meetings during the
budget process, sets the backdrop to the likely financial position over the
medium term. Significant pressure on public sector finances is expected to
continue to the end of the decade through a combination of UK Fiscal Policy,
a flat economy and increasing demands and expectations for key services.

Whilst the Council has had indications of its level of funding for 2014/15 by
Welsh Government, its funding forecast from the UK Treasury has
subsequently been reduced. As a consequence it is highly probable that the
projected budget gap of £29m over 5 years will be increased. The impacts of
any WG decisions on the allocation of funding to other areas of the public
sector would have a significant additional bearing.

In this context the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) continues to be under
review. The next version will be published in mid 2013, by which time the
Council will have a clearer picture of a number of the investment options for
key priorities including Single Status and Equal Pay, School Modernisation,
School Funding Formula Review, Social Care and Capital Strategy.

The updated MTFP will model:-

e possible medium-term fiscal outcomes and impacts from the
forthcoming comprehensive spending review and potential levels of
future funding from Welsh Government

e local taxation and income from fees and charges and other income
streams

e necessity-led and priority local choice-led budget revenue and capital
needs

¢ efficiency needs and opportunities

Page 34



7.056

7.06

8.00

8.01

This work will inform a challenging and evidence based review of priorities for
investment and priorities for disinvestment/efficiency and be a true basis and
impetus for the next phase of big organisational change within the council.

The latest position on our MTFP, prior to the inclusion of this work is detailed
in Appendix 11.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on
1 March 2013:-

1.

10.

11.

12.

That the 2013/14 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement be set at
£258,284,539 (which is £1,720,145 below the calculated Standard
Spending Assessment) (4.01).

That there be a 2.9% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an
assumed 97.5% collection rate (4.02).

The inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.467m in the
budget (4.03).

The levels of inflation assumed in the budget (4.05-4.07).

That items of non-standard inflation are only allocated out to services
when the actual increase in cost is known (4.06).

The amounts included in the budget relating to transfers into and out of
the settlement (4.08).

The inclusion of £3.261m of pressures in the budget (Appendix 5 a-d).

That the Council's adopted practice continues that resources to fund
new pressures be approved for the purpose set out. Any proposals to
vary the use of the sums allocated are to be the subject of a further
report to Cabinet (4.09).

The inclusion of estimated one-off costs totalling £0.297m in the budget
(Appendix 6), to be funded from the contingency reserve.

The inclusion of efficiencies of £5.437m in the budget (4.11 and
Appendix 7 a-e).

That if it should become apparent that achievement of any of the
savings (in full or part) is proving to be not as anticipated that this is
dealt with corporately, with the Corporate Management Team bringing
alternatives to Cabinet for consideration (4.11).

Page 35



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

13. That additional income derived from the anticipated collection fund
surplus be utilised to fund welfare reform costs and increase the base
level of reserves (3.20)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific anti-poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific anti-poverty impacts.
EQUALITIES IMPACT
Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific equality impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific personnel impacts.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Overview and Scrutiny, Business Ratepayers, School Budget Forum,
Flintshire Joint Trades Union Committee.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Overview and Scrutiny as set out in the report.

School Budget Forum and Flintshire Joint Trade Union have been updated
throughout the process.

No responses received to the formal consultation with business ratepayers.

No objections received from proposals shared with Local Service Board and
Regional Partners.

APPENDICES
Appendices 1-12

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson

Telephone: 01352 702271

Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 36



Appendix 1
Briefing Note on the Final Local Government Settlement 2013/14

Revenue
Aggregate External Finance (AEF)
= Flintshire's AEF has decreased by £0.045m compared to the
provisional settlement (from £199.651m to £199.606m) as detailed
below:-

£m
Transfers Into Settlement:
Increase in Post 16 SEN Special Schools Transfer 0.013

Less Council Tax Support Scheme funding (0.050)
Distributional Changes (0.008)
Total (0.045)

Standard Spending Assessment (SSA)
Flintshire’s calculated SSA has decreased by £0.120m compared to the
provisional settlement (from £259.255 to £259.135m)

Transfers into the Settlement

The transfers into the settlement remain the same as per the provisional
settlement with the exception of an increase of £0.013m in relation to Post 16
SEN Special Schools.

Council Tax Support Scheme

This new responsibility has been confirmed with a revised amount identified of
£8.773m, a reduction of £0.050m on the provisional settlement figure. The
Minister has also announced in the Final Settlement an additional £4.6m of
additional funding across Wales in the current financial year to assist local
authorities with the costs of introducing this new scheme and to help mitigate
the wider impact of welfare reforms. Work is underway to assess the specific
implications for Flintshire of this complex area.

Specific Grants
Only limited information at an All Wales level has been received to date.

Outcome Agreement Grant
Flintshire's allocation is £1.465m, a reduction of £0.002m than at the
provisional stage.

Regional Collaboration Fund

The Provisional Settlement advised that £10.174 million (All Wales) had been
taken out of the settlement to form a new specific grant for regional
collaboration. The Final Settlement advised of a North Wales indicative
allocation of £2.293m and some guidance on eligibility criteria.

Capital
General Capital Funding

= Flintshire’s general capital funding has reduced by £0.002m compared
to the provisional settlement of £6.868m.

Gary Ferguson — Corporate Finance Manager (12" Dec 12)

Page 37



Appendix 2

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out
2013114 2013/14

£m £m
APPROVED 2011/12 BUDGET
Community Services
Transition to Adulthood 0.910
Supporting People 0.200
Provision of Hired Transport (0.617)
0.493
Environment
Additional energy cost as a result of new street lighting 0.060
Land searches Income (0.020)
Building Control Income (0.010)
Planning Fees Income (0.010)
Landfill Tax Adjustment 0.032
0.052
Lifelong Learning
Development of Broadband (0.019)
Transport policy review - rationalisation of non statutory entitlement (0.072)
Rationalisation of LEA run Music Service (0.118)
(0.209)
Corporate Services
Employers' Pension - LGPS 0.362
Intrusion Detection & Prevention System Options (0.040)
Changes to Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit Administration Grant 0.062
ISA Registration 0.030
0.414
0.750

Page 38



Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / items Dropping Out

APPROVED 2012/13 BUDGET

Community Services

Increase in Homelessness costs

Homecare - Increased complexity of care

Transition to Adulthood

Occupational Therapy Service

Safeguarding for Adults

Housing Renewal Agency - income

Transfer of Responsibility for Community Centres from HRA
Shortfall in achievement of Provision of Hired Transport efficiency
Management Efficiencies Through Collaborative Working
Team Manager's Post Efficiency

Mold Extra Care Scheme

Environment

Rental Income Shortfalls and NNDR charges for vacant properties
Environmental Waste Management - reduction in grant funding
Revenue Lost due to phased disposal of Agricultural Estates
Implementation of Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP)
Continuation of 2011/12 Landfill Tax efficiency

Food Waste - increased diversion from landfill

Lifelong Learning

Extension of the centrally hosted school Moodle VLE virtual server farm and supporting

infrastructure

Transport Policy Review - rationalisation of non statutory entitlement
Music Service - Adjustment to reflect decision in 2011/12 budget
Saltney Library - Lease

Corporate Services
Internal Insurance Fund Recharge

Business Systems - Software Maintenance Costs

Prudential Borrowing Requirement for Capital Investment

Methods of Payment

Review of Admin and Support (Council-wide)

Procurement Review

Changes to Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit Administration Grant

Council-Wide
Asset Management - planned closure of externally leased properties

Page 39

2013/14
£m

0.106
0.100
0.067

(0.020)
0.046

(0.013)
0.001
0.617

(0.026)

(0.051)
0.300

1127

0.050
0.047
0.026
0.225
0.145
0.128

0.621

0.050
(0.276)

0.118

0.010

(0.098)

0.150
0.019
0.112
(0.075)
(0.300)
(0.022)
0.122

0.006

(0.097)

(0.097)
1.559

Appendix 2

2013/14
£m



Appendix 2

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out
2013/14 2013114

£m £m

ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES
Lifelong Learning
Review of Kitchens (0.150)
Play Areas Additional Allocation for Match Funding (0.022)
Flint Leisure Centre - loss of income due to effects of redevelopment (0.076)
School Maternity Costs (0.060)
Redundancy and early retirement costs from schools (0.219)

(0.527)
Environment
Local Transport Services Grant (0.149)

(0.149)
Corporate Services
Public Sector Broadband Aggregation (0.098)
Base Level of Reserves - "Top-Up to 2% of Turnover (0.088)
Telephone Maintenance (0.031)
County Elections - May 2012 (0.080)

(0.297)

(0.973)

Total Previous years items 1.336

Page 40



Appendix 3

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue
Inflation
£m £m
Pay
Non-Teachers Pay Inflation from April 2013 (1%) 0.914
Teachers Pay Inflation from September 2013 (1%) 0.365
1.279
Price
Targeted General Price Inflation (1-2%) 0.988
0.988
Non Standard
Energy - Street Lighting (10%) 0.079
Energy - Other (8%) 0.285
Fuel (11.2%) 0.187
Food (5.8%) 0.141
Non-Domestic Rates (2.3%) 0.074
0.766
Income (3% - see also Fees and Charges Efficiencies) (0.133)
Total Inflation 2.900

Page 41



Appendix 4

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

New Responsibilities and Transfers Into the Settlement

£m £m

New Responsibilities
Council Tax Support Scheme 8.773
Additional Support (100% from 90%) 0.869

9.642
Transfers In From Specific Grant Funding
Blue Badge Scheme Grant 0.018
Appetite for Life Grant 0.121
School Counselling Grant 0.224
School Breakfasts Grant 0.560
Local Government Borrowing Initiative Grant 0.385
Post 16-SEN in Mainstream Grant 0.126
Post 16-SEN Special Schools and Out of County Grant 1.348
Learning Disabilities Resettlement Grant 1.618

4.400
Total New Responsibilities and Transfers Into the Settlement 14.042

Page 42



Appendix 5

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Pressures and Investments

201314  2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Economic Impact Appendix 5a 0.347 0.347 0.847
Welsh Government Policy / Appendix 5b 0.078 0.088 0.088
Legislative
Other Pressures and Appendix 5¢ 2.545 2.676 3.918
Investments
Council Priority / Invest to  Appendix 5d 0.291 1.888 2.804
Save
Total 3.261 4.999 7.657

Page 43



Appendix 5a

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures and Investments - Economic Impact

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Environment
Rental Income Shortfalls for vacant Properties 0.050 0.050 0.050
Income reduction due to Power Station closures 0.120 0.120 0.120
0.170 0.170 0.170
Lifelong Learning
Reduced income - Deeside Ice Rink 0177 0.177 0.177
0.177 0.177 0.177
Corporate Services
Income reduction - Vacation of former Council Offices , Ewloe - - 0.500
- - 0.500
Total 0.347 0.347 0.847

Page 44



Appendix 5b

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures and Investments - Welsh Government Policy / Legislative

201314 2014115  2015/16

£m £m £m
Community Services
Mental Health - Additional Social Work support 0.032 0.042 0.042
Learning Disability resettlement grant - impact of
transfer into RSG 0.046 0.046 0.046
Total 0.078 0.088 0.088

Page 45



Appendix 5¢

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Other Pressures and Investments
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Community Services
Transition to Adulthood 0.138 0.267 1.506
Family Placement team (Children's Services) 0.110 0.110 0.110
Disabled Facillity Grants / Aids and Adaptations 0.046 0.062 0.062
Independent Sector residential fees 0.115 0.115 0.115
0.409 0.554 1.793
Council Wide
Closure of externally leased properties - revision to previous 0.097 0.097 0.097
efficiency
0.097 0.097 0.097
Corporate Services
Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) checks 0.070 0.070 0.070
Methods of Payment - delayed efficiency 0.075 0.075 0.075
0.145 0.145 0.145
Environment
Landfill Sites - reduced income generation - energy 0.144 0.144 0.144
0.144 0.144 0.144
Lifelong Learning
Review of Schools kitchens - revision to previous efficiency 0.300 0.300 0.300
Cleaning Services - Loss of contract income 0.050 0.050 0.050
Staffing Budget Shortfall following restructure 0.120 0.103 0.103
Music Licensing - increased costs 0.037 0.037 0.037
Health & Safety issues - Deeside Leisure Centre 0.025 0.025 0.025
Transport Policy review - previous efficiency unachieved - 0.348 0.348 0.348
replaced by new efficiencies
Free School Meals - increased demand 0.144 0.147 0.150
School Remissions - increased demand 0.085 0.085 0.085
Schools redundancy / early retirement costs 0.219 0.219 0.219
Schools maternity pay costs 0.060 0.060 0.060
Special Schools Investment - Formula Review 0.250 0.250 0.250
Play Schemes - Match Funding 0.012 0.012 0.012
Music Service 0.100 0.100 0.100
1.750 1.736 1.739
Total 2.545 2.676 3.918

Page 46



Appendix 5d

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures and Investments - Council Priority / Invest to Save

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Council Wide
Investment in Organisational Change and Priorities 0.420 2.000 2.000
Revised Effect of Prudential Borrowing costs for
agreed Capital Projects (change due to revised (0.129) (0.112) 0.804
interest rates and receipt of grant funding)
Total 0.291 1.888 2.804

Page 47



Appendix 6

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures and Investments - One-Off and Time Limited

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Corporate Services
Base Level of Reserves - 2% of Turnover 0.065 0.000 0.000
0.065 0.000 0.000
Lifelong Learning
School Modernisation Programme 0.025 0.000 0.000
Schools Service Level Agreements (SLA's) 0.172 0.000 0.000
Play Areas - Match Funding 0.035 0.000 0.000
0.232 0.000 0.000
Total 0.297 0.000 0.000

Page 48



Appendix 7

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Efficiencies

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Fees & Charges Appendix 7a 0.586 0.723 0.760
Service Change Appendix 7b 1.631 1.569 1.344
Procurement Appendix 7c 1.803 1.949 2.005
Organisational Design Appendix 7d 0.531 0.574 0.574
Other Efficiencies Appendix 7e 0.886 0.913 0.963
Total 5.437 5.728 5.646

Page 49



Appendix 7a

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Fees & Charges

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
EXISTING CHARGES
Community Services
Residential Charging - increased income from 0.100 0.100 0.100
demand
0.100 0.100 0.100
Environment
Agricultural Estate rentals 0.008 0.008 0.008
Public Protection - increase to market rates 0.025 0.025 0.025
Markets Service - increased lettable space 0.019 0.019 0.019
0.052 0.052 0.052
Lifelong Learning
Library Service - Fines 0.001 0.001 0.001
Library - Hire charges increase 0.001 0.001 0.001
Leisure Services - increased charges 0.175 0.175 0.175
0.177 0.177 0.177
Finance - Corporate Services
Revenues - increased number of Council Tax fines 0.027 0.027 0.027
0.027 0.027 0.027
ICT & Customer Services - Corporate Services
Registrars - increased fees 0.019 0.019 0.019
0.019 0.019 0.019
Total 0.375 0.375 0.375

Page 50



Appendix 7a

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Fees & Charges

201314 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
NEW CHARGES
Community Services
Mental Health Service users 0.018 0.018 0.018
0.018 0.018 0.018
Environment
Traffic Regulation order Notices 0.013 0.013 0.013
Streetscene - leachate processing 0.075 0.075 0.075
Car Park Management 0.056 0.102 0.109
0.144 0.190 0.197
Lifelong Learning
Review of post 16 distance limit 0.030 0.051 0.051
Review of Denominational transport provision 0.000 0.070 0.100
0.030 0.121 0.151
Legal & Democratic - Corporate Services
External Fees - conveyancing / S106 agreements 0.015 0.015 0.015
0.015 0.015 0.015
ICT & Customer Services - Corporate Services
Network Services - income from hosting PSBA 0.004 0.004 0.004
equipment
0.004 0.004 0.004
Total 0.211 0.348 0.385
Grand Total 0.586 0.723 0.760

Page 51



Appendix 7b

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Service Change

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

Community Services

Reablement in the level of extra care 0.100 0.100 0.100
Preserved Rights - reduced activity levels 0.053 0.053 0.053
External funding for existing post - Children's 0.043 0.043 0.043
Services

Fam1l_y Placement team - revision of existing 0.040 0.040 0.040
practices

Early retirement - non replacement of staff - CSA 0.015 0.015 0.015
General Office Administration review 0.021 0.021 0.021
Housing efficiency savings 0.028 0.028 0.028
Homelessness - timing of presentations 0.106 0.000 0.000
Youth Justice - appropriate adult service 0.010 0.010 0.010
Legal Fees - use of solicitors / barristers 0.010 0.010 0.010
Children's Services - Transport costs efficiency 0.015 0.015 0.015
Children's Services - FAST team budget reduction 0.010 0.010 0.010
Preventative foster care service - day care 0.005 0.005 0.005

0.456 0.350 0.350

Chief Executive's - Corporate Services
Corporate Comms - reduced workforce bulletins 0.003 0.003 0.003
Emergency Planning - collaborative working 0.000 0.025 0.025

0.003 0.028 0.028

Corporate Finance - Corporate Service
Clwyd Theatr Cymru - Agreed reduction to 0.015 0.015 0.015

0.015 0.015 0.015

ICT & Customer Services - Corporate Services

Information & Business services - use of LLPG 0.000 0.014 0.014

0.000 0.014 0.014

Page 52



Appendix 7b

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Service Change

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£m £m £m

HR & OD - Corporate Services
CRB checks - review of options 0.035 0.035 0.035

0.035 0.035 0.035

Legal & Democratic - Corporate Services

Democratic Services - reduced paper usage 0.010 0.010 0.010
!Vlem.bers A!Iowances (Basic Allowance) - no 0.010 0.010 0.010
inflationary increase

Members Allowances - Special Responsibility
Allowances - reduction of number allocated
Members Allowances - NI contributions reduction
linked to reduced number of Special Responsibility 0.010 0.010 0.010
allowances

0.070 0.070 0.070

0.100 0.100 0.100

Environment

Street Lighting - non-residential areas post midnight
turn-off

nghwa}ys Asset .Managemen.t Plan (HAMP) - 0.225 0.225 0.000
rephasing of full implementation

Public Conveniences - revisit of strategy 0.050 0.050 0.050
Streetscene - implementation of Part Il agreement 0.300 0.300 0.300
Waste Services - vehicle savings from full roll out of 0.140 0.140 0.140
Saturday collection
Business Development team - agile working 0.004 0.004 0.004
Staff travel - reduced mileage payments 0.003 0.003 0.003
Dlreptorate Support .& Performance - Supplies and 0.008 0.008 0.008
Stationery - Streamline current processes

0.050 0.050 0.050

0.780 0.780 0.555

Page 53



Appendix 7b

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Service Change

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

Lifelong Learning

Operational efficiencies 0.025 0.025 0.025
Youth Service - reduction of senior area workers 0.032 0.032 0.032
Youth Service - term time only contracts 0.026 0.026 0.026
Youth Service - Service reconfiguration 0.012 0.012 0.012
Youth Service - Building costs savings 0.011 0.011 0.011
Youth Service - Building rationalisation 0.005 0.010 0.010
reavfgaes - Management / Central Office - structure 0.015 0.015 0.015

Facilities - County Hall revised opening hours -

reduced energy / overtime costs 0.025 0.025 0.025

LL ICT - Interim Service review - post reduction 0.025 0.025 0.025
Leisure Services - removal of swimming subsidy 0.023 0.023 0.023
Directorate Management Team Restructure 0.043 0.043 0.043

0.242 0.247 0.247

Total 1.631 1.569 1.344

Page 54



Appendix 7c

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Procurement

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Community Services
PARIS - post implementation expenditure review 0.030 0.030 0.030
Housing Services - Supplies and Services 0.003 0.003 0.003
Social Care - Supplies and Services 0.075 0.075 0.075

Procurement Hub - regional procurement of high cost low
volume placements

Children's Serwce§ - out of county placements - improved 0.533 0.533 0.533
procurement practice

Transport Review - revised contracts 0.025 0.025 0.025

0.686 0.686 0.686

0.020 0.020 0.020

Chief Executive's - Corporate Services

Employee / Residents Consultations - reduction in number 0.003 0.003 0.003
Supplies and Services 0.010 0.000 0.000
Joint Working - costs reduction 0.002 0.000 0.000
Alterations / Improvements reductions - future agile working 0.002 0.000 0.000
Employee Safety Measures - reduced demand on budget 0.010 0.015 0.015

Commumty Strategy / LSB partnership - reduction in planned 0.000 0.005 0.005
requirements

Conferences/Seminars/Lectures - reduced attendance 0.001 0.001 0.001
0.028 0.024 0.024

ICT & Customer Services - Corporate Services

Training Budget - Procurement via new solutions 0.001 0.001 0.001
Reduced maintenance costs due to new security equipment 0.025 0.025 0.025
Networking Hardware - reduced procurement 0.002 0.002 0.002
ICT Cabling - reduction enabled by IPT solution 0.002 0.002 0.002
Leasing - budget adjustment 0.006 0.006 0.006
Software Licensing - Microsoft licences procured through 0.010 0.010 0.010
other agreements

Hardware Mainatenance - letting of MFD contracts 0.001 0.001 0.001
Reduce influencable spend by 3% 0.004 0.004 0.004
Reduced ICT Expenditure 0.003 0.003 0.003
Rationalisation of third party software costs 0.013 0.013 0.013
Avoidance of inflationary rises - software maintenance costs 0.020 0.020 0.020
Reduced licence costs - via renegotiation 0.018 0.018 0.018
Supplies and Services 0.061 0.061 0.061
Training budget reduction - build around training solutions 0.001 0.001 0.001
Alterations & Improvements - Datacentres 0.004 0.004 0.004
Other Consumables - reduction in expenditure 0.001 0.001 0.001
Hardware Maintenance - new technology with warranty 0.015 0.015 0.015
Listing Paper - More use of electronic means 0.002 0.002 0.002
Enterprise Servers - hardware 0.003 0.003 0.003
Services work and Consultancy 0.004 0.004 0.004

0.196 0.196 0.196

Page 55



Appendix 7c

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Procurement

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
HR & OD - Corporate Services
Supplies & Services 0.009 0.009 0.009

0.009 0.009 0.009

Finance - Corporate Services
Supplies & Services 0.012 0.012 0.012

0.012 0.012 0.012

Environment

Waste Services - Tender Transport arrangements for waste
disposal

Transportation Services - Review of subsidised Bus Service
Contracts and re-tender

0.050 0.050 0.050

0.036 0.036 0.036

Reduction in use of consultants 0.013 0.013 0.013
Reduction in influencable spend 0.025 0.025 0.025
Streamline current processes within Directorate Support 0.020 0.020 0.020

0.144 0.144 0.144

Lifelong Leaming
Reduction of Postage within the Library Service 0.001 0.002 0.002

Out of County - Improved procurement through framework

W 0.385 0.385 0.385
agreements and monitoring of placements.

School Transport Service - Operational efficiencies 0.080 0.120 0.120

0.466 0.507 0.507

Flintshire Futures Programme
E-Procurement and Improved Processes 0.102 0.211 0.267
Internal Fleet Review 0.160 0.160 0.160

0.262 0.371 0.427

Total 1.803 1.949 2.005

Page 56



Appendix 7d

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Organisational Design

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m
Chief Executive - Corporate Services
Reduction in mileage travelled - Emergency Planning 0.001 0.001 0.001

0.001 0.001 0.001
Community Services

Review of Supported Living Service 0.350 0.350 0.350
Service Review of Warden Service 0.018 0.018 0.018
g::tdren s Services - Removal of one team manager 0.040 0.053 0.053
Development and Resources - Rationalisation of 0.050 0.100 0.100
Management Team

0.458 0.521 0.521

Environment

Review Management Recharge to the Communities

First Programme 0.020 0.000 0.000

0.020 0.000 0.000

Lifelong Learning
Libraries - Flexible retirement 0.015 0.015 0.015
Libraries - Library Service Review 0.037 0.037 0.037

0.052 0.052 0.0562

Total 0.531 0.574 0.574

Page 57



Appendix 7e

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Efficiencies - Other

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

Flintshire Futures Programme

Assets Workstream - Facilities Management 0.060 0.060 0.060
Assets Workstream - Office Rationalisation 0.000 0.077 0.077
Customer Workstream - Contact Centre 0.100 0.100 0.100
Customer Workstream - Face to Face Customer 0.100 0.100 0.100
Contact

Customer Workstream - Channel Shift 0.100 0.100 0.150

0.360 0.437 0.487

Corporate Financing - Corporate Services

Reduced contingencies - one-off investment costs 0.240 0.240 0.240
Reduced contingencies - NDR 0.077 0.077 0.077
Reduction in Fire Levy due to formula changes 0.027 0.027 0.027

0.344 0.344 0.344

Environment
Agricultural Estates - balance not required 0.025 0.000 0.000
Licensing / Health & Safety - balance not required 0.025 0.000 0.000

0.050 0.000 0.000

Lifelong Learning
Demographic Change in Schools (pupil numbers) 0.132 0.132 0.132
0.132 0.132 0.132

Total 0.886 0.913 0.963

Page 58



Appendix 8

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Specific Grants

Budget Projection Variance to Confirmed (C)
2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 or Estimated (E)
£ £ £
Lifelong Appetite For Life (1) 128,233 (128,233) C
Learning Basic Skills 316,000 316,000 0 E
Non Delegated Community Learning 3,278 3,311 33 E
Families First 1,676,539 1,735,118 58,579 E
Post 16 SEN provision in schools (1) 1,484,465 (1,484,465) Cc
Education of Travellers 81,534 89,687 8,153 E
Flying Start 1,566,170 1,652,623 86,453 E
Foundation Phase 4,818,344 5,021,196 202,852 E
Foundation Phase Pilot/Early Start Funding 39,581 39,581 0 E
Free School Milk 179,773 179,773 0 E
Free Swimming 60+ 60,000 60,000 0 E
Free Swimming Children/Young People 104,807 104,807 0 E
Funding for Youth Work Training in Wales 22,000 22,000 0 E
Learning Pathways 14-19 664,080 664,080 0 E
Minority Ethnic Achievement 101,822 106,913 5,091 E
National Exercise Referral 0 125,000 125,000 c
NE Wales Play Forum 61,660 61,660 0 E
Primary School Free Breakfast Initiative (1) 707,382 (707,382) Cc
School Effectiveness Grant 1,078,580 1,078,580 0 E
School Uniform Financial Assistance Scheme 30,080 30,080 0 E
School-based counselling services (1) 228,134 (228,134) C
Unlocking the Potential of Special Schools 45,572 45,572 0 E
Welsh Language (Athrowen Bro and WEG) 218,568 226,611 8,043 E
Welsh Medium Bilingual Grant 46,940 46,940 0 E
Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes 87,320 87,320 0 E
Youth Service Revenue Grant 90,330 90,330 0 E
13,841,192 11,787,182 (2,054,010)
Delegated DCELLS (Post 16 provision in schools) 6,025,131 6,025,131 0 E
6,025,131 6,025,131 (/]
Community Funding to Implement the Mental Health Act 2007 12,770 12,770 0 E
Services LD Strategy Resettlement (1) 1,649,536 0 (1,649,536) E
Social Care Workforce Development Programme 346,969 346,969 0 E
Supporting People 7,109,307 6,824,935 (284,372) E
Well Being Activity 25,000 25,000 0 E
Youth Service Community Safety Grants 60,851 60,851 0 E
YOT / Youth Justice Board 327,280 327,280 0 E
9,531,713 7,597,805 (1,933,908)
Environment  Communities First 873,205 708,911 {164,294) E
Concessionary Travel 1,917,131 1,970,427 53,296 E
Crime Reduction and Anti Social Behaviour 144,461 144,461 0 E
Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator Funding 27,500 27,500 0 E
Local Transport Services 397,572 399,062 1,490 E
Planning - Delivering for Wales 70,000 70,000 0 E
Safer Communities Fund 205,446 221,882 16,436 E
Substance Misuse 833,165 926,141 92,976 E
Sustainable Waste Management 3,334,303 3,287,189 (47,114) E
Tidy Towns 90,233 81,742 (8,491) E
7,893,016 7,837,315 (55,701)
Corporate LSB Development Support Grant 50,000 50,000 0 E
Services 50,000 50,000 0
Total 37,341,051 33,297,433 (4,043,618)

1 Transferring into settlement

Page 59



oam Jad 063 Jo Buliao e si a1ay) pue asuanbasuod e se
sebieyo 0} spew aq [|IM Sasealdu| ON "S}iomjau poddns
JOYJ0 wWol} soAiejuasaidas pue siapjoyayels Jaylo yim
Buibebus os|e pue yoeosdde 8)e10}081IP-SS0IO B BUIA|OAUI
pJeog WIOey SJBYOAA 9Y} UNM YIOM S [IDunod 8yl
Jo aAoadsiad Jopim 8y} os|e Si @18yl “wlojel alejjam
Jo sjoedwi 8y} Ag pajosye Sjuslid Ypm aull juod) sy}
e Buijesp yejs |e 10} Bujuies) aAisusjul 8q osje [|Im a1y |
"wiea) sybiy aJej|opn 8Y) pue saljiwel ypm Ajgsold buisiel|
yom aanesaald yum diay o} yejs |euonppe 1o} spew
Buiaq sI uoisinold “saljiwe} djay 0} uaye) o4 |IM yoeoidde
211S1j0Y B pUB ‘|1Iouno?) 8y} JO 9]0YM 3} 10} Wiojal alejoap\
Jo sjoedw ay) je bupjoo| wes) ajesodiod ayl yum A|gsojo
Bunjiom ale siebeuew s8o1AI8S YjeaH B |eloos ‘sjoedu
10841p 8y} 10} apew Bulaq s uoisinoid oioads ou ybnoyyy
"1oedwi ue aq |jIM aJay) Jejnoiued ul spjeusq 1o swodul
paonpal U0 aJe sajjlwe} aJ9YA\ opew ase sabieyo

£,9Sealoul 0} aAey sabieyd uaung jjim
pue ‘spew Bulaq ale suoisiroid Jeym ‘sjesodoid 1ebpng

alaym s20IM9s 104 Apejnoiped sjoedw| aq [Im 818yl JUSLIND 3Y) U0 SABY WLIORY alejjopp |IIm 1oedwl Jeypy = | Z2°L°L
£,801A19s Buia papoddng
‘S90IAJes 0} apew Bujaq sebueyo Aue 0) Jo malnas "B somes ay) o) epew ase sabueyo Aue
Joud pajsjdwod aq |m sjuswssasse Joedwi Ajljenb3 ‘se A a10joq pojejdwos aq sjuswssasse joedwl Ajenbs JIpn = [ LTL7L
SONSS| / Sjuslio) [eiduds | 'L
SaNss| / SjusWWo) YjjeaH R [e1dosS | 0°L
:sasuodsay :suolsany) pue susawWLWo) -ON

¥1/S10Z S[esodold jobpngd [eniu] - J)[eoH g [e190S

ANILNYHIS ® M3IIAYIANO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 60



*J 11 uonoag Japun papoddns
S|ENPIAIpUl J0BYE JOU [|IM NG SI9Sn 8JIAIBS JBUJ0 Ypm
aul| Ul slasn aoIMBs yyeay |ejusw sbuuqg siyy pabieydo
u9aq JOU 9ABY SJBSn 92IA8S Yjeay |ejuswl Aj|eouolsiH

‘sieak ainjn} 10} Ul paiojoe)
usaq sey ymoib uonendod jeyy usAlb sem uoljeulijuo)

‘uoine|ul
Aed uou pue spiseme Aed ajqissod 1o} uoisinold ‘suoisioap
196pnq sieaA snoinaid jo sjoedwl ‘vL/gL0Z Ul SBI0UBIDIYS
pue sainssaid mau jJo aneAa ay) sjos|jel ainbly a8yl

"uoN|os }seq a8y} aq 0} palapISuod
S| sauNwwod [eoo] uiyum sdoad Buuelay @M
BuIAI pue saljijioe} aled eljxa Buipn|oul s8oIAes paje|al
eljuswWap Joj} aJIysiul|4 ulyum poddns JO [8AS] 8y} O spew
sem Juswabpamouyoy "S8JIAI9S UO puewsp [euolippe
ue aq 0] payadxs sem aivy] “Jesppun s| syedwl jo
JUSIXa 8y} Sk SYsu 8y} SSNasip 0} sanuoyIny Buunoqybiau
pue aJlysjull4 wouy soAljejuasaidal Jo wnioj B pjoy o}
papuajul os|e si }| "Ajljigeulelsns uo saipnjs YN aie aiay)
pue anssi [euoieu e sl } ‘gHNDg wolj seAleuasaidal
yum Bunssw e Buipnpur ‘Ajuoud As) e 8q [IIM MBIASI
uabin "eaise ysu Jofew e aq o} pabpsimoudoe sem siyl

¢uodn joeduwi siy}
[IIM OUM - SI9sn 82IAI9S Y)|esH |ejus|\ 1o} sabieyd maN

"aJIysjul|4 uiyum Aem Japun Ajjusuno sjuswdojaasp
fuisnoy meu Jolew ase aiay)l eyl buisiuboosl
soolnJes  puno) uo  ainssaud  Bumnd  uonendod
Ul SeseaJoul ainjny Jnode pasiel SBM UISdUOD Y

‘S90IAISS
alen |e100S auluol) Aey Jo uonosjosd Ul JuSWISIAUI
10} W@’ L3 4o ainby pajonb ayy uo Ybnos sem uoiedyueld

"Spaau a1ed eIUSWSP YJIM SJUSI[O 10} JIoUN0D
sy} uo peoeld Buleq susping [euopippe ul Bupnsal
(gaHNOg) pseog uiesH Aysiealun Jpejempe)d Isieg
oy} Aq epew suoisioap Jo alysjuljl4 uo soedwi ainyny
a|qissod 0] pajejas uJBdUOD 8Y] "SUOIIPUOD Eeljuswap
ylMm Sjualjo 10} uoisiaoid Jnoge paesiel SEM UISDOUOD Y

oLl

Sl

il

€Ll

:sasuodsay

:suonsany pue spudWWo)

‘ON

¥1/S10Z S[esodoid 1obpngd [eniu] - (eoH 3 [e190S

ANILNYOS ? MIIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 61



‘ajeudoidde se a1ed9|9) JO asn Jayuny
pue SasIAI8S JaY0 Yyum Aous)sisuod ainsus o} sebeyoed
aied bBumelnes ‘soinles  Buial  papoddns  asnoy-ul
ayy 0] sojdiouud ubisap jeuonesiuebio Buifidde ‘ainjonis

¢, PaABIYoe aq SIy} [|IMm moy - Aouaioiye abie| A1aA e s|

Juswsebeuew sy} Bumsiaal apnpoul pasodosd sabueyn siy] - (wWOsE 03F) 9o1nuas Bula] pauoddng ay) JO MaINSY = L'
sapuaPyl | 0
"S9INSEaLL JUSWIUIBA0SL) YS|9\ JO uoljonpodjul ¢, ainssaud siy} yoddns 0} 8jgejieae
Y] JO }nsal B SB |IDUN0) By} O} S)S0D |euohippe apew usaq bBuipuny |euonippe Aue sey - JUSWUISAOD
JO UOBINWNOOE |[BISAO UB S| 38loy] "JUSWUIBA0D ysiop Agq apew sabueys aapelsibal / Aoijod jo ynsal e se
Us|oM wolj pajedojie usaq sey Buipun) [euonippe ON wzeo'03 (Hoddns HJIOAA [BI00S [eUOHIPPY) YleSH [BJUSIN = | €2
"spaau
uoneldepe [aAa] MO| umo J18y) Hoddns o} pajsodubis aq o}
sjualo abeinoous o) Buissalboid os|e si YOAA “sisidelay) ‘yuow Aq yjuow sjetsaal Jo jaquinu
|[euonedno2o 8y} 1oj peoj ased sy} ul Ajoeded ases|al Buiseaiour sy} Buuopisuod Junowe |lews B SwWwoas
pInoys yoiym eaie Ayjeoo| Jad jsod z; Joj uoisiroid 480 9L/5102 Pue GL/rL0Z W wg9o'03 o} buisu woy003
uoddng Ayjigesiq [euonippe apiaoid [im pig ainssaud ay | Jo unowe ainssaid 8y} - swel Ajpoeq psgesiq =| 272
‘Ajsnoinald usasaloj usag aAeY },upjnod Ydlym puewsp
9JIAI9S UO S9OUSBNjjul pue SIOjoe} MdBU JO }nsal e se
¥1L/£102 ul Juswaiinbas ymoib Jeuonippe sy} Inq ‘sieakh "POOYYNPY O} uolisuel] 10} 91/GL0C Ul WY0S L3
snolnald ul paroidde Apeasje JuswiiseAul Jod|jas juop 0] $L/£L0Z Ul wgeL'0F wolj junowe aunssaid ay)
sainbly ay] "9joAo JeaA aaiy) e si ssaodoud }ebpng 8yl ul asealoul ay} Buipiebas pajsanbal sem uoneue|dxs Uy = (A
sainssald | 0¢
:sasuodsay :suonsand pue sjUaWIWOY) ‘ON

V1/E10Z Siesodoid jobpngd [eniu] - Uj[esH g [e190S

ANILN™YEOS ?® M3IAYIAO

6 xXipuaddy

Page 62



WNIpS|\ s,Iouno) 8y} pue sieak snoinaid ul pajdope
usaq sey yoiym yoeoidde sy} ypum jussIsSuod Si SIYL

‘sabus|jeyo mau ay} yum ssoueul)
Buiublje ul |eoipel aiow Bwo29q 0} pPdsu [[IM dm pue
uondo ue jou s| onb snjejs ay| "SadIAISS aul| Juod) 1o8j0.d
0} ABajens uno jo yed Asy e siI sainjn{ anysjul|4 -ainin}
ay) Joj Apadosd asedoid am jey) ainsua 0} pasu am
pue sjjejd |eijuajod Jo aseme aie am A}|IJBJOA JO BWi} B )Y

¥ 1L/€1L0T Ul UOKO||00 XB| [1PUn0)
uo paAsiyoe snidins B ag mou [Im a1ay} ey} sjqissod
SI )l 0S ‘9, 66 Adewolsno I1no 0} pasoddo se xe] [1ounod
Jo 9% G'26 Bunos|oo oy uoisinoid spews pey SpA ‘1g9p
peq Jo swuia) ul ailysjul4 Joj joedwl |eloiysusq e aq ||Im
aJoy) ‘pabueyo aq Jouued aseq xe] [1ouno) ay) ybnoyy

‘sainssald JO anjeA ay} ul WG 3 Jo
uolnonpal e pue wg3 Builjjejo} saioualolye Jo uoneoyuspl
0} Buipes| ssoooid oabusjeyo pue malnas Ayjbus| e
apnjoui siy| ‘sainssaid jo uojeulwexs snosobu e o} Joud
julod Buiuels ay) sem Anp je se deb 1obpng w3 8yl

ilesodoid mau e
Auadosd @ pueg e ul asealou| %¢ e Jo uondwnsse ay} sj

"Jaqwiaoaq
»8l UO J8uIgeD o) podal 8y} ul pajels se [1Iouno) Mmsu
syl pue snoaid sy} usamiaq jobpng ,suols buiddsss,
e bBuleg siyl usemjeq asoualssylp 8yl Ajuejp ssesid

$1gep peq Joj uoisiroid spew
pey Yyoiym s|iounod Ajunwiwio) pue umo| 8souy) Joj aseq
Xe} |1ouno) ayy pabueys ainny ay) ul %01 Aed 0} Jouaq
Xe] [I9uno) %001 paAedal Aisnoinaid oym ajdoad awos
Jo} paau ay} jo |eaowads ay) o) Bunejas wioy aleysm
UO JUSWSOUNOUUER JUSWUIBAOS) US|I9AM\ Jusdal 8y} seH

{paulejdxa aq Jequsos( 8l Je WG'L3
o} Ajnp ur w13 wouy deb 3o6pnqg ay} ul uononpal ay) uen

Sonss| / sjueiio) 9jelodio)

Vi

€l

¢l

[

0L

SIVIAIBG ajeso0dion - INO 1yvd

:sasuodsay]

:suolIseny pue sjuaWWo)

‘ON

Y1/€10Z Sjesodoid }dbpng |[el}iu] - S3JIAISS 9jeloa.lo’n

ANILNYOS '® MIIALIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 63



S) J9ow 0} 8|qe aq [|is pinom Auedwod ayy jey} ainsue
0] papusjul alom awi} ay) Je aoeid ul Ind alem Yolym
sjuswabuese yo-uni 8yl "ze6l ul Aoydnujueq paodey |ININ

MN |y ul
om] Ajuo Jo suo pue ssjepp Ul asnoy Buonpoud Ajuoyine
[eo0] Ajuo 8y} sI D1D °|IPUN0) SHUY 8y} Wolj sawod
%,09 Bululewsas sy "s)}sod Buiuuni 1y} Jo %01 punole si
Uolym D19 0} Wiye0' L3 SaNqUIuod Apuaund [ounod ay L

*sBulp|ing 18y3o dn 831} 0} ||eH Ajuno) ojul
a|doad aljow Buibuuq aie opp "Al}S0D SI 8SN uIapow 1o}
way) Buppiomas pue pjo ate sbuip|ing Jno jey) asiuboosi
0] ©ABY ©M JNQg uoljes||euoijel swoOS 8uUOp 8ABY SAA

‘suonenobau
|euoneu Ag paujwlialap aq |m pseme Aed Aue jo Junowe
ay] ‘pseme Aed Aue Jo Junowe sy} asusnjjul A|uessaosu
Jusaop uoisinoid 196png JO Junowe 8y} ‘JSASMOH "SBA

‘JUBLILIBAOS) US| WO} DAID08) 9M
(98Y) ueIs Hoddng anusAay JO JUNOWE 8y} JO 8snedsq
)} BABIYOE 0] %€ ueU) Jayjel %9 AQ Xe] |1ouno) asealoul
0] pesu Ajenoe pjnom am ‘juswssasse bBulpuads
pJepuejs Jno 0} dn puads 0} alom am JI asneosq s! SIy L

'(S41N) ABejeng |eroueuld wua |

(INNW) Auedwod souelnsu| jeninjp|
[edioiunpy Jawuoy ay} 4oy uoisinoid Bupjew am ase AYp

&(010) nwAD

Jjeay | pAM|D 01 8)NQuUIUOD {IDUNOYD By} SB0P Yonw MoH

;alqissod se Ajuaioyje se aoeds a01j40 Jno ash am og

ionsieas pieme Aed ¢, | e sj

((VSS) wswssassy bulpuadg piepuels mojeq wge/’ L3
je 186png |m am jeyy uondwnsse ue aiay) si AYm

6’1

8l

L'l

9l

gl

:sasuodsay

:suoljsany pue sjuawwo)

‘ON

Y1/£10¢ S|esodoldd jabpng |eljiu] - S83IAI8G ajelodlio)

ANILNYOS 8 M3IIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 64



‘Aouasedsuel)
JO 9yes ay} Joj usag sey }I Se umoys sem Ingq Wse0' 03

WGE0 03 Jo Aouaioiye
ue osje pue syo8yo (gyD) neaing spiodsy [eulwl)

Jo ainssaid B Se JO papau usaq 8AeYy pinod siyj 1o} WQ/Z0°03 Jo ainssaid 18bpng e Bumoys am ase AU e | |'L'2
sainssald | L'
juowidojoAaQ [euonesiuebi) pue Sa2inosay uelny
SONss| / SjusWIIo)) S9JIAISG Jjelodio) | 02
"swins pajesayjodAy Aawuoy 1oajoid snyy pue Jodssed,
am ey} sI ABajel)S |elouBul4 WIS| WNIPS|\ N0 UIYyIM
paulejuoo so|dipuud 8y} jJo auQ ‘uads s| Asuow ley)
MOY 0} SE 82104d |B20| JO SNSS| UB SaWo029q MOu asn s Jjunowe |euonou
Jey] sueaw Juswayas ay} oul jueib oyoads e Ajlsnolneid 3y} Jnouoy am op ‘Juswsies pajesayjodAy-uou ayy ol
SEM UOIUM B8dueul 8y} JO Jdjsuel} 8yl ‘Op am S8A pawnsgns Apuanbasgns si yoiym ‘Juesb (psjessyjodAy)
oloads B panldas  Aisnonald aAeYy am  USUM e | QL)L
"S19p|0Y 8oUBINSU| 18WI0)
JO spasu 8y} }esw 0} Jainsul 8y} o|qeus o} juswAed
wniwaid aAnoadsonas e 40} payse bBulwq AjpAnosys
ale (senuoyiny jusnyjsuod  salysiul4  Buipnjoul
MN 8yl ul 1sow) NN AQ palaAaod atem yolym saijuoyiny
asoy] -o|qissod Jabuo] ou sI Sy} ey} umoys sey
SWIe[D JU8Jal JO Jus)xa ay} ‘JanamoH ‘suonebljqo ouolsiy
:sasuodsay :suolsand pue sjuswiwo) ON

Y1/€1L0Z S|esodold 1abpng jeiiu] - S8JIAISS ajelod.io)

ANILNYOS ® MIIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 65



"uo payJom buiaq
Aauno ale spiq Ajuoud ¢ - salpoq alignd Jo Jsqunu
e Buinjoaul sebBueyo jueoiiubis pue mau o) 8q 0} Spaau }

‘Bunssw sapIwWwod Auljniog yoes je passnosip aq ||Im
pue uodal j19bpng ayl uiyum papnioul ase sjesodoud ||y

‘pieog saining aJysiuij4
8y} uo pajuasaldal mou aie siaquiaj pue sjuswabuele
aouewIdA0b pasinal 0} anp saloualolje sauning aliysiull4
JO diysiaumo JapiM B MOU S| alay] ‘psesiieal uaaq pey
126pnq 8y} ul pajosjes saloualdlye ay} Jo 9% 68 uinino
|euy 1y “JeaA ay} Jnoybnolayy spodas Buuojuow jebpng ul
pajospal sem sajoualod jo Buuojuow ‘gL/L1L0Z Buung

XE] WO001PaQ, 8y} Jnoge pajoejuod uss(q
aABY SJuBUS| |1IDUNOD O0L‘L punoly ‘snid anus) qor
pue neaing 92IAPY Suazi) 8y} se yons sisuped [Bo0|
sapn|oul pue Apejnbal s)ssw pieog WIojoy alejlsapn 8yl

‘Ajuo uoisinoud e si sjesodoud }@6png ay} ul papnjoul
9% | 8y} pue suolenobau jeuoljeu o0} Joalgns aie sasu Aed

¢, pund uonesoge||o) [euoibay
8y} JO JusWale SajeA\ YLON 8y} Joj BUSjID 8y} ale Jeym

;. sebieyo pue seaj uo [Iejop aiow }ab am |Im usypn

;sBUIABS JO JUBWAASIYOE JOJUOW pUB OB} M Op MOH

PIENET YT
Jnoge sapuNWIWOoD wioul 0} Bupe) am ale sdals Jeym

¢;8su Aed e Buini@oal sJayoes)-uou pue si1ayoes) ale Ay

Sonss| / Sjualuiio) 9jeiodio)

ol

vl

€1l

Al

bl

:sasuodsay

:suolISaNY pue SUAWWOD

¥1/€102 s|jesodold }obpng [el}iu] - JusiuodiAug

ANILNYDS B8 M3IAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 66



plemio ay) Ui papnjoul aq o} s| Abajens juswabeuep
Jo)lep\\ pue pooj4 bBulbiswe a8yl ‘sjueib Op pue

¢196png ay

swwelboid [eydes 8102 8y} ul papnjoul 8ie SUONeJo|ly e | Ul P3ISPISUOD ussq Ksuyeg Bunosye senssi pooj} dABH e | |7
‘uons|dwod
Jo sabejs jualaylp 1e yoes ‘Buiobuo ||1is ale smalral J8yjo ¢9oleloyalg
ay) Inq ‘a)ajdwoo MOU S| MBIASI SJIAISS BUSIS)IBal)S By e JUSWIUOJIAUT 8y} ulypm a)ajdwiod mou uoljesiuebio-als| e | g’z
‘(suapieg
Jamo]) |IomAjoH pue uopoys |enua) ‘sAmuse) ‘uledjl) e ¢,9S0| ||IM Jey) S8ousjuaAu0d oliqnd ¢ 8y} 81 YJIYM | Z2°L'C
‘fidwe Yyo| sbuip|ing 89S 0} Juem jou pip
‘paysijowsap aq |m sBulp|ing ay) usy} punoj siaquajy - SedualusAuod olgnd ay} Buisofo Joy sdeld ul
olE BUOU J pUE Sasn aAleuls)e o1ebisaaul [Im sieoO e | INd g pinom ueld pajielsp e jey} ybnos sem aoueinssy e | L'L'C
SONSS|/SjUsIWIO) [eJduads) | L'Z
Sonss| / SjusWWio) JusWUOIIAUT | 0°2
aliysjull4
ssoioe sanunuoddo diyseonuaidde uo passnoo) desy ‘'sassauisnq
‘si1epjoyeyels pue Buiutes buojay] yum sAemyjed saiby e | [00| / S868]j00 OjuIl Hul| S|OOYDS ||e JON - sdiyseonuaiddy e | -,
‘ajelnooe Ajqeuoseal
usaq oAey suonolpaid AjesuolsiH  “paldinbal  usym
pue se sajelo)oaliq O} pasesjal Ajuo s| pue Ajgjeiodiod
p|j2y S! uoneyul plepuels uou Joj uoisiaoid jebpng e isuonoipald uoeul punole am aJe JUspyuod MOH e | 9°|L
:sasuodsay :suonsanp pue sjusawiwod ON

y1/€102 siesodold jobpng |eniu] - juswiuoliaug

ANILNYOS B MIINYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 67



‘lIouno) ay) ojul pauajsuely buiaqg "p1] sIsep QY
Jauwo} ay} wouy Buiynsal Jajsuel} }osse ay} Jo Jed alem
soulbue ay] ‘-ainssaisd mau By} wiojul O} N0 palled
usaq sey sauibus ay} jo ndno sy} ojul podal psjejep

¢ painboe
Kay) alam moH ¢ Buljes Asyy ate Aym ‘obe Jeah e Jybnog
soulbus seb ay} JLualapy - SO)S ([ypue| je uonelsusb

v "obe sieah Jo Jaqunu e Jybnog aiam sauibus seb ay| ABiaue 10j Wyl 0F Jo woey ainssaid oy} Buipieboy e Le
sainssald | 0'¢
‘Abajells sng |euoibay e Buneasd yum payse} ale yye| ¢,99Iwwoo Aunniog
99O AUINIDS puB MIIAISAQ JUSWUONAUT pue MaIAIBAQ JuswuoiAug Aleniga4 8y} je uoissnosip
ay jo Bunssw Alenigad oy} }e paiapisuod aq [[IM SIYyL ay} Jo yed siy} si - S90IAISS Sng 10} Juels) podsuel] |00 e | G'L°Z
‘aapiwwo) Auniog
¥ MBIAIBAQ JUSWUOJIAUT 8y} Joj aswwelsboiqd OAN
:sasuodsay :suolsanyd pue sjuawwo) ON

¥1/€10Z s|jesodold jabpng [eljiu] - Juswiuodiaug

ANILNYOS B MIIANIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 68



"2a)llwo9 Aulnios
puB MBIABAQ JUSWUOIAUTY 8y} Je apew Sjusuwod

¢£,99)ILWOoo
AUinIog pue MaIAIBAQ JUSWUOIIAUT 8Y) e uoljelapisuod
Bumojjo} suoisinel  epnpul  Asyy op Jo  ‘JBuige)d
Je palopisuod alam yoiym sjesodosd 8yl uo psseq

ay) Bumojjo} uo paxiom Buiaq sI  xipuaddy pasinel ¥ e | Syl S| - WG 03 40 Aousioye Juswabeuew Bupped je) | gz
‘€102 isjesodoud (e
yoldep\ ui Jauigen o} yodal Bunybi 1991S 8y} ul papnjoul uo pa)NSuU0d aq pinom aljgnd ay} pue siaquusw |BoO| Jey}
aq |m suosuedwod sbuineg -Aolod Bunybiq 18848 pue way} Buiwwip ueyy sadeayd s yo sybi Buiyopms
Buibiaws sy} jo Yed se uiebe Je payoo| 89 |IM Jajjew ay] e | ey} uonou ay} dn yoeq o} pajsanbas sem ueld ssauisnqy e LY
sapuadIiy3 | 0Y
:sasuodsay :suonsany pue sjuswiwo) ON

¥1/€10C Slesodold }9bpng |eljiu] - JustiuodiAug

ANILNYOS B M3IIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 69



‘AloAI|ap
2oines  Bulobuo 10} S80IN0Sal  JUSIDIYNS  BABD|  [|IM

"90IAI8S SUapIep
JusapIsay 8yl U0 MaIneY 8BS By} wol bBuisue

sjsod juedea Jualno 8y} Jo suo a)8ep 0} |esodoid sy wgLo'03 Jo Aocusmoie ayl uo ybnos sem uoljeuloju] e | L'2°C
CEIRIEIRITE] A4
*10)08s ajeAld
pue oignd ay} yioq yym bBuiesp ul 9|qixs)} 8q 0} psau
[IM [IDUn0D 8y} pue sjuas 10joas ajeAud yum swsjqoud
10} |enuajod e s) alay] "Swiojoy diej|d\\ JO 8ousnbasuod ésuononpal
e se ainssaid Bulbiows ue s| siy} jeyy ssiuboosl weuaq Jo joedwi ay} o)} anp sjual Jojoas 8jeAud yum
OM SB 9JIAISS SSOUSSI[aWOH 8y} U0 puewsp pasesloul swajqo.d Jo} |enusjod e os|e alay} S| pue ‘saljiqisuodsal
lenusjod 1o} epew ussaq sey uoisiaoid sjenbapy SSOUSSS|aWOH JNo 1o} Apjusioyns pajebpnqg am 8ABH e | |2
SoNnss|/sjusaliuio) [efdudd | L2
SONsSS| / SjUsWIIO) pung [IDUno) BuUIsSnoH | 02
‘g|qissod se yonw se uoisod
s |louno) ay} 108joid 0} JOPIO Ul pasiwIXew ussq aAey ¢ buipuny
suoneoldde juelb ng ‘yum jesp Buleq aie Yoiym seale Juesb psonpal jo awy e ul Ayyesy os oq o} Jeadde
awIos Ul S|aAa)] Juelb paonpas Buusjunodus S| [IoUNoY ay | N saop AYM -onsiwido 00} S| usalb ainjoid |[eJSAO BY] e | 7L
SONsS| / sjuawiwio) ajerodio) | 0°'L
:sosuodsayj :suonsaNY pue sjUaWWOH N

V1/c10Z Siesodoid 1ebpng [eniu] - pung [louno) BUISNOH

ANILNYEOS B M3IIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 70



ay} uiyum spiq 1ayjo apisbuoje palepisuod aq |IIm SIYL pue )se] sawayss Aejd 8y} uo uaAIb sem doeqpeed e | z'|'Z
"Jeak ¢Jeah
-u1 196png sjooyos ay} a91is-do} J,uUsaop |1DuUNo) 8y "ON jeloueuly B Ulyum paol|s-do} Jans sjooyos Joj jebpngayis| e | |12
S9NsS[/Sjualiwio) [e1dudn (A
Senss| / sjuawiwio)) buiuiea| buojaji 02
‘sdiyopoom "6-a ‘|10 aoe|das 0} ABisua
JO swiIo} aAeulsy)e Huibeinoous 0} MaIA B YlIM S9OIAIBS
ABiaug ul sanbea|joo yum Bunpom osje ate am ABlaus
uo sainssaid Aleuonepul Jaybiy yum Ss|ooyos 8soy)
1 uonepul ABisus jabiey 0} Buiwie ale am ‘Jaasmoy 'sjobpnq ABisua sjooyos
‘sjooyos 0} uonebaep By} ulyum papnpul si SIyl uo uoneyul Jo syays ay) Buipsebal pasies sem Alenb vy e el
‘'sableyo
Sal}|Ioe} Ul asealoul a8y} AQ paJaAod 8q ||IMm 99IAI8S 8y} 0)
S]S0D |euolippe 9say) Jey) siseq sy} uo }8bpnq sedineS ¢ sjuawdojanap mau ay} 1o} sjuswAedal
ainsia] 8y} Jo 1o Joj pied ale syuswAedal ueo| ay| ‘SOA ueo| ay)} JoA0D 0} aAeY }obpnq S8o1AI8g aInsiaT] 8y} seoq e Z'l
196png umo
S} ulyym woly sasiwaid sy Jo siasn tayjo Buisipisqns
Apuaund si @dimes ymnoA ayl ‘sjesododd oyoads £,S81juad YnoA s 1ouno)
wol} Bunjnsal saseasoul pajebie} osjie nq sabieyo ay} Jo siesn Jo} suoneo|dwi jusnbasuod yum pleoq
pue s83) U0 8sealoul 9% ¢ |esausb e aq |Im alayl ay} ssouoe 9, ¢ AQ pasealoul aq sabieyo pue sa9) I e L'l
SONsS| / Sjuawiwio’) ajesodio) 0L
:sosuodsay :suoljsany pue sjuawWWo) ON

¥1/€10C Slesodold }Jabpng [eliu] - buluieaT buojaji

ANLLN™OS B M3IIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 71



asl|iqels 0} }16pnq s [1IoUN0D 8y} Ul papnjoul Si JUnowe uy

‘alns|a]
aouelly yum Absjens e jo juswdojeasp Buipnjoul
yoeoidde pejebie} e Buisn Ajuauno aie pue bBunsyiew
10} pasu a8y} JO SNOIOSUOD ale SIBDIYQO pue SsJaquuisyy

"0} 8|qeun 8q P|NOM [IDUN0Y) 8U} Sealaym }S0D au}
asijendes o} a|qe aq pjnom [ooyds ay) Jabpnqg pajebsjep
B UJIM [O0UDS B 10} SINDD0 SIY} 9I8YA\ 'SOSBO [BnpIAIpUl
JO SSOUBISWNDIID |enpIAlpUl 8y} uo puadap ued Siyl

"Je pay0o0| aq ||IM }sanbai siy

“aooUul
ul yo-doip ou Sem alsy} pue Alenuep ul paseaioul
alom S99 "usyeuapun usaq sey Bupuewyouaq [njaieD

"alempley jeuolyippe aseyaind 0} sjooyos a8y} 1o}
pue S|O0YDS Ul SUOI}9BUU0D pueqpeolq ay} aAoidwli 0} SI
Buipuny siy] JuswuIdanog) ysiepn Aq panoidde ussq sey
sleak ¢ 10} soje N ||B ssouoe wee3 jo Buipuny juelb meN

‘'ssao0.d }9bpng

sjooyos Jo uonebajap ay} uo ybnos sem uonesilel)

£21ud) aIns|a] apisaa(
Je sjuawdojoAsp mau Joj Bunpeyiew Jo Moe| e alay)l s|

isalnal
Jayoes) B usym Asuow BIXd [I0UN0D By} }S0D I s80(Q

£S|1ouno)
Ajunwwo) pue umo] wolj sisanbai jo Jequnu Jaybiy
ay} Bunosw je Yoo| am ued - sealy Ae|d Buipiebey

¢ Buipusye sjdoad ssa)| 0} pea| Ajuo
sa)jusn ainsia] ul sabieyd pue sasy ayy Buisealoul (I

£IUBWUIBN0S) ys|apA Ag pasiwoud
SE S|00YdS 0} paisAllsp 8q puegpeolq Jisise} [ MOH

"S)IS Z pue S)aam ¢ JO uoisiroid aseq mau ay)
aseaJoul 0} Buipuny yojew ajeyoes o) ainssaid }obpng
e se pappe aq 00/‘L 13 1ey} }senbai e ypm ‘dnoib ysiui4

8'l¢

L'l¢

oL¢e

g'lre

vl

€le

:sasuodsay

:SUO0I)SaNY pue SUBWWOY)

‘oN

¥1/€10¢ S|esodold jabpng [ejiu] - bujutea’ buojaji

ANILNYEDS B M3IIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 72



2diysjulld
10} A10)s sse00ns |eal e aq o} Buinoid aie sjooyss |eloads
syl ‘sjeas| buiyels anosdwi diay o} sjesodoisd 1abpng
3y} Ul papnjoul usaq sey wosz 03 Jo Junowe ainssald vy

¢ sjuswaoe|d
Ajuno) Jo INQ JNo JO S)SOD pue Jaqunu 8y} Buionpal
ul a|qenjeaul Buinoid si yoiym ‘Butop ale Asyj jey) yiom
eJ)x® 8y} Jo} Buipuny eljxa sjooyog [e1vadg Buialb em aly

sainssald | L ¢¢
[AYA
‘suonje|nbay (sajep)) JUsWajiug wNNoLIND ay) ‘sjidnd 1o} suosss| Builwims Jo S}sod
Japun suossa| Bulwwims 0} Juswajjua ue aaey uaipiyd sy} Joj Buiked sjooyos Buipiebas pasies sem Aisnb v e | 0L°LC
£¥ebpng sy} uyum paspnoul ALDD S| "ALDD 403 pesu
ay} 0} j08lgns pay3 [06sA e Bupled jeuonippe Buisn
"8)Is a4)ua) ains|a Aspjong oy} je senssi AQ swoolano aq sdeysad pinod Yoliym asuad ainsian
Jo Jaquinu e o} Bunejas patedaid Buleq s piq |ended vy Ropong 1e Bunpied yum swajqoisd Ajusund ale ai8y] e | 61°¢C
‘awayos paaibe ue yym dn awod o} s|jooyds
yum Bunpiom Apuauind si ajesoaliq oyl “Buipuny sy) '81509 Aed Ajuiejew
:sasuodsay :suonsany pue sjUaWIWO) ‘ON

¥1/€102 s|esodold jabpng |eljiu] - buluieaT buojajii

ANILNYIS ® MIIAYIAO

6 Xipuaddy

Page 73



Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Estimated Estimated
Balance Balance
01/04/13 31/03/14
£m £m

Service Balances
Community Services 0.317 0.000
Environment 1.177 0.200
Lifelong Learning 0.025 0.000
Corporate Services 0.658 0.000
Total 2177 0.200
Corporate Balances
Equal Pay / Single Status 25.700 Note 1
Total 25.700
Specific Reserves
Insurance Fund - Asbestos 0.160 0.160
Benefits Equalisation 0.489 0.489
Supporting People 1.493 1.493
Building Control 0.159 0.109
Milk Quotas 0.076 0.080
Waste Disposal 0.612 0.500
Transfer Facility Pad 0.069 0.000
Flintshire Business Services 0.087 0.000
Winter Maintenance 0.245 0.245
County Elections 0.092 0.092
Third Party Insurance Claims 0.087 0.080
Flintshire Insurance 0.674 0.674
Minor Reserves under £0.050m 0.037 0.037
Total 4.280 3.959

Note 1 :

The use of this balance is subject to the outcome of a
negotiated settlement on Single Status and agreement on an
Equal Pay settlement, scheduled for conclusion in 2013/14.

Page 74

Appendix 10



Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

—"7 e eeC—_—
£'000 | l £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Funding
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 152,733 ||| 154,098 ||| 154,098 [{|| 154,098 ||| 154,098
Additional Allocation (Council Tax Support) 869 869 869 869 869
NNDR 46,872 46,872 46,872 46,872 46,872
Council Tax 57,809 59,751 61,697 63,707 65,782
SSA / Budget Requirement 258,285 |||| 261,590 ||| 263,537 ||| 265,547 ||| 267,622
Unhypothecated Grants 1,467 1,467 1,467 1,467 1,467
Specific Grants 33,297 33,297 33,297 33,297 33,297
Use of Contingency Reserve 297
Total Funding 293,346 | 296,355 |||| 298,302 ||| 300,311 |||| 302,387
Expenditure
Base Budget 280,991 (||| 298,344 ||| 308,686 ||| 319,511 |||l 328,040
Inflation:
Pay 1,279 1,549 1,565 1,581 1,596
Price 0) 2,360 2,407 2,455 2,504
Price - targeted 1,062 0 0 0 0
Price - NSI Energy 285 308 332 359 388
Price - Street Lighting 79 0 0 0 0
Price - NSI Fuel 187 210 232 258 287
Price - NSI Food 141 149 158 167 176
Fees & Charges (133) (549) (565) (582) (600)
Other known items:
Effect of Previous Years Budget Decisions 1,336 1,544
Movement in Specific Grants (4,043)
New Responsibilities 9,642
Transfers into/out of Settlement 4,400
Base Level of Reserves - 2% Turnover 130 39 40 42
NEW PRESSURES:
Economic Impact 347 500
WG Policy / Legislative 78 10
Other Pressures 2,545 131 1,242
Council Priority / Invest to Save 291 1,597 916 252 29
One off and Time Limited 297 (297) 0 0 0
Est of future investment in Council Priorities 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Total Expenditure 298,783 ||| 308,686 |||| 319,511 |||| 328,040 ||| 336,463
Funding Shortfall / (Available) 5,437 ““ 13,354 ||| 22,233}l 28,753 ||| 35,099
l Annual increase/(decrease) in shortfall 7,917 8,879 6,520 6,347J
Efficiencies carried forward: (5,437) (5,728) (5,646) (5,646)
Detailed plans in place:
Other (886) (27) (50) 0 0
Procurement (1,803) (146) (56) 0 0
Service Change (1,631) 62 225 0 0
Fees and Charges (586) (137) (37) 0 0
Organisational Design Savings (531) (43) 0 0 0
Total Efficiencies (incremental effect) (5,437) (291) 82 0 0
Possible revised shortfall 0 7,626 16,587 23,107 29,453

Page 75

Appendix 11



Appendix 12

Budget 2013/14
Council Fund - Revenue

Reconciliation of Budget Position December to Balanced Position

Ongoing One-Off Total

£m £m £m

Shortfall as per December Report 1.063 0.417 1.480
Adjustments arising from Final Settlement 0.008 0.000 0.008
Shortfall following Final Settlement 1.071 0.417 1.488
Removal / Reduction in Investment/ Pressures

Reprofile of Investment needs (0.581) (0.581)
Welfare Reform Pressures (0.215)  (0.027) (0.242)
School SLA (0.053) (0.053)
Methods of Payment (change to ongoing) 0.075 (0.075) 0.000
Additional Investment / Pressures

Landfill Sites - reduced energy income generation 0.144 0.000 0.144
Music Service 0.100 0.000 0.100
Play Schemes -Match Funding 0.012 0.000 0.012
Play Areas - Match Funding 0.035 0.035

Shortfall after Investment/Pressures Adjustments  0.606 0.297 0.903

Removal / Reduction of Efficiency ltems

Music Service - Transport 0.030 0.000 0.030
Denomination transport 0.070 0.000 0.070
Car Park Management 0.029 0.000 0.029
Insurance Contingency 0.061 0.000 0.061

Additional Efficiency ltems

Out of County Placements (0.783) 0.000 (0.783)
Senior Management Restructure (Lifelong Learning)  (0.042) 0.000 (0.042)
Reduction in Fire Levy (0.027) 0.000 (0.027)
Shortfall after Efficiency Adjustments (0.056) 0.297 0.241
Contribution from Contingency Reserve 0.000 (0.297)  (0.297)
Reduction in Council Tax to 2.9% 0.056 0.000 0.056
Revised Position 0.000 (0.000) 0.000

Page 76



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: FRIDAY, 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX SETTING FOR 2013-14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For Council to agree the statutory and other necessary resolutions for
the purpose of administering Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates for
2013-14.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Also on this agenda is consideration of the Council Fund Revenue
Budget for 2013-14. The recommendation of the Cabinet is that the
Council Fund Budget Requirement for 2013-14 be set at
£258,284,539 which will result in Council Tax charges as detailed in
this report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Council Tax resolution includes elements relating to Flintshire,
North Wales Police Authority and all Town/Community Councils.

3.02 The proposed resolutions as detailed in Appendix A to this report are
split into the following sections :-

Section 1 details the Council Tax Base set for 2013-14, which shows
the number of properties (shown in total and for each specific
Town/Community Council) expressed as Band 'D' equivalents, taking
into account appropriate adjustments for statutory discounts and
exemptions.

Section 2 (a) to 2 (i) details the expenditure and income of Flintshire
County Council and Town/Community Councils. It also sets out details
of the amount of Council Tax to be charged across the various
Valuation Bands in respect of the County Council precept and each
Town/Community Council precept.

Section 3 details the amount of Council Tax to be charged in each
Valuation Band in respect of the Police & Crime Commissioner —
North Wales as resolved at a meeting Police and Crime Panel on the
21% January 2013.

Page 77



3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

Section 4 details the overall amount of Council Tax that taxpayers will
be required to pay from April 2013. This is made up of three
chargeable precepts, Flintshire County Council, Police & Crime
Commissioner — North Wales, and the Town/Community Councils.

Section 5 re-affirms the Councils policy for 2013-14 not to grant
discounts on second and long term empty properties which are
defined by Regulations under three Prescribed Classes of Dwellings -
Class A dwellings are second home which are unoccupied and
furnished with a restriction on occupancy for a period of at least 28
consecutive days in any 12 month period. Class B dwellings are
second homes which are unoccupied and furnished, with no restriction
on occupancy. Class C dwellings are long empty and unfurnished
dwellings and have been such for a period of over 6 months in most
cases.

Section 6 gives the Head of Finance the authority to make payments
to the Police and Crime Commissioner — North Wales in twelve equal
instalments payable on the 15th day of each month from April 2013
(adjusted to the next working day as necessary) to March 2014.

Section 7 provides authority to specified officers to issue legal
proceedings for non payment of Council Tax and to appear on behalf
of the Council to prosecute in cases of non payment.

Section 8 provides similar authority to specified officers to collect
Non-Domestic Rates .

Section 9 provides for the advertisement of the Council Tax for 2013-
14 in the local press, as defined by Regulations.

The result of these resolutions would be that Council Tax is levied
across all areas of the County as set out in Appendix A and further
analysed in Appendix B by amounts and percentage increases.

RECOMMENDATIONS

For members to agree all resolutions as detailed in Appendix A.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None

Page 78



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

12.02

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A to this report details all resolutions necessary to set the
2013-14 Council Tax charges.

Appendix B to this report provides Members with some statistical
information relating the breakdown of Council Tax charges for 2013-
14 by Town & Community Council area.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Local Government Finance Act 1992
Local Government Act 1972 and 2003

Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of Dwellings) (Wales) Regulations

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



APPENDIX A

STATUTORY & OTHER NECESSARY COUNCIL TAX
RESOLUTIONS FOR 2013-14

That it be noted that at its meeting on 20" November 2012 the Council calculated
interim amounts, subsequently modified as follows, for the year 2013-14 in
accordance with the regulations made under Section 33(5) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

60,254 being the amount calculated in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Local
Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Wales Regulations 1995, as its Council
Tax base for the year, broken down into the following Town/Community areas :-

Argoed 2,417.48
Bagillt 1,441.25
Broughton & Bretton 2,363.13
Brynford 459.07
Buckley 6,086.98
Caerwys 601.33
Cilcain 729.47
Connahs Quay 5,900.81
Flint 4,389.63
Gwernaffield 1002.20
Gwernymynydd 549.88
Halkyn 1,338.51
Hawarden 6,005.87
Higher Kinnerton 780.22
Holywell 3,168.95
Hope 1,760.07
Leeswood 813.11
Llanasa 1,874.27
Llanfynydd 814.02
Mold 4,069.91
Mostyn 694.77
Nannerch 265.77
Nercwys 301.99
Northop 1,489.52
Northop Hall 703.36
Penyffordd 1,661.43
Queensferry 680.64
Saltney 1,742.89
Sealand 1,104.91
Shotton 2,138.58
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 412.67
Treuddyn 701.42
Whitford 1,131.53
Ysceifiog 658.36

TOTAL BAND "D" PROPERTIES 60,254.00

Paf2a@es 81



APPENDIX A

being the amounts calculated in accordance with regulation 6 of the Regulations as the
amounts of its Council Tax base for the year for dwelling in those parts of its area to which
special items relate.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2013-
14 in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992 and Alteration of Requisite Calculations (Wales) Regulations 2013 :-

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for the items set out in Section 32 (2) (a)-(d) (including
Community Council precepts totalling £2,323,166).

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for items set out in Section 32 (3) (a) and 32 (3 (c).

Amount by which the aggregate at 2(a) above exceeds
the aggregate at 2(b) above calculated in accordance
with Section 32 (4) as the budget requirement for the
year.

Aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates will
be payable for the year into its Council Fund in respect
of redistributed Non-Domestic Rates, Revenue Support
Grant or Additional Grant.

The amount at 2(c) above less the amount at 2(d)
above, all divided by the amount at section 1 above,
calculated in accordance with Section 33 (1) as the
basic amount of Council Tax for the year.

Aggregate amount of all special items referred to in
Section 34 (1).

Amount at 2(e) above less the result given by dividing
the amount at 2(f) above by the amount at section 1
above calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 34 (2) of the Act, as the basic amount of
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of
the area to which no special items relate.

The amounts given by adding to the amount at 2(g)
above the amounts of special items relating to dwellings
in those part of the Council's area mentioned below,
divided in each case by the amount at 1(b) above,
calculated in accordance with Section 34(3) as the
basic amounts of its Council Tax for the year for
dwellings in those parts of the area to which special
items relate.

Page-G2

£389,386,864

£128,779,159

£260,607,705

£200,475,044

£997.99

£2,323,166

£959.43

£0.00



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CHARGES (BAND D) 2013-14

(Including Community/Town Councils)

£
Argoed 984.12
Bagillt 987.48
Broughton & Bretton 1,000.48
Brynford 994 .43
Buckley 1,005.50
Caerwys 997.68
Cilcain 986.71
Connahs Quay 1,007.17
Flint 997.36
Gwernaffield 975.39
Gwernymynydd 984.89
Halkyn 989.31
Hawarden 996.89
Higher Kinnerton 994.04
Holywell 1,004.56
Hope 981.59
Leeswood 1,000.01
Llanasa 991.98
Llanfynydd 993.83
Mold 1,010.75
Mostyn 996.85
Nannerch 995.43
Nercwys 1,005.46
Northop 973.43
Northop Hall 988.92
Penyffordd 987.12
Queensferry 1,010.85
Saltney 1,002.40
Sealand 1,007.40
Shotton 1,006.25
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 990.93
Treuddyn 1,003.16
Whitford 995.43
Ysceifiog 988.41

The amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 2(h) above by the number which in
the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable
to dwellings listed in valuation band D calculated in accordance with Section 36(1) of
the Act as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories
of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.

Paf2age; 83



APPENDIX A

Area VALUATION BANDS
A B c D E F G H 1
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Argoed 656.08 | 765.42 | 874.78 984.12 | 1,202.82 | 1,421.50 | 1,640.20 | 1,968.24 | 2,296.28
Bagillt 658.32 | 768.04 | 877.76 987.48 | 1,206.92 | 1,426.36 | 1,645.80 | 1,974.96 | 2,304.12
Broughton & Bretton 666.99 | 778.15 | 889.32 | 1,000.48 | 1,222.81 | 1,445.13 | 1,667.47 | 2,000.96 | 2,334.45
Brynford 662.95 | 773.44 | 883.94 994.43 | 1,215.42 | 1,436.40 | 1,657.38 | 1,988.86 | 2,320.34
Buckley 670.33 | 782.05 | 893.78 | 1,005.50 | 1,228.95 | 1,452.39 | 1,675.83 | 2,011.00 | 2,346.17
Caerwys 665.12 | 775.97 | 886.83 997.68 | 1,219.39 | 1,441.09 | 1,662.80 | 1,995.36 | 2,327.92
Cilcain 657.81 | 767.44 | 877.08 986.71 | 1,205.98 | 1,425.24 | 1,644.52 | 1,973.42 | 2,302.32
Connahs Quay 671.45 | 783.35 | 895.27 | 1,007.17 | 1,230.99 | 1,454.80 | 1,678.62 | 2,014.34 | 2,350.06
Flint 664.91 | 775.72 | 886.55 997.36 | 1,219.00 | 1,440.63 | 1,662.27 | 1,994.72 | 2,327.17
Gwernaffield 650.26 | 758.63 | 867.02 975.39 | 1,192.15 | 1,408.89 | 1,625.65 | 1,950.78 | 2,275.91
Gwernymynydd 656.59 | 766.02 | 875.46 984.89 | 1,203.76 | 1,422.62 | 1,641.48 | 1,969.78 | 2,298.08
Halkyn 659.54 | 769.46 | 879.39 989.31 | 1,209.16 | 1,429.00 | 1,648.85 | 1,978.62 | 2,308.39
Hawarden 664.59 | 775.36 | 886.13 996.89 | 1,218.42 | 1,439.95 | 1,661.48 | 1,993.78 | 2,326.08
Higher Kinnerton 662.69 | 773.14 | 883.59 994.04 | 1,214.94 | 1,435.83 | 1,656.73 | 1,988.08 | 2,319.43
Holywell 669.71 | 781.32 | 892.95 | 1,004.56 | 1,227.80 | 1,451.03 | 1,674.27 | 2,009.12 | 2,343.97
Hope 654.39 | 763.46 | 872.53 981.59 | 1,199.72 | 1,417.85 | 1,635.98 | 1,963.18 | 2,290.38
Leeswood 666.67 | 777.78 | 888.90 | 1,000.01 | 1,222.24 | 1,444.46 | 1,666.68 | 2,000.02 | 2,333.36
Llanasa 661.32 | 771.54 | 881.76 991.98 | 1,212.42 | 1,432.86 | 1,653.30 | 1,983.96 | 2,314.62
Llanfynydd 662.55 | 772.98 | 883.41 993.83 | 1,214.68 | 1,435.53 | 1,656.38 | 1,987.66 | 2,318.94
Mold 673.83 | 786.14 | 898.45 | 1,010.75 | 1,235.36 | 1,459.97 | 1,684.58 | 2,021.50 | 2,358.42
Mostyn 664.57 | 775.32 | 886.09 996.85 | 1,218.38 | 1,439.89 | 1,661.42 | 1,993.70 | 2,325.98
Nannerch 663.62 | 774.22 | 884.83 995.43 | 1,216.64 | 1,437.84 | 1,659.05 | 1,990.86 | 2,322.67
Nercwys 670.31 | 782.02 | 893.75 | 1,005.46 | 1,228.90 | 1,452.33 | 1,675.77 | 2,010.92 | 2,346.07
Northop 648.95 | 757.11 | 865.27 973.43 | 1,189.75 | 1,406.06 | 1,622.38 | 1,946.86 | 2,271.34
Northop Hall 659.28 | 769.16 | 879.04 988.92 | 1,208.68 | 1,428.44 | 1,648.20 | 1,977.84 | 2,307.48
Penyffordd 658.08 | 767.76 | 877.44 987.12 | 1,206.48 | 1,425.84 | 1,645.20 | 1,974.24 | 2,303.28
Queensferry 673.90 | 786.21 | 898.54 | 1,010.85 | 1,235.49 | 1,460.11 | 1,684.75 | 2,021.70 | 2,358.65
Saltney 668.27 | 779.64 | 891.03 | 1,002.40 | 1,225.16 | 1,447.91 | 1,670.67 | 2,004.80 | 2,338.93
Sealand 671.60 | 783.53 | 895.47 | 1,007.40 | 1,231.27 | 1,455.13 | 1,679.00 | 2,014.80 | 2,350.60
Shotton 670.83 | 782.64 | 894.45 | 1,006.25 | 1,229.86 | 1,453.47 | 1,677.08 | 2,012.50 | 2,347.92
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor | 660.62 | 770.72 | 880.83 990.93 | 1,211.14 | 1,431.34 | 1,651.55 | 1,981.86 | 2,312.17
Treuddyn 668.77 | 780.23 | 891.70 | 1,003.16 | 1,226.09 | 1,449.01 | 1,671.93 | 2,006.32 | 2,340.71
Whitford 663.62 | 774.22 | 884.83 995.43 | 1,216.64 | 1,437.84 | 1,659.05 | 1,990.86 | 2,322.67
Ysceifiog 658.94 | 768.76 | 878.59 988.41 | 1,208.06 | 1,427.70 | 1,647.35 | 1,976.82 | 2,306.29
3. That it be noted that for the year 2013-14 the Police and Crime Panel have stated the

following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each of the categories of dwellings

shown below :-

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H |
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Precept | 148.74 | 173.53 | 198.32 | 223.11 | 272.69 | 322.27 | 371.85 | 446.22 | 520.59

Page.a4




APPENDIX A

4. Having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 2(i) and 3 above, the
Council in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of Council Tax for the year 2013-
14 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

Area VALUATION BANDS
A B (o D E F G H |
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Argoed 804.82 | 938.95 | 1,073.10 1,207.23 | 1,475.51 | 1,743.77 2,012.05 | 2,414.46 | 2,816.87
Bagillt 807.06 | 941.57 | 1,076.08 1,210.59 | 1,479.61 | 1,748.63 2,017.65 | 2,421.18 | 2,824.71
Broughton &

Bretton 815.73 | 951.68 | 1,087.64 1,223.59 | 1,495.50 | 1,767.40 2,039.32 | 2,447.18 | 2,855.04
Brynford 811.69 | 946.97 | 1,082.26 1,217.54 | 1,488.11 | 1,758.67 2,029.23 | 2,435.08 | 2,840.93
Buckley 819.07 | 955.58 | 1,092.10 1,228.61 | 1,501.64 | 1,774.66 2,047.68 | 2,457.22 | 2,866.76
Caerwys 813.86 | 949.50 | 1,085.15 1,220.79 | 1,492.08 | 1,763.36 2,034.65 | 2,441.58 | 2,848.51
Cilcain 806.55 | 940.97 | 1,075.40 1,209.82 | 1,478.67 | 1,747.51 2,016.37 | 2,419.64 | 2,822.91
Connahs Quay 820.19 | 956.88 | 1,093.59 1,230.28 | 1,503.68 | 1,777.07 2,050.47 | 2,460.56 | 2,870.65
Flint 813.65 | 949.25 | 1,084.87 1,220.47 | 1,491.69 | 1,762.90 2,034.12 | 2,440.94 | 2,847.76
Gwernaffield 799.00 | 932.16 | 1,065.34 1,198.50 | 1,464.84 | 1,731.16 1,997.50 | 2,397.00 | 2,796.50
Gwernymynydd 805.33 | 939.55 | 1,073.78 1,208.00 | 1,476.45 | 1,744.89 2,013.33 | 2,416.00 | 2,818.67
Halkyn 808.28 | 942.99 | 1,077.71 121242 | 1,481.85 | 1,751.27 2,020.70 | 2,424.84 | 2,828.98
Hawarden 813.33 | 948.89 | 1,084.45 1,220.00 | 1,491.11 | 1,762.22 2,033.33 | 2,440.00 | 2,846.67
E;g:ee:ton 811.43 | 946.67 | 1,081.91 1,21715 | 1,487.63 | 1,758.10 2,028.58 | 2,434.30 | 2,840.02
Holywell 818.45 | 954.85 | 1,091.27 1,227.67 | 1,50049 | 1,773.30 2,046.12 | 2,455.34 | 2,864.56
Hope 803.13 | 936.99 | 1,070.85 1,204.70 | 1,472.41 | 1,740.12 2,007.83 | 2,409.40 | 2,810.97
Leeswood 81541 | 951.31 | 1,087.22 1,223.12 | 1,49493 | 1,766.73 2,038.53 | 2,446.24 | 2,853.95
Llanasa 810.06 | 945.07 | 1,080.08 1,215.09 | 1,485.11 | 1,755.13 2,025.15 | 2,430.18 | 2,835.21
Llanfynydd 811.29 | 946.51 | 1,081.73 1,216.94 | 1,487.37 | 1,757.80 2,028.23 | 2,433.88 | 2,839.53
Mold 822.57 | 959.67 | 1,096.77 1,233.86 | 1,508.05 | 1,782.24 2,056.43 | 2,467.72 | 2,879.01
Mostyn 813.31 | 948.85 | 1,084.41 1,219.96 | 1,491.07 | 1,762.16 2,033.27 | 2,439.92 | 2,846.57
Nannerch 812.36 | 947.75 | 1,083.15 1,218.54 | 1,489.33 | 1,760.11 2,030.90 | 2,437.08 | 2,843.26
Nercwys 819.05 | 955.55 | 1,092.07 1,228.57 | 1,501.59 | 1,774.60 2,047.62 | 2,457.14 | 2,866.66
Northop 797.69 | 930.64 | 1,063.59 1,196.54 | 1,462.44 | 1,728.33 1,994.23 | 2,393.08 | 2,791.93
Northop Hall 808.02 | 942.69 | 1,077.36 1,212.03 | 1,481.37 | 1,750.71 2,020.05 | 2,424.06 | 2,828.07
Penyffordd 806.82 | 941.29 | 1,075.76 1,210.23 | 1,479.17 | 1,748.11 2,017.05 | 2,420.46 | 2,823.87
Queensferry 822.64 | 959.74 | 1,096.86 1,233.96 | 1,508.18 | 1,782.38 2,056.60 | 2,467.92 | 2,879.24
Saltney 817.01 | 953.17 | 1,089.35 1,225.51 | 1,497.85 | 1,770.18 2,042.52 | 2,451.02 | 2,859.52
Sealand 820.34 | 957.06 | 1,093.79 1,230.51 | 1,503.96 | 1,777.40 2,050.85 | 2,461.02 | 2,871.19
Shotton 819.57 | 956.17 | 1,092.77 1,229.36 | 1,502.55 | 1,775.74 2,048.93 | 2,458.72 | 2,868.51
Trelawnyd &

Gwaenysgor 809.36 | 944.25 | 1,079.15 1,214.04 | 1,483.83 | 1,753.61 2,023.40 | 2,428.08 | 2,832.76
Treuddyn 817.51 | 953.76 | 1,090.02 1,226.27 | 1,498.78 | 1,771.28 2,043.78 | 2,452.54 | 2,861.30
Whitford 812.36 | 947.75 | 1,083.15 1,218.54 | 1,489.33 | 1,760.11 2,030.90 | 2,437.08 | 2,843.26
Ysceifiog 807.68 | 942.29 | 1,076.91 1,211.52 | 1,480.75 | 1,749.97 2,019.20 | 2,423.04 | 2,826.88

Paf23@6s 85




APPENDIX A

5. In line with the existing policy of the Council, that for 2013-14, in accordance with
Section 12 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by Section 75 of
the Local Government Act 2003 and the Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of
Dwellings) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2004, no discounts shall be granted to
second homes subject to Council Tax which are unoccupied and furnished, (defined
as Prescribed Classes A and B) and long term empty and unfurnished properties
(defined as Prescribed Class C)

6. That the Head of Finance be authorised to make payments under section 38(9) Local
Government (Wales) Act 1994 and the Local Authorities (Precepts) (Wales)
Regulations 1995 from the Council Fund by equal instalments on the 15™ day of each
month from April 2013 (adjusted to the next working day as necessary) to March
2014 in respect of the precept levied by the Police and Crime Panel in the sum of
£13,443,270

7. Authorisations - Council Tax

a) That the holders of the posts of Head of Finance, Revenues & Benefits Manager,
Revenues Manager, Revenues Team Leaders, Court/Prosecutions Officer,
Revenues Officers within Finance for the time being be authorised under Section
223 of the Local Government Act 1972 to issue legal proceedings and to appear
on behalf of the County Council at the hearing of any legal proceedings in the
Magistrates Court by way of an application for the issue of a Liability Order in
respect of unpaid Council Taxes and penalties under Part VI of the Council Tax
(Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992; by way of an application for
the issue of a warrant of commitment to prison under Part VI of the Council Tax
(Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992; to require financial
information to make an Attachment of Earnings Order; to levy the appropriate
amount by distress and sale of goods; and to exercise all other enforcement
powers of the County Council under the Council Tax (Administration and
Enforcements) Regulations 1992 and any subsequent amendments of such
Regulations.

b) That the Head of Finance be authorised to engage the services of bailiffs for the
levying of distress and sale of goods where Liability Orders are awarded,
obtaining financial information where necessary and enforcing warrants of arrest
and warrants of commitment in certain cases on behalf of the Courts and in
accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and
any Regulations made there under.

8. Authorisations - National Non-Domestic Rates

a) That the holders of the posts of Head of Finance, Revenues & Benefits Manager,
Revenues Manager, Revenues Team Leaders, Court/Prosecutions Officer,
Revenues Officers within Finance for the time being be authorised under Section
223 of the Local Government Act 1972, to institute legal proceedings and to
appear on behalf of the Council at the hearing of any legal proceedings in the
Magistrates Courts by way of application for the issue of a liability order in
respect of unpaid rates; by way of an application for the issue of a warrant of
commitment; and to exercise all other powers of enforcement of the County
Council under the Non-Domestic (Collection and Enforcement) (Local Lists)
Regulations 1989 and any amendment thereto.

b) That the Head of Finance be authorised to engage the services of baliliffs to levy
distress, sale of goods as may be necessary and to enforce warrants of arrest
and warrants of commitment on behalf of the Courts as may be necessary to
recover outstanding rates.

9. That notices of the making of the said Council Taxes for 2013-14, signed by the
Head of Finance, be given by advertisement in the local press under Section 38(2) of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

P35e,36



Appendix B

2013-14 Council Tax Charges
Lowest to Highest Amounts by Town/Community Council

BAND D
Community Councils Community |Flintshire| Police | Total
£ £ £ £

Northop 14.00( 959.43|223.11| 1,196.54
Gwernaffield 15.96| 959.43]|223.11] 1,198.50
Hope 22.16| 959.43( 223.11| 1,204.70
Argoed 2469 959.43(223.11| 1,207.23
Gwernymynydd 25.46 9569.43] 223.11( 1,208.00
Cilcain 27.28| 959.43| 223.11| 1,209.82
Penyffordd 27.69| 959.43|223.11(1,210.23
Bagillt 28.05| 959.43| 223.11| 1,210.59
Ysceifiog 28.98| 959.43(223.11| 1,211.52
Northop Hall 29049 959.43(223.11[1,212.03
Halkyn 29.88( 959.43| 223.11| 1,212.42
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 31.50 9569.43| 223.11( 1,214.04
Llanasa 32.55 959.43( 223.11 1,215.09
Llanfynydd 34.40( 959.43| 223.11[1,216.94
Higher Kinnerton 34.61 959.43| 223.111 1,217.15
Brynford 35.00] 959.43|223.11|1,217.54
Nannerch 36.00] 959.43| 223.11( 1,218.54
Whitford 36.00( 959.43| 223.11{ 1,218.54
Mostyn 37.42| 959.43| 223.11| 1,219.96
Hawarden 37.46| 959.43| 223.11{ 1,220.00
Flint 37.93| 959.43| 223.11{ 1,220.47
Caerwys 38.25| 959.43| 223.11( 1,220.79
Leeswood 40.58| 959.43| 223.11}1,223.12
Broughton & Bretton 41.05 959.43| 223.11| 1,223.59
Saltney 42.97| 959.43| 223.11| 1,225.51
Treuddyn 43.73| 959.43| 223.11| 1,226.27
Holywell 4513 959.43| 223.11| 1,227.67
Nercwys 46.03| 959.43| 223.11| 1,228.57
Buckley 46.07| 959.43| 223.11| 1,228.61
Shotton 46.82| 959.43( 223.11} 1,229.36
Connahs Quay 47.74] 959.43| 223.11] 1,230.28
Sealand 47.97| 959.43| 223.11] 1,230.51
Mold 51.32| 959.43| 223.11| 1,233.86
Queensferry 51.42 959.43( 223.11( 1,233.96

Page 87



2013-14 Council Tax Charges

Amounts in Town / Community Council order

Community Councils

Argoed

Bagillt
Broughton & Bretton
Brynford
Buckley
Caerwys
Cilcain
Connahs Quay
Flint
Gwernaffield
Gwernymynydd
Halkyn
Hawarden
Higher Kinnerton
Holywell

Hope
Leeswood
Llanasa
Llanfynydd
Mold

Mostyn
Nannerch
Nercwys
Northop
Northop Hall
Penyffordd
Queensferry
Saltney
Sealand
Shotton

Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor

Treuddyn
Whitford
Ysceifiog

Appendix B

BAND D
Community | Flintshire| Police | Total

£ £ £ £

2469 959.43| 223.11| 1,207.23
28.05| 959.43|223.11( 1,210.59
41.05( 959.43(223.11| 1,223.59
35.00f 959.43| 223.11( 1,217.54
46.07( 959.43|223.11} 1,228.61
38.25| 959.43] 223.11| 1,220.79
27.28| 959.43] 223.11( 1,209.82
47.74] 959.43| 223.11] 1,230.28
37.93| 959.43| 223.11| 1,220.47
15.96| 959.43| 223.11{ 1,198.50
25.46| 959.43|223.11( 1,208.00
20.88| 959.43| 223.11] 1,212.42
37.46| 959.43( 223.11| 1,220.00
34.61 959.43| 223.11| 1,217.15
45.13( 959.43|223.11| 1,227.67
22.16| 959.43| 223.11| 1,204.70
40.58| 959.43| 223.11| 1,223.12
32.55| 959.43|223.11{ 1,215.09
34.40| 959.43| 223.11( 1,216.94
51.32| 959.43| 223.11| 1,233.86
37.42| 959.43(223.11(1,219.96
36.00] 959.43|223.11( 1,218.54
46.03f 959.43| 223.11] 1,228.57
14.00f 959.43| 223.11| 1,196.54
29.49| 959.43|223.11| 1,212.03
27.69| 959.43(223.11|1,210.23
51.42 9569.43] 223.11| 1,233.96
42.97| 959.43|223.11| 1,225.51
47.97| 959.43| 223.11| 1,230.51
46.82( 959.43|223.11| 1,229.36
31.50f 959.43| 223.11( 1,214.04
43.73| 959.43| 223.11] 1,226.27
36.00| 959.43( 223.11( 1,218.54
28.98| 959.43| 223.11| 1,211.52

Page 88




Appendix B

2013-14 Council Tax Charges
Lowest to Highest % amounts by Town / Community Council

BAND D
Community Councils Community |Flintshire| Police
% % %
Leeswood -13.64 290 3.98
Penyffordd -0.50 290 3.98
Brynford 0.00 2901 3.98
Northop 0.00 290 3.98
Nercwys 0.07 290 3.98
Llanasa 0.71 2901 3.98
Higher Kinnerton 0.96 290 3.98
Sealand 1.22 2.90] 3.98
Flint 1.28 2.90| 3.98
Saltney 1.49 290 3.98
Queensferry 1.66 290 3.98
Gwernymynydd 1.72 290 3.98
Treuddyn 2.20 290 3.98
Connahs Quay 2.69 2.90] 3.98
Argoed 2.83 2901 3.98
Nannerch 2.86 290 3.98
Cilcain 3.37 2.90| 3.98
Holywell 3.51 290 3.98
Shotton 3.63 2.90| 3.98
Buckley 3.95 2.90| 3.98
Mold 3.99 2.90| 3.98
Caerwys 4.28 290( 3.98
Llanfynydd 4.94 290 3.98
Gwernaffield 7.69 290{ 3.98
Hawarden 8.49 290 3.98
Whitford 9.09 290 3.98
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 9.19 2901 3.98
Halkyn 9.21 2.90| 3.98
Broughton & Bretton 10.11 2901 3.98
Mostyn 10.25 290f 3.98
Ysceifiog 10.74 2.90| 3.98
Bagilit 17.61 2901 3.98
Northop Hall 17.63 290 3.98
Hope 35.62 2.90| 3.98

Page 89



Appendix B

2013-14 Council Tax Charges
% Amounts in Town / Community Council order

BAND D
Community Councils Community | Flintshire| Police
% % %
Argoed 2.83 290 3.98
Bagillt 17.61 290 3.98
Broughton & Bretton 10.11 290 3.98
Brynford 0.00 2901 3.98
Buckley 3.95 2901 3.98
Caerwys 4.28 290 3.98
Cilcain 3.37 2.90{ 3.98
Connahs Quay 2.69 290 3.98
Flint 1.28 290 3.98
Gwernaffield 7.69 2.90, 3.98
Gwernymynydd 1.72 2901 3.98
Halkyn 9.21 2.90, 3.98
Hawarden 8.49 2901 3.98
Higher Kinnerton 0.96 290 3.98
Holywell 3.51 2.90| 3.98
Hope 35.62 290! 3.98
Leeswood -13.64 2901 3.98
Llanasa 0.71 290 3.98
Llanfynydd 4.94 290 3.98
Mold 3.99 2.90| 3.98
Mostyn 10.25 2.90( 3.98
Nannerch 2.86 290] 3.98
Nercwys 0.07 290 3.98
Northop 0.00 2.90| 3.98
Northop Hall 17.63 2.90| 3.98
Penyffordd -0.50 290 3.98
Queensferry 1.66 2.90| 3.98
Saltney 1.49 2.90| 3.98
Sealand 1.22 290 3.98
Shotton 3.63 2.90| 3.98
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 9.19 290 3.98
Treuddyn 2.20 2901 3.98
Whitford 9.09 290 3.98
Ysceifiog 10.74 290! 3.98

Page 90



Agenda ltem 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: FRIDAY, 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR
OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: gg)ztzlll\;glL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 -

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2013/14
and the indicative Capital Programme for 2014/15 to 2022/23 for
consideration.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The draft annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2013/14, and
the indicative Capital Programme for 2014/15 to 2022/23 were
presented to the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 31 January for consultation (a session to which all
members of the Council were invited) and to the Cabinet on 19
February for review and agreement. The attached report is the full
report as presented to Cabinet.

2.02 Cabinet approved the recommendations set out at 4.01 of the
attached report in full for recommendation to Council. It is normal
Council practice to approve the annual Capital Programme at the
annual budget-setting meeting alongside the annual Council Fund
Revenue Budget.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  As discussed at the Overview and Scrutiny meeting, and as explained
in the report to Cabinet, the financial value of the annual Capital
Programme is, in part, dependent on the sale of assets and the
availability of the capital receipts from those sales to add to the
Council's supported capital borrowing approval and general and
specific capital grants. The Asset Strategy sets out a programme of
intended disposals and the capital receipts from these disposals are
planned into the Capital Programme year by year. Sale of assets need
to both occur during or before the financial year for which their capital
receipt is needed, and at the financial value estimated, for there to be
sufficient funds available for the total Capital Programme approved for
that year.

Page 91



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

As discussed at Overview and Scrutiny there is a degree of risk in
planning capital receipts due to the unpredictability of market interest
in purchase and variations in land valuations. Given that the Council
is in negotiation for the sale of assets on which the Capital
Programme in part relies, the attached report refers to the core
service allocations for capital spend being approved up to the
maximum levels shown in Appendix 2. This is a safeguard; the
Council could only spend up to those levels as maxima should it
achieve the level of capital receipts of £3.910m set out in the report.

Since the Cabinet meeting on 19 February the Council has concluded
negotiations for the sale of a key site and this is the principal capital
receipt needed for the Capital Programme for 2013/14. The gross
value of the land has been the subject of intense discussion. Also,
due to the need to reclaim the site and decontaminate it for future use,
and the costs involved with that work, the negotiated sale price will be
less than the original site valuation. Therefore, there will be a
reduction in the total capital resources available unless further
disposals can be brought forward during the year.

Accordingly, the allocation of funds within and across the core
services will need to be reviewed. Until this review is completed and
further decisions are made by the Council the allowable capital spend
in each core service would be limited to 80% of the maximum level
shown in Appendix 2 to avoid the risk of the Council over-spending
against available resources.

The Council is advised that the Cabinet has the objective of
maximising the capital investment in the core service allocation for
school buildings as a priority. The level of investment which can be
made in schools will be reassessed as part of the review referred to in
3.04 above.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council is recommended to approve the recommendations listed
within the attached report from Cabinet at 4.01, with the additional
recommendation that pending certainty of the level of capital receipts
to be available for 2013/14 an initial spending limit of 80% be set for
each of core service allocations listed at Appendix 2.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific anti-poverty
impacts.

Page 92



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific equalities
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members, and Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

An initial capital workshop was held on 22 November 2012 for all
Members; a public consultation survey was open between 21
December 2012 and 20 January 2013; Overview and Scrutiny on 31
January 2013.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Report to Cabinet 19th February 2013 : Council Fund
Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2022/23.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

2013/14 budget papers, including Welsh Government papers.

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 TO
2022/23

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To propose the Council Fund Capital Programme for 2013/14 and

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

provide indicative details for 2014/15 to 2022/23, following
consultation with the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. As in all years, the capital programme relies upon the
availability of budgeted capital funding resources in order to meet its
objectives.

BACKGROUND

Proposals for the Council Fund Capital Programme 2013/14 to
2022/23, together with details of the continuing work in developing a
capital strategy were reported to Cabinet on 18th December 2012.

The proposals included in the report of 18th December took account
of Welsh Government's Provisional Finance Settlement for 2013/14,
together with indicative allocations for forward years. A verbal update
regarding the Final Settlement was provided to Cabinet, indicating a
final figure of £6.866m, which was £0.002m less than that notified at
the provisional stage, but £0.007m more than previous planning
assumptions (and £0.007m more in each of the forward years than
previous planning assumptions).

At its meeting of 31st January 2013, the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee was consulted on the Cabinet's
recommendations. The key issues arising from the meeting are:-

» The anticipated future availability of information regarding the

extended Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI), and its
likely impact on schools’ funding.

Page 95



2.04

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

e The possibility of a feasibility study for the purpose of
establishing the full cost of replacing mobile classrooms, and
the financial impact of such.

e Early determination of the cost implications (and funding plans)
of any required future works to the Flintshire Bridge.

e A need for greater focus and pace in the move towards the use
of more creative capital access options such as asset backed
vehicles — a more ambitious and less risk averse approach.

e Re-affirmation of the forward unsupported (prudential)
borrowing commitment particularly in respect of 21st Century
Schools (by way of the approved 2012/13 Capital Programme),
and its recognition in the Medium Term Financial Plan.

e The significance of the review of Council assets (which is
currently underway) and the market risks in predicting accurate
land sale capital receipts as one form of income to support the
capital programme, in informing future capital programme
planning and delivery.

The Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee
endorsed the recommendations of the 18th December report. A
number of comments were made at the meeting and a number of
questions asked; details of these, together with the responses
provided are included in Appendix 4.

CONSIDERATIONS

The development of the Capital Strategy and Capital Programme
2013/14 was set out in detail in the report to Cabinet on 18th
December 2012 (as provided at Appendix 5).

The report to Cabinet on 18th December identified the core capital
programme requirements over the ten year capital programme period
in key service programme areas including School Buildings and
Highways Infrastructure. Details are set out in Appendix 2 attached.

The allocation of resources to core service programmes in 2013/14
amounting to £10.528m (which includes the second year funding
requirement of £1.688m in respect of those schemes funded from
‘headroom’ as part of the approved 2012/13 Capital Programme)
leaves 2013/14 ‘headroom’ of just £0.248m after taking account of the
projected general funding available, as set out in Appendix 1 attached.
A funding shortfall of £0.142m is projected for 2014/15; on this basis it
is prudent to consider a two year programme (2013/14/15), which
provides a net £0.106m available to meet minor contingencies, as
necessary.

Page 96



304

3.05

3.06

4.00

4.01

The total capital availability for 2013/14 is predictive at this stage
given the inclusion of targets for capital receipts. The service
programme capital allocations are set as maximum allocations subject
to the targets being met.

In addition to those programme schemes financed through general
capital funding sources, the overall capital programme is
supplemented by those schemes funded through specific grants and
those ongoing schemes approved in 2012 as part of the Capital
Programme and Capital Strategy 2012/13 to 2021/22) funded through
unsupported (prudential) borrowing.

The full programme for 2013/14, which includes the core service
programmes (as referred to in 3.03), and those schemes financed by
way of (indicative) specific grants of £12.785m, unsupported
(prudential) borrowing of £3.895m and Local Government Borrowing
Initiative (LGBI) funding of £2.700m, amounts to £29.908m, as shown
in Appendix 3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Taking account of the detail contained in the report to Cabinet on 18th
December 2012 and the positive response from Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny, Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council on
1st March that they:

(@) Note the work that has been undertaken (and continues) to
develop a Council Fund Capital Strategy and 10 year capital
programme.

(b)  Note the estimated capital funding available over the 10 year
period 2013/14 to 2022/23 (as shown in Appendix 1).

(c) Approve the inclusion in the programme of the core service
allocations to the maximum levels shown for 2013/14 (as
detailed in Appendix 2), which takes account of the second
year funding requirement (and funding through to completion in
2015/16) in respect of those schemes funded from ‘headroom’
as part of the approved 2012/13 Capital Programme.

(d)  Approve the allocation of resources on the basis of a two year
programme (2013/14/15), which provides a net £0.106m
available to meet minor contingencies, as necessary.

(e)  Note the total Council Fund Capital Programme for 2013/14 (as
set out in Appendix 3) which includes those schemes funded
from specific grants, unsupported (prudential) borrowing and
LGBI, over and above the general funding detailed in
Appendix 1.

Page 97



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

(f Note the indicative core programme details for 2014/15 to
2022/23 (as set out in Appendix 2).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-
poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members and Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

An initial workshop on capital was held on 22nd November 2012 for all
Members. A public consultation survey was open between
21% December 2012 and 20th January 2013.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Available Funding

Appendix 2 - Core Capital Programme Schemes

Appendix 3 - Capital Programme 2013/14 (including specific funding
sources — Specific Grants, Unsupported Borrowing and LGBI).

Appendix 4 - Responses from Overview and Scrutiny

Appendix 5 - Cabinet Report 18th December 2012.

Page 98



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

2013/14 budget papers, including Welsh Government papers.
Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson

Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 99



wgo9'T3 929 = nﬁ:ﬁ_

SLivL0Z Se < 91/5102
wowales leuid (vL/ELOZ) ! GLIPLOZ

Jewsaag euidsed  pL/ELOZ

999 - suondwinsse Buipuny OM #

wiyl's3 asn = n:Nz.N_

SLivL0Z Se <« 9L/SL0C
wowepes jeud (v1/£102)180  GLIYLOZ

Juawamas leuid ;od  pL/ELOZ

asn - suondwnsse Buipuny OM

SES'OL 6EV'VL 8ETTL 1£0°03 9e8'L 16¥'S oLL'e vI9'e 2010 8¥Z'0 sapejnun)y
GES'9L 9602 Loz'z ze 1022 SYeE'Z (629°0) 955°C 805°€ (zvL-0) 8¥2°0 (V4 LHOHSYA18VTIVAY|
196°L6 5988 598'8 598'8 598°'8 598°'8 G98'8 598°'8 568°8 €801 82501 leyol
196°1L6 G98'8 G988 598’8 G988 G98'8 598’8 G988 G68'8 €80l 82501 Z xipuaddy - sawsyog swweibold [epde) 310D
ainypuadx3y
96v'801 196701 990°LL 990°LL 990°LL 0LZ’LL 9818 74 411 eoveL weol 9.L°0L lejol
9£8'6¢€ G60't 00Cy 00cty 00C'y vve'y (174508 GSS'Y LEG'S Giv'E oL6e sjdiaoay |epded
0€0°92 €09¢ €09¢ £09¢ €09¢C €09'¢ €09 €09¢C €09°¢ €09'C €09¢C # (909) wwein [ende) |e1dud9
0€92y €92'v €9C'¥ €92V €92y €92¥ €92y €9Z¥ €9C'h €9Z'v €92 . (gsn) Bumouiog papoddng pajesayiodAyun
{sjueig oyoads Guipn|ax3) Budueuiy
w3z w3 w3y w3z w3y w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
jejol €z/zeoe zeieoe Lziozoz 0z/6102 6L/8L02 8L/ZL0Z  LLI9LOZ  9LiSLoZ SLliyloz  viiELoe

| XION3ddV

€2/2202 - ¥1/€102 ONIANNL 378VI1IVAY A31LVINILSE

Page 100



19616 |[c98'8 <988 |coss |scos8 |S988 | G988 | G08'8 | G688 | €8¥ 0L |8250L SNIONVNIH - 1V1O0L
—
ceson) |[9602) [0z [0z [Loze) [Gvee) | 6490 _ [(9552) [(80S€E) 2wk 0 _ [(8v20) BUIUEU JopUn / (OOIPESH - PAIEOOEUN)
—
0000 |[0000 | 0000|0000 | 0000 | 0000 [0000 |0000 |0000 _|0000 | 0000 BUIMOLIOg ([enuapnid) pepoddnsun
0000 |[0000 |0000 |0000 |0000 | 0000 |0000 |0000 |0000C | 0000 | 0000 SjueIo [eNde) ouioads s
9c8'6c |[S60v |002¥ |00cv |00cy | wvev  |02el |GGG ¥ | 266G | Siv€ | OL6E Sideoay (eden ¢
0209z |[€09C  |€09z | €09¢ |€09Z | €09¢ |€09¢ | €09Z |€09¢ |€09¢ | €09¢C JUEI9 [EjideD [elaUsD
0802y |[€9zv | €9zv |€9zv | €9zv | €9zv | €9¢v  |€92v  |€9cv | €9e¥ _ |€9C¥ {85n) Buimoziog pepoddng pajedaiodAyun
ONIONVNI4
19616 |[S988 |co8® |sos8 |5988 |G988 |08  |G98'8 [G688 | €8 0L [8250) aNNd 119NNOD - V1oL
9807 |[0sv0 |0Sv0 |0Sv0 | 0sv0 | 0S¥ 0 |0Sr0 | 0Gr0 | 080 |8LZL | 8eL} SERINEREIN O E o))
ovelz |[0zzc |02z [02Ze |0ele |0zlc |0eiz | 0elz |Oele |Oele | 09.2 ONINGVI1ONO 1331
01808 |[0Z0t |020c  |020c | 020€ |020€ | 020€ |020€ [O0c0€  |0lce | 08cE INIWNOYIANT
Seeoc |[S19¢ [S29z |Si9¢ |Si9¢ |SI9¢ |S/9¢ |Sl9Z |Sl9¢ | Sl9¢  |0Sle SI0ING3S ALINNWNOD
aNn4 IONNOD
AYVNNNS
w3 ITE] w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
SAEdIPU] [GATEDIPU] |OAIEIIPU] | SAREIIPU] [OAEDIDU] [SAREOIPU] | SANEQIPU] [SAREOIPU [SAREQIPU] | SfeWwnsT
IVLOL [XAr44174 [441X414 1210202 02/61L02 6L/8L02 8LILLOZ L119L02 aL/s1L02 SLivioe vLELOZ

¢ XION3ddV

SINIHOS FNWNVUOOUd TV1IdVI 40D




018°0€ 020°¢ 020°€ 020°€ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°E 0.LE°E 082°€ LINIWNOYIANST - TVIOL
006'1 0610 |06L0 |0BLO |06L0 |O6LO |0O6LO |06LO |06LO |06LO | 0O6LO uonesauabay 9UsD UMOL SnoueA
0511 SLL0  |Shb0  |SLLO  [SLL0  |GLL0  |GLE0 [GLLO [GLEO  [GLLO_ [GILLO aAneniu| abejuaH 8dessumoL il
uonelauabay
0e8’L 08L°0 0810 0810 08L°0 08L°0 0810 0810 08L°0 0810 0020 aoueuaUie [BJNONIS SNOUBA
0e8’L 08L°0 08L°0 0810 08L°0 08L°0 0810 0810 08L°0 0810 0020 Juawaoe|dey bunybijeens snouep
0LG'L 0S1L°0 0SL°0 051°0 0SL°0 0SL°0 0SL°0 051°0 0G1°0 0610 091°0 Juswaoe|day pue SjusWSSassy abpug SNOUEA
0S€°.L 0S.°0 0S.°0 0S.°0 05.°0 0S.°0 0520 05,0 0S2°0 0520 009°0 ainjonJiseljuj skemybiH SnoUeA
skemybiH
oLL'L 0LL'0 0LL'0 0LLO 0LL0 0LL'0 0LL'0 oLL'0 0LL'0 0LL'0 0CcLo [elousy) - SHIOAA UOIJIBJ0Id 1SBOD snoleA N
6610 G200 G200 G.00 G600 G200 G.0°0 G600 G200 G200 0800 [e18U39 - SHIOM abeuleqg pue snouep =
d:_._wc:_mmw
o
000'S 0050 00S°0 0050 00S°0 00S°0 005°0 0050 00S°0 00S°0 0050 aoueusjuley Auadold ajelodio) SNOLEA 3
000°L 00L°0 0010 0010 00L°0 0010 0010 0010 00L°0 0010 0010 SHIOM J8pIO Alajes all4 SNOUEA
G650 GG0'0 GS0°0 GS0°0 GS0'0 GS0°0 GG0'0 GG0°0 GS0°0 GS0°0 090°0 SwuJejy JapnJju| pue ali4 buipeibdn SNOLBA
G0.°0 0,00 0400 000 0400 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 600 Buuojuopy e|j@uoibaT SNoUeA
S0.°0 0400 0,00 0,00 000 0,00 0,00 000 0,00 0,00 600 |EAOWITY SO)Saqsy SNOLEA
0010 0S€°0 0S€°0 suoie|(ejsu| AB1au3 a|qemaudy SNOUBA
Gl6'C 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 G20 sainseapy Aouaidiy3 Absau3 SNOUBA
GS.L°L G210 GLL°0 G.L°0 S/L°0 G/L°0 GLL°0 S.L°0 S.L°0 GLL°0 08L°0 syop (Vaa) 1oy uoneuiwuosig Ayjigesiq SNOLIEA
sBuip|ing eARenSIIIWPY
INJWNOYIANT
§28'92 §19°C §19°C §.9°C Gl9°C §.9'C §19°C §.9°C §19'C §19¢ 05.°¢C SIDIAY3S ALINNNWOD - TV10L
Gglc'c Gec'0 G220 Geco G220 Gcc0 GCZ'0 Gec0 Geeco G¢c'0 0620 yoddng ealy jemausy buisnoH uojoys
0S5'v¢ 0Sy'¢ 0sy'e 0S¢ 0Sy'¢ 0Sv'¢ 0S¢ 0st'e 0Sy'¢ 0S¢ 00S°¢C SjualWionodL] pue [emauay 1009 aleAlid SnoueA
sjuelg
S3DIAYIS ALINNWNOD
wg wy urz w3 w3y w3 ury w3 w3y w3z w3
BANEOIPU] [OAREJIPU] [SANEOIPU] [SANEOIPU] [SAREDIPU| [8ANEDIPUI [8AREIIPU] [8ARBIIPU |SANEDIPU] | BjewWST
av.LOL gz/zz0z_ | zzivzoz | Lziozoz | oz/eloz | eLsLoz | 8L/ZL0Z | ZL9L0z | 9LISLOZ | SLLOZ | PLIELOZ

SINIHOS FINNVHOO0UC TV1IdVI FHOD




swuweiboid [ende) g1/Z10Z paroidde ay jo Jed se Wooipeay, Woly papunj SawaYyssg .

(196’16 |[S98'8 [cog8 [cog8  [c98'8 |S98'8 [598'8 [G98'8 [S68'8 [€8¥°0L |825°0L | aNN4d 719NNO0D - TV.L0L
[980°Z |[0sv0 Josvo JoOsvo [0SPO [OSPO [0SP0 [OS¥0 [08v0 [8i2) [ser) | S3DIAYIS ILVHOdH0D - TV1OL
0520 G200 5200 5200 G200 5200 5200 G200 5200 5200 G200 UOISIAOId ZEIER]
niwf) neayl pAm|o
000} 00L°0 00L'0 00L0 0010 0010 00L'0 00L'0 0010 00L'0 00L0 saipni§ A}jiqisead - uoisiAold ajelodiod ZEIER)
0520 G100 5200 5/0°0 G100 S.0°0 5200 G.00 5200 5200 G.00 Ai8jes @ yleaH - syioM [elided Jouin |eJoURD
adueuly sjeiodeop
o
000’} 0050 0050 SjoaUL0)) aJIysIuN SNOLEAS T,
sj09uuo0) anysidy
mu
9020 €50 €50 Juaweaiby asudiejul JOosoDIN BEERAS
0Zr'0 0120 0L20 ainpniseyu| 1| [e18UBD
09Z°0 0€0°0 S0L0 G210 uonejuswa|dw| SWHA3 [eJloURD
0520 00L0 0510 JUSWIISBAU| BUIRIOM BBy EEER
0S¥’ 0S¢0 0S¢0 0SZ'0 0520 0520 0520 0520 0520 0520 0020 ainjondisenul 10| EEED)
S99JAI9G Jawolsn) pue 19|
CERCECEIN T [o k)
ovz'lz |[ozze 0zL'Z 0zL'2 0z.°2 0zL2 0z, 0z.'2 0Z.'C 02,2 09.°2 ONINNVIT ONO13411 - TV.LIOL
S0L0 0/0°0 000 0/0°0 0200 0200 000 000 0200 0,00 G100 {eseyd uonepuno) sjusliuolAug bujuies] SnouUeA
sjooyss Atewud
GSS'0 G500 5500 G500 5500 5500 5500 G500 G500 5500 0900 yuawdinb3 pue ainjuing SNOLEBA
S0.C 020 0.2°0 0.20 020 020 0/2°0 020 020 0/2°0 GIZ20 sidnd [enpialpy| - oy uoljeulwosig Aljiqesia SNOLEA
Glzec || seee Geee Gee? G2e'C G2ee Geee GZe? GZe2 Geee 0S€E'C aoueusjuiely pue siiedey sbuipjing |0040g snoleA
jelduds) - uoiednp3y
ONINYVI1 ONO13dIN
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
SARESIPU| [OAED|PU] | BARBDIPU] [SATEOIPU| |SATEOIPU |SATEOIPU] | SANEOIPU| |SAREdIPU| [SANESIPU] | S1e WS |
Iv1i0ol £2/2202 ceiieoe 12/0202 0z/6L02 6L/8L02 8L/LL02 LL9LoZ aL/isLoz SLivioe yLIELOZ

SINIHOS FWNVYOO0Ud TVLIdVYI FH0D




CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14

APPENDIX 3

Estimate
2013/14
£m
SUMMARY
COUNCIL FUND
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3.350
ENVIRONMENT 16.565
LIFELONG LEARNING 8.255
CORPORATE SERVICES 1.738
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 29.908

Page 104



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 APPENDIX 3
Estimate
2013/14
£m
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Grants
Various Private Sector Renewal and Improvements 2.500
General Housing Renewal Area Support 0.550
Children's Services
General Flying Start Capital Expansion Programme 0.150
Travellers' Sites
Queensferry Riverside Caravan Site 0.150
TOTAL - COMMUNITY SERVICES 3.350

Page 105



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14

APPENDIX 3

Estimate
2013/14
£m

ENVIRONMENT
Administrative Buildings

Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.180

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.275

Various Renewable Energy Installations 0.350

Various Asbestos Removal 0.075

Various Legionella Monitoring 0.075

Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.060

Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100

Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.500

Alltami Depot Rationalisation 2.275
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works - General 3.080

Various Coast Protection Works - General 0.120
|Highways

Various Highways Infrastructure 0.600

Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.160

Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.200

Various Structural Maintenance 0.200

Various Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) 2.700
Regeneration

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.349

Various Town Centre Regeneration 3.330
Transportation

Various Regional Transport Plan 1.700

Various Local Road Safety Schemes 0.000
Ranger Services

Connahs Quay Wepre Park Development 0.236

TOTAL - ENVIRONMENT 16.565

Page 106



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 APPENDIX 3
Estimate
2013/14
£m
LIFELONG LEARNING
Education - General
Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance 2.350
Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils 0.275
Various Furniture and Equipment 0.060
School Modernisation
Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant 3.437
Various 21st Century Schools 1.308
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.075
General Flying Start Capital Expansion Programme 0.750
TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 8.255

Page 107



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14

APPENDIX 3

Estimate
2013/14
£m

CORPORATE SERVICES
ICT and Customer Services

General ICT Infrastructure 0.410

General Agile Working Investment 0.150

General EDRMS Implementation 0.125

General Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 0.353
Corporate Finance

General Minor Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075

General Corporate Provision - Feasibility Studies 0.100
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects Centres - Development Works 0.500
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

General Provision 0.025

TOTAL - CORPORATE SERVICES 1.738
[  TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 29.908 |
FINANCING

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.263

General Capital Grant 2.603

Capital Receipts 3.910

Specific Capital Grants 12.785

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 3.895

Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) 2.700

(Unallocated) / Under Financing - Headroom (0.248)

TOTAL - FINANCING 29.908

Page 108



‘'sieah Q| xau
8y} Jan0 Jeahk yoea wiGz0 03 AQ seseasoul Ing ‘Buipuny
a|qejleAe paonpal 0} anp (suoneooje swuwelboid
2400 JBYJ0 ypm se) pawuwu} sem Jabpng 8yl

‘saoe|d snjdins jo Jaquinu ay) uodn paseq si }

‘I spaemo} Buipun) 8)nqUIUOD pP|NO2 saluowl
90| uoloeg pajeloosse jo ash ay| “(Jun apqow aoeld
0€ yoeas aoe|dal 0) WOOE 03 JO 1S00 pling ajewixoidde)
swooisse|d ojqow bHuioedas jo joedwi |eloueul
ay) DBuissesse ul jsisse pnom Apnis Ajjiqises) v

‘(S1/7 102 [hun 8duswwod 0} anp jou si Buipuny
ay} ybnoyye) Buipuny jooyos uo joedwi Aj@YI| S pue
(1997) aAeniul BuMmoLIOg JUSWUIBAOL) |ED0T PApUIXd
3y} JO sjie}ap siieme [19uno) ay] "Ajuo ssweyos aaoqge
8y} Joj papieme juelb oyoads e s| Buipun) HAA 8YL

(9M) JuswuIaA09) ysio Aq papuny aq 0} WZ'¥93
a8y} Jo 905 ‘(Ausjsusanp ‘jooyos ybiH siswwng
uyor e s)lom Jo joadsas ul AjjIqixel} Swos Yum)
‘Aenp s yeuuoD pue ||oMAIOH Ul saweyods pasiliold

¢ Buisealou sy 3@6pnq ay) uo ||ed

sy} usym wg0Z 03 Aq pednpal ¢1/1.0Z Ul Uoledo|e
aoueuajuiew pue Jiedas sBuip|ing [ooyos ay} sey AUp e

¢pa| uoneAudap )i S| ;uonesojie
sjooyos AImua) isLZ 8y Jo siseq ay} SI JYm e

¢Aoud Jojealb uanib
8q swooisse|D ajiqow jo juswaoe|dal ay} pinoys e

¢ sanuoud
uojjeonps Jayjo 4o} pasn aq bHuipuny SIyF ue) e

éA0y
SIY} SI JBUM - WZ'$9F UONEDO|[e S|00YOS AInjue) IStz e

UONESIUISPO\ JO0UoS

:sasuodsay

:SUO0[)SaNY pue SUdAWWOo)

‘oN

awiwieibold [e3lde) pung [IoUN0) — S921N0Say 9jeiodio)

ANILNYOS ® MIIANYIAO

¥ XIAN3AddV

Page 109



Apuauno si Aeauns vy ‘sabpuqiooy pue (abplq alysiull
ay) Buipnjour) sabpuq

"gouBUS)uUIBW pue siledal aunol 1o} (susgleals)
1o6pnq 8nuaAsl 8y} UIyIM  wol  pue  (sHiom
jendes Joy) swwelboid 2109 8y} ulyIM woly papiroid
S| SHIOM MaAIND Joj Buipung ‘sanuoud sbeulelp pue
puny 0} (swwelboid 8100 ay} jo do} uo) HAA woly sjueld

oyoads [enueisgns Ul sieAs| 1ebpng sjlouno) Byl e

‘papinoid
aq |m ased ssauisng a9y} jo Adoo y syue} ul pas)
ul Jo [je) 8y} Joj Buipesuadwod sny} ‘Buiom Jusiole
ybnouy; Buionpal st uoidwnsuod ABioue |essusb pue
‘uo saeAow ABojouyosy se uononpold ABisus Ul Jusiolye

ajow pue aAlsuadxa ss8| mou ale (SA\d) SoIejjoAoloyd e

[e SI19A0D uonedoje oyl e

¢ JOA0D SIY) Seop
1euym ‘wog L 03 Ajuo si }obpng — sjuswissassy abpug e

¢ SHOAINO Spunj oym
pue wQgo 03 Aluo 196pnqg s! Ay — abeulesq pue | e

SAeMUBIH

i ABlaua
o|gemeuas o} ased ssauisng ay} sem 1eyp ¢1ebpng
swwelboid 8100 a8y} bBumes ul pasiubooas useq
sy} sey - [|e} |m sasodind Aousiolye ABlsus 1oy uinjal
8y} Agaisy)} pue paonpal aAeYy Sjle] :suofe|ejsul
ABisus s|gemausy - sainsedly Aouaioyyg AbBiauz e

sbuip|ing aAensIuIwpy | 0°'¢
‘lendeo jou anuaaal 0} abieyo
e g Janamoy pjnom syiom Bunuied -(juswuoliAug ‘08 Bunuied Joy Buipuny —
uiypm) 1ebpng  eoueusjuiely Aupedold  8jesodio) SaJ)ua9 ainsig| 1e syiom Joj uoisirnoid Aiejebpng Aue 0}
8y} woliy syiom [eyded Buipuny Joy 8dods BwWos s818Y| e papiaoid se ylonuaded sy} UIYIM 80UBI9)0) OU S2I8Y]| e
aIns|o] | 02
:sasuodsay :suoisany pue sjudwWWo) -ON

awweiboid [ejides pung [IOUN0) — S80iN0sSay 9jelodio)

ANILNYOS B MIINYIAO

¥ XIAN3ddV

Page 110



M ydlepy yigl uo jauige) o} podes swweiboid
jenden ¢ Jopenp ayl Aunniog woly sbessaw 1e9|d
8y} sI siy} — pJemio} [0l Ajjeonewo)ne jou op sjebpng

‘ABojel)S |eloueuld WIS WNIpay pa)ull
ay) pue ‘Absjens |eydeo Buiyosesono oy} Buidojersp
ul usyepspun Miom oibajes}s oy} ul suolesapisuod
Aoy ale sjuswsld |euonippe osay] Bumoliog
(renuspnud) pspoddnsun Aueoyiubis aiow pue (YH30)
JUNOJ2Y 8nusAsy woy peoueuy ainjpuadx3y [ended
‘sjuesb Jo Aem Aq pepunj sawayos asoy} sapnjoul
swuweiboid |eydeo |ejo} 8y} ‘swwesbosd [|endeo
[e10} 8y} JO Ajuo juswad auo s swwelboid 8100 ay]

"ybnoiy) spesy swwelboid sjooyos Aunjuad 1s1g sy
Jo 1oedw (N} 8y} souo wnuue Jad wg' |3 Ajejewixoidde
0} osuU s)soo0 bBumomoq — ue|d |elueul{ Wid]
WNIpa)y 8yl ojul palojoe} usaq aAey sbumouloq |y

‘Buipuny
1o} M AQQo| 0] aAow ||IM |IoUNOD 8y} ‘8|gepioyeun
swoosq sanigel] oaunny | sauow  (sAemybiH)
[g97 w/'Z3 €1/2L02 8yl wol papunj 8ie S)S00
Aanns a8y} ‘ebpug auysiull4 sy} jo 1oadsas ul salljiqel
aJnn} JO Jusxa ||} 9y} ssasse 0} Jopio ul Aemuspun

¢buipunj Jnoyum
ye| sewayos |enusjod Jayjo ale aidy} usaym plemio}
|04 Ajjeonewoyne sjebpng swwelbouid uadsun op AYm

‘sieak Q| 8y} Jo Jeak yoes o} pajeadal Ajaiawl
ole seale swwesbosd snouea a8y} ssosoe sainbly
oy} ueym swwelboid 8100 Jeak QL B aAeYy am Aym
puejsiepun 0} Buybbnis w,| — awweibold |ejded

juonisod anuaaal s,|Iouno)d
8y} uo joedw JuSWHWWOD (piemio) pue) ¢€1/Z1L0Z 8y}
seop MOH — Buimouog (jenuapnid) pauoddnsun

ZENER)

0°'S

:sosuodsay

:suolsany pue sjusWWo)

‘ON

awlwe.lbold |ejided pund |IoUNo0) — S834N0SAY ajelod.io)

ANILNYOS B M3IAYIAO

¥ XIAN3AddV

Page 111



"S9OIYa parjoeg
jJossy Buipnpoul aoueuly |ended asiel 0) sAem dAljeaId
atow ojul Buoo| aq [|m JIouno) syl AlsAlep 99IAI8S
ain)ny 4o} painnbal aie Yolym 8soy} pue jo pasodsip
8Q Ued UdIyM 89S0y} — p|ay S}SSSE JO snjels oy} ssasse
0} J9PJO Ul N0 paLIBD 3Q O} S| M3IASI }9SSE Pa|le}ap Y

‘pauels
194 J0u sawayos Buipiebal uonisod psjepdn ay) apiaoid

;s1dieoal ajes pajedionue jo 1st| 8y} ul uolje|noads
JO [9A9] e alay} s| "Adljod |esodsip josse ay) buipsebal
painbai S| uoieoyLe|d swog — s)assy Jo |esodsiqg

:sasuodsay

:suonsany pue sjusWWo)

‘ON

swiwieabold [ejide) pung [IDUN07) — Se2In0sSay 9jeiodio))

ANILNYOS ® MIIANAGIAO

¥ XIAN3ddV

Page 112



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2012

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR

OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: CAPITAL STRATEGY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2013/14 TO 2022/23

URPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of the report is to —

(a) Propose the allocation of funding to the core -capital
programme in 2013/14 (with indicative allocations for future
years).

(b)  Set out the work that has been undertaken (and continues), to
develop a Council Fund Capital Strategy and 10 year Capital
Programme for the Council.

BACKGROUND

The Council plans on a 4 year capital programme timescale. In June
2011, the Council formally adopted its Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS). Two of the key objectives of the MTFS are to
ensure that revenue and capital resources are used to achieve the
Council's priorities and objectives, and to fully integrate revenue and
capital expenditure plans. The co-planning of revenue and capital
budgets is essential, for example, to meet the repayment of
unsupported borrowing to support the core capital programme for
investment in infrastructure.

One of the Council's 10 priorities is to 'Be a modern, efficient and cost
effective public organisation through our four resource strategies -
MTFS, People, Asset Management and ICT". The Asset
Management Strategy is key to determining which assets the Council
wishes to hold in its portfolio for future service delivery. From this,
plans can be drawn up as to where capital investment is required (in
new or upgraded facilities), and where there are opportunities to
release resources through asset disposals. Asset decisions are
based on priority to support services, asset condition and
deterioration, asset growth to suit service purpose and heaith and
safety and other requirements.

Page 113



2.03

2.04

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

This report covers the Council Fund only. The Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) capital programme will be considered alongside the
HRA revenue budget proposals for 2013/14. This will be reported to
Cabinet and Scrutiny in January 2013 prior to the final proposals
being recommended by Cabinet to County Council in February 2013.

The Local Government Final Settiement is due to be announced on
11th December 2012, and an update will be provided on the detail at
the meeting.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

The aim of the Capital Strategy is to have in place a 10 year
affordable, prioritised programme of all capital needs.

Due to the impacts on public expenditure constraint of National UK
Government economy management decisions, the Council’'s core
capital programme is constrained and is coming under severe
pressure to maintain our assets portfolio from schools to roads.
Welsh Government specific funding sources for capital investment in
particular services are limited and are being directed to a small
number of policy priorities.

This position means that the Council will:-

¢ Need to be more strategic and decisive over the asset portfolio
it needs to retain to support service priorities and the portfolio it
can release.

e Need to be more creative about partnering, e.g. Flintshire
Connects, Community Asset Transfer.

e Be more creative over capital access options and models (e.g.
directing its own investment, asset backed vehicles.)

¢ Rely on more unsupported borrowing to fund priorities, e.g.
schools.

The challenges and opportunities were explored at a recent Member
Workshop which was well attended. The work programmes of
Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, and the MTFS, will need to
reflect these actions.

A significant impact will be the School Modernisation Programme as
part of the Capital Strategy and Capital programme 2012/13 to
2021/22. Funding support of 50% towards estimated costs of
£64.2m will come from Welsh Government through 21st Century
Schools finance for the preferred options in the three schools area
reviews.

Page 114



3.06

4.00
4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.01.1

5.01.2

5.01.3

There will be significant pressure on the block allocations for core
services in the ‘static’ programme. Careful decision making on
allocations across and within these blocks is required to best match
resources to priorities. Council officials, both client and contractor,
must ensure that value for money is obtained in service design
specifications and contract tendering.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BORROWING INITIATIVE (LGBI)

A further £4m is to be made available across Wales by Welsh
Government in 2013/14 under the Local Government Borrowing
Initiative (on top of the £4m provided in 2012/13) to support the
borrowing charges (revenue) of highways capital works. This
equates to £2.7m for Flintshire in both 2013/14 and 2014/15.
Proposals on how this funding will be utilised in 2012/13 are included
in a separate report on this agenda.

In addition to the above, Welsh Government has recently announced
an extension of the LGBI to include schools; this will bring forward
funding (between 2014/15 and 2016/17) of £200m across Wales, in
relation to their share of the 21st Century Schools Programme.

CAPITAL FUNDING AVAILABLE

Capital funding comes from a variety of sources —

General -
» Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)
» General Capital Grant (GCG)
» Capital Receipts

Specific -
« Specific Capital Grants
» Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing
» Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue Account (CERA)

USB and GCG are as advised by Welsh Government through the
Finance Settlement, and are available for the Council to determine
their use. Specific Grants are also received from Welsh Government
(and other funding bodies), but allocated for specific purposes as
defined by the relevant funding body.

Capital Receipts are the proceeds from asset disposals - land and
buildings, and again are available for the Council to determine their
use.

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing is that borrowing which, as the
name implies, is not supported by Welsh Government - borrowing
costs (principal and interest) have to be met by the Council from the
revenue budget.

Page 115



5.01.4

5.02

5.02.1

5.03

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue Account (CERA) is
capital expenditure paid for by way of a direct charge to the service
revenue account.

The total projected funding available over the 10 year period 2013/14
to 2022/23, by way of the above general sources, amounts to
£108.516m as detailed in Appendix 1 (attached); the proposed Core
Programme Scheme expenditure (as referred to in Section 6.01
below) amounts to £91.961m (as included in Appendix 1), which
produces an available total of £16.555m to fund other programme
schemes over the period.

In view of the projected shortfall in 2014/15 (£0.140m), which follows
a 2013/14 available funding figure of just £0.250m, it may be prudent
to consider a consolidated two year programme (2013/14/15). On this
basis a cumulative total of £0.110m would be available to provide
some headroom for variances.

It can be seen that, taking account of the funding information provided
in 5.02 above, there is currently no general funding available to
support new capital investment outside of the core programme
schemes (see Section 6.00 below) during the consolidated two year
programme period (2013/14/15), without the introduction of new and
creative ways of delivering capital investment (as described in
Section 3.00).

CORE CAPITAL SCHEMES

'Core' schemes are those that require capital works on an on-going
basis in order to ensure life and use enhancement; such schemes
include Energy Efficiency Measures, Highways Infrastructure Works,
and School Building Works. The proposed Core schemes (as outlined
at the Capital Workshop on 22nd November 2012), are detailed in
Appendix 2 as attached.

The Appendix 2 information reflects a reviewed position (from that
incorporated in the Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2012/13
to 2021/22) in terms of the listed values, which takes account of the
revised available funding projections as referred to in Section 5.02
above. Also included within the Appendix 2 totals are those new
schemes approved in 2012/13, funded from the headroom available
at the time; these schemes drop out of the analysis in entirety, by the
end of 2015/16. The impact on the available funding resources of
financing these schemes is recorded in Appendix 1.

A request was received at the Capital Workshop (22nd November
2012) for a reconciliation between the Appendix 2 figures and the
indicative Core Programme Schemes list that formed part of the
aforementioned Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2012/13 to
2021/22; this reconciliation is included as Appendix 3. The adjusted

Page 116



7.00

7.01

7.02

8.00
8.01

9.00
9.01
10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

figures reflect those changes referred to in Section 6.02 above, and
as noted in the key to Appendix 3; in most cases the ‘trimmed’
2013/14 programme scheme budgets are reinstated across the
subsequent 9 years (2014/15 to 2022/23).

CONSULTATION

A meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee has been scheduled for 31st January 2013, at which the
capital programme proposals as set out in this paper will be
considered. The scrutiny meeting will be open to all Members of the
Council. Final capital proposals for 2013/14 will be considered by
Cabinet in February prior to a recommendation to Council on
1% March 2013.

A public consultation survey which covers aspects of the Council's
Revenue and Capital Budget Strategies is due to open between 21st
December 2012 and 20th January 2013.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

(a) Note the work which has been undertaken (and continues) to
develop a Council Fund Capital Strategy and 10 year capital
programme.

(b) Approve the allocation of funding to the core capital
programme in 2013/14 as shown in Appendix 2 (and note the
indicative allocations for future years), subject to input by
Overview & Scrutiny.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-
poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

Page 117



13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members and Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

An initial workshop on capital was held on 22nd November 2012 for
all Members. A public consultation survey is due to open between
21st December 2012 and 20th January 2013.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Available Funding

Appendix 2 — Core Capital Programme Schemes

Appendix 3 - Core Programme Schemes (Reconciliation to 2012/13
Budget Figures)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: = Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 118



wgoy'zy 929 = E«EN_

SLIVLOZ SB < 9L/GL0C
uswapag |euoisiold (r1/E102) 19 GLIYLOZ

juswaes [euoisinoid ;ad  pL/ELOZ

999 - suojjdwnsse Buipun) OM #

wipls3 asn = ...:wsu_

SLiYL0Z S8 <« 91/5L02
WIWIMPS [RUoiSInaLd (¥1/E102) 421 SLivL0Z

Jawapes [euoisinoid Jad  pL/ELOZ

asn - suondwnsse Bupuny oM

§65°91 Fis 440 yszeL 150°0L 128 10S°S 8LL'9 0z9't oL’ 0sZ°0 aApeInnd
555791 860°C £02°'C £02°C £02'2 LyE'e (229'0) 855°Z 0LS'E (ob1L°0) 052°0 (NVALYOHS)AEVIVAY|
196°L6 598°'8 598°'8 598’8 598’8 598'8 598'8 698'8 568'8 £8¥°01 825°01 leloL
196°L6 c98'8 598'8 598'8 598'8 598'8 c98'8 698’8 c68'8 £8y°0L 82501 | xipuaddy - sswayos swwesboid |eyde) 8109
ainjipuadx3y
915°801 £96°0L 890°LL 890°LL 890°LL L 881’8 £ZYLL Sob'Zh £YEoL 8LLOL 1e0L
9£8°6€ 560% 002'¥ 002 002y prey oze’L 685’V LES'S SLyE 0L6'e sidiaoay |ended
086'SC 865 8652 865 865C 865°C 865C 865 865°C 865 865°C # (909) ueig |eyde) |esous)
ooLzy YAl 0Ly 0.2V (\Yr44 VYA 0Ly YA YAl ka4 oLy . (gsn) Bumouog pauoddng pajesayjodAyun
(sjueag aaadg Buipnjaxg) budueury
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
|elol €z/zz0z  zz/hzOZ  LZ/0Z0Z  O026LOZ  6L/8LOZ  8L/LLOZ  LL9LOZ  9LISLOZ  SWVLOZT  PLIELOZ

I XIONIddV

£2/2202 - ¥1/£10Z2 ONIANNd 379V TIVAV Q3LVINILSS

Page 119



196'v6 |[ 5988 | 998 | cos8 |s988 |s988 | G9s'8 [ 998 | 568’8 | c8yOL | 8250l ONIONVNIZ - V101
(ges91) |[|{(86072) (e0c'2) (coe2) (coe2) V2754 1190 (865°¢2) (oLs¢) orLo (06Z°0) Buioueulq 1epup / (Wooipesy - pajesojjeun)
5000 ][ 0000 | 0000 |0000 | 0000 |0000 | 0000 |0000 |0000 | 0000 | 0000 BUIMoLI0g (JEfUapnId) pepoddnsun
0000 || 0000 0000 | 0000 | 0000 |0000 | 0000 |0000 |0000 0000 | 0000 SJUeI5 [eNdes ouoads mu
9cg6E |[S60v |00cv |00z |00V | vbev | Ocel | Sssv | Z66G | GlvE | OL6E Sidisoay [enden (N
086Gz || 865 | 869C | 865 | 865C | 86GC | 86GC | 865C | 86GC | 86GC | B6S¢C JUEID [enden [eieuen v
0022v |[0l2v |olzv |o0lzv |0izv |Olzv _|0i2v |Oicv |0/Zv __|Olcy |0V {§Sn) Bumoliog papoddns pajeoayjodAuun mW
ONIONVNIJ
196'16 |[Go8'8 | s988 | S988 [s598'8 |9988 | 5988 | S988 | S68'8 | c8v 0L | 825 0L aNNd 1IONNOD - 1IVLO0L
9807 |[0osy0 |osv0 [0Sv0 | 0sv0 [0S0 | 0SP0 | 0S¥0 | 08v0 | 8LZL | 8eL L S3DIANTS ILVY0dH0D
0vc'LC 0cL¢C 0cLe 0cLe Q2L e QeLe QcLe 0cLC 0cLe 0cLe 09.¢C ONINYY3T ONO134IT
0lg0oc |[ozoe |ozo€ | 0z0t | 020€ | 020€ | Oc0€ |ocoe | 020t | Olee  |o08CE ININNOYIANT
cze9z |[Sloz  |si9¢ |sioc | sioc |Gi9¢ |Gl9¢ | Gi9¢ | Gl9¢ | Gl9c |0sie SIOIAYAS ALINOIWNOD
aNnd IONNOD
AYVARNNS
(7] ] g ] w3 w3 w3 ] g w3 w3
SAREOIPU] | SATEDIPU] | SAEDIPU] | SAFEDIPU] | SATESIPU] | SATEOIPU] | SAREDIPU] | SAREDIPUL | SAREJIPUL | SIEWRST
V.10l £2/eT0e (4415414 1210202 02/6102 6118102 81L/L102 L118102 91/510T SLivi0Z y1I£102

¢ XION3ddV

SINIHIOS FNNVHYOOUC TVLIdVI JHOD



018°0¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°€ 020°¢ 020°¢ 020°¢ 0LE°€ 082°¢ INIWNOYIANG - TVLOL
0061 0610 |06L0 |06L0 |06L0 |06LO |O6LO |0O6L0 |06L0 |06L0 |06LO Uonelauabay ajus) UMOL SNOLEA
0511 SLL0 |SLb0 | SLb0 | SLb0 | SLb0 | SLb0  [SLLO | SHEO [ SLL0 [ SHLD SATEnIU] abejoH 8deosUMo L Wi
uoneiausbay
0Z8’L 08L°0 08L0 08L0 08L 0 08L°0 0o8L0 08L0 08L°0 08L0 002°0 aogueusjulely [einonais SNOUEA
0cs’L 08L°0 08L°0 08L'0 08L°0 08L°0 08L°0 08L0 08L0 0810 0020 Juawade|dey Bunybi) 19eus snouep
oLs’L 0SL°0 0SL°0 0sL°0 0SL0 0SL°0 0SL'0 0SL°0 0SL°0 0sL°0 0910 jusweoe|day pue SjusLWISSassy abpug snouep
0s€°L 0S.°0 0SL°0 08.°0 0S.°0 0SL°0 06.°0 0S.°0 0620 0610 0090 ainjonyjselyu| shemybiH Snouep
sAemybiy
4
OLL'L 0LL'0 OLL'0 0LL0 oLL0 oLL0 0LL0 oLLo oLL0 0LL0 0Zl'0 |eauag) - SHIOAA UOIJO8}0.d JSE0D snouepn QN
G620 S.0°0 G200 G600 §.00 G.00 G.00 G.0°0 G200 S.0°0 080°0 |eJausn) - SHIOM abeuieiq pue snouep <
m:_hwo:mﬁ
000°S 00S°0 00S°0 0050 0050 00S°0 00S°0 00S°0 0050 00S°0 0050 aoueusjuieN Auadoid ajelodio) snollep
000°L 00L0 00L°0 0010 0010 00L0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 SHIOAA J8pIO Ajajes alld snoliep L
G650 SG0°0 GS0°0 SS0°0 SS0°0 SS0°0 SS0°0 G500 SS0°0 GS0°0 0900 swie]y JapnJju| pue a1i4 Bulpesbdn SNoUeA
S0.°0 0,00 0,00 0,00 0400 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 G/0°0 Buojuoy ejjauoiba snollep
G0.L0 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 S.0°0 |EAOWIDY SO}Saqsy snollep
00270 0560 | 0S€0 SuonejeIsu] ABious S[qemausy SNOLEA
516C 0060|0080 |0060 |00c0 |00c0 | 000 |00E0G | 0060 | 00E0 | GZcO seinsea|\ Aousljg ABiaug SNOLEA
SSLL SZL0 [ SZ10 |SLI0 [SZ10  |SZL0 |SZL0 | GZL0 | SZL0 | GZL0_ [08LO SYIOM (VaQ) 10V UoHeulwiosia Aigesia SNOUEN
sbuipjing aAnensIuILPY
LININNOMIANI
§28°9¢ §19°C S19°C §19°C Gl9°¢C S.9°C §19°C §19°C §.19°¢C G§19°C 0S.°C SADIANIS ALINNIWNOD - TV1OL
G§/2°¢C G¢Z0 G¢Z'0 G220 §¢C'0 I 144)] S TAAY) T44 ] 144 44y, 020 yoddng ealy [emausy buisnoH uojyoys
0SS 0sv'C 0sv'e 0S¢ 0Sv'¢c 0sve 0sv'e 0sy'¢ [035 44 0sy'2 00sec SjuswaAcIdul| pUB [EMBUSY J0JO8S 8jeAlld SNOUEBA
ueln
SADIAYIS ALINNWWOD
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
SARESIPU] | SAFESIPU] | SAREDIPU] | SAREJIPU] | SATEDIPU] | SARESIPU| | SAREDIPU] | SAREDIPU[ | SAREJIPU] | S1ewnsT |
TV10L £2/2202 (4415474 1210202 02/6L02 6118102 81/L102 1119102 91/15102 SLivi02 vLELDZ

SINIHOS FWNVHOOUC TVLIdVI FH0D



[tee'16 |[sos8 |[sess [g98'8 |G98'8 |g98'8 |598'8 |998'8 [g68'8 |¢c8v0l [825°0b | aNnd 1IONNOD - TVIOL |
[e80'Z |[0sv0 [osy0 [0sy0 | O0Sy0 [osv'0 |[0Sy0 |OSsv0 [08¥0 [8i2h [s8eh | SIDINYIS ILVHOLHO0D - TVIOL |
0520 G200 G200 6200 G200 5200 5200 G200 5200 5200 5200 uoisiroid [B18UBD
niwko neay| pAmpo
000°L 00L°0 0010 0010 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 00L°0 saipnig Ajiqisea - uoisinoid ejesodiod ZEED)
0S.°0 600 6200 6200 600 600 G.0°0 600 GL00 6.0°0 GL0°0 Kiejes 3 yjjeaH - SI0M |eyded Jouliy [eJausD
aoueuld ajesodiod
000} 005°0 0050 $108UU0Y BJIYSuI| SnoLeA
$)99UU0) AYsul
(@
9040 €6E0 £6E°0 Juswaaiby asudiajug Yosoolp |elouen
0Z¥0 0120 0120 ainonnsesjul Lol [EJBUSD
0920 0€0°0 GOL'0 GzL'0 uonejuawaldw) SWHA3 ZEER)
0520 00L°0 05L°0 juaunsaAul BUDIOAA 3)1BY [J8USD (1
0Sv'2 0520 0520 0520 0520 0520 052°0 0520 0520 0520 0020 ainpnJseyu| L] [ersusg A
S32IA19G JBWO)SN) pue | 9|
SADIAYIAS ALVHOdNO0D
ovz'Lz || 0zl 02L'e 0Z.'2 0.2 02L'e 02.'7 02.°2 02.'C 02.'2 09.'2 ONINNVYIT ONOT3IT - V101
S0L°0 0,00 0200 0200 000 000 0200 0200 0200 0200 GL0°0 {aseyd uolepunoJ) sjusliuoIiAug buiuiea] SNOLIBA
sjooysg Ateuwild
GGS0 G500 G500 G500 G500 G500 5500 G500 G500 G500 0900 juswdinb3 pue ainjiuing SnoLieA
S0.°C 0/2°0 020 020 020 0/2°0 0.2°0 0.20 0/20 0.2°0 G.20 sjidnd [ENpIAIpU] - JoY uoleulwdsig Aljigesiq Snoliep
g/zee || seee 52€T 522 52T G2ee Gze'T G2eT 52eT Gze'T 05€2 aoueusjule|y pue siiedsy sbulp|ing jooyds snoueA
[el2uag - uoneanp3y
ONINYVY31 ONO13dI
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
SAIESIPU] [ SAfEDIpUY [ 8AnEIIPU] | SANESIPUL | SAEOIPU| [SAREDIPU| | SAREIIPU] | 9AREDIPU| [ 8AREDIPU] | SjewlsT
1v.10L £2/2202 22/1202 1210202 02/6102 6118102 8LL1L0Z L1902 91/S102 SLivioZ 1102

SINIHOS FNNVHOOUd TVLIdVI FH0D



1ebpng €1/2102 Jed se ,

696°L WwooJpeaH pasnpay

LWL Buipun4 paonpay

8250 196png JaN paseasou

w3 (anoge woyy) sisAjeuy
| 696°L [{osz:0) l{612°2) | WOO¥AV3H I1aVIIVAY
(L)) 822°01 612°Cl ONIONVNIH - TV10L
0000 0000 000°0 Buimoliog (jlenuapnid) pauoddnsun
0000 0000 000°0 sjuels) |eyde) oy0sds
(ost'1) 016'¢€ 09€°S sydieday [enden
(£00°0) 865°C G09'C JuEIS) [eyde] [eeua
9100 (V44 [ T44 {gsn) bumouiog pspoddng pajesayjodAyun
ONIONVNIJ
825°0 825'01 000°01 aNNd 7IONNOJ - TVILIOL
8080 8cl’1 0€6°0 S3IJINGFS FLVHO4H0D
(S0Z°0) 09,2 G96°C ONINYVY31 ONO134IT
SZL'0 08C’E GG1°¢ INIJNNONHIANT
(002°0) 0S.°C 0562 S3DINYIS ALINNWNOD
aNn4 7IONNOJ
AJVYINNNS

w3 w3 w3
ojlewnsy | . |Aleolpu|
adueueA pLIELOZ vLIELOZ

(s3¥N914 139an4g £1/2102 OL NOILVITIONOD3N)
AYVININNS - ¥1/€102 STINTHOS JNINVHO0Ud JH0D

€ XION3ddV

Page 123



age 124

§20°0 S¢0°0 §20°0 §¢0°0 6200 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 $20°0 §20°0 (00z"0) ajuelep
§28'92 §.9C §19C §.9C §.9C §19C §.9C SL9C §.9°C §19¢ 0sLe 147413
008°92 059°C 059°C 059°¢C 059 059¢C 059°C 059°C 059°C 059°C 056°C 147143 SIDIAYTS ALINNWWOD -TV.1O0L
0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 aouelLeA
e TXAA §2Z'0 erAA] 5220 reAl) §22°0 S22°0 S2Z°0 e TAA G220 0520 vLEL
TR A4 eraAl era Al §2z'0 S22°0 G220 S22°0 G220 6220 5220 0sZ0 el yoddng eary |emauay buisnoH uojoys
5200 5200 5200 G200 S200 G200 S20°0 G200 §200 5200 (00z'0) SouelEeA
0S§5°vC osv'e 0sve osv'e 0sv'e osye osye 0svy'e 0sye osve 00s¢C viel
S¢Sy SZy'e SZve SZy'e Sev'e 1444 Sev'e T4 &4 Seve 1444 00L¢C el b sjuawacidw| pue [emauay J0j3S ajeAld Snolep
sjueis
S3ADIANIS ALINNWNOD
{mojeq
w3 w3z w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3z 8ag)
aviolL €2/220T TZ/LZOZ  L2/0Z0Z  0Z/6LOZ  6L/8LOT  SL/LLOZ  LML/GLOZ  9L/SLOZ  SLPLOZ  YLELOZ  139ANA A3

€ XION3ddV

(S3¥N9I4 139an9 £1/210Z OL NOLLVITIONODIY) £2/2202 - ¥1/£10Z SANTHOS ANWNVIOOUd JH0D



0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 aoUBlEeA
oLL'L oLLo oLLo oLL0 oLL'o OoLL'0 oLL'o oLL'o oLLo oLL'o ocLo yLEL
oLL'L oLLo oLL0 oLL'0 0LL'0 0LL0 0LL'0 oLL'0 oLLo 0LL0 0cL'o et |BJ8US9) - SHIOAA UONIB]0Id 1SB0D Snouep
0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 000°0 000°0 0000 0000 souelep
S§6.°0 SL0°0 G200 G200 S.00 SL0°0 .00 §.0°0 .00 S.0°0 0800 yLEL
GGL°0 SL00 G200 GL00 S.0°0 SL0°0 SL0°0 SL0°0 .00 S.0°0 0800 eweL [eJ2u39 - SO beuresq pue Snouep
Bunsauibug
0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 asueleA
000°S 0050 0050 0050 0050 0050 005°0 0050 0050 0050 0050 pLEL
000°S 0050 0050 0050 0050 0050 0050 00S5°0 0050 0050 005°0 ELL soueusjuiely Auadoud sjesodio)d snouep
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 souelep
000°L ooLo 0010 00L°0 00L0 00L0 0010 00L0 ooL'0 00L°0 ooL'0 vLIEL
000°L 0oL0 0010 00L°0 00L0 0010 0010 00L°0 00L0 0010 00L°0 el SHIOM J2pi0 Asjes ally Snolep
0000 000°0 000°0 000°0 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 aoueleA
G650 G500 §S0°0 SS0°0 SS0°0 G§50°0 §50°0 G500 G600 GS0°0 0900 vLEL
GSS°0 G500 G600 GG60'0 G500 §50°0 SS0°0 §S0°0 G600 G500 0900 ezl suwwuejy Japnuju) pue aug Buipesbdn shouep 0
0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 000°0 aoueleA M
S0L°0 0L00 0,00 0L0°0 0,00 0L0°0 0L0°0 0L0°0 0.00 0,00 S.00 yLEL )
0.0 0,00 0L00 0L0°0 0.0°0 0.00 0L0°0 0.0°0 000 000 S.0°0 ELCL Buuoyuop ejjsuoiba SNoUeA (@))
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 aouelep m
S0L°0 0,070 0L0°0 0.00 0.00 000 0.0°0 0200 000 0L0°0 S.0°0 vLEL
S0L°0 0.0°0 0L00 0.00 0.0°0 0L00 0L00 0.0°0 0.0°0 0,00 SL00 A4S |EAOWSY Sojsagsy snoliep
00L°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0s€0 0S€°0 ouBlLEeA
0020 0S€°0 0S€0 yLEL [4
000°0 ezl suonejeisu| Absaug ajqemausy SNoueA
(520°0) 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 (520°0) VUELEA
S.6°C 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 G120 yLEL
000'c 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 00€°0 ELeL 1 sainsea|y Aousioyg ABisug SNoueA
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 90UBLIEA
GSL'L SLL°0 SLL0 SLL'0 S.L°0 S.L°0 SLL'0 SLL0 S/L°0 S0 08L°0 yLEL
GSL'L S.L0 SLL0 S.L'0 S.L°0 S.L'0 SLL'0 SLL'0 S/L'0 S.1L°0 08L’0 1A A8 syioM (Vaa) 1ov uoneuiuuosiq Aigesiq snolep
sBuip|ing aAnessiuIWpPY
1INIWNOHIANT
{moteq
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 29g)
aviol €2/220Z  22/1Z0Z  12/0Z0Z  0Z/6LOZ  6L/8LOZ  BL/LLOZ  LL/9LOZ  9L/SLOZ  SL/YLOZ  ¥L/ELOZ  139ANd A3

€ XION3ddV

(S3¥N9I4 139an9g £41/210Z OL NOLLYITIONODIY) £2/2202 - ¥1/€L0Z STNIHOS IWNVHOONd FH0D



Page 126

00L°0 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 200 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 S.2°0 sZL°0 aJueleA
018°0¢ 0z20°¢ 0z0°c 020°€ 020°c 020t 0z0't 020°c 020°c (17345 082°¢ 1471541
oLL0e $66°C §66°C $66°C $66°C $66°'C G66°C G66'C §66°C 566°C SS1L°E €Lzl LINIJWNOYIANS - TV1O0L
000°0 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 aoueUBA
006°L 0610 06L°0 06L°0 0610 061°0 061°0 06L°0 06L°0 06L°0 0610 yLEL
006°L 0610 06L°0 0610 06L°0 06L°0 0610 0610 06L°0 0610 0610 (4714} uonessuabay ajua) umoL snouep
0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 S0uelleA
0st’L SLL'0 SLLO SLL0 SLL0 SLL'0 G110 SLL0 SLL'0 SLL'0 S0 vLieL
0sLL SLL0 GLL0 SLL0 SLL0 SLL'0 SLL0 SLL0 SLL0 SLL'0 SLL0 ELeL aAnenu) sbejus adeasumol w4
uonjeiauabay
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 2ouelep
0ze’L 08L'0 0810 08L°0 08L0 08L0 08L0 0810 0810 08L0 0020 vLIEL
0ze’L 08L0 08L°0 08L0 08L0 08L°0 08L0 08L0 0810 08L'0 0020 el SoueUSIUIBI |BINONIS SNOUEA
0000 000°0 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 aouelep
0ze’L 08L°0 08L°0 08L0 08L°0 08L°0 08L0 0810 08L’0 08L°0 0020 vLEL
0z’ 08L°0 08L'0 08L°0 08L0 08L°0 08L°0 0810 08L'0 08L0 0020 AN} Jswaoeday Bunybi jJeans snouep
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 SoueLiEA
oLs’L 0SL0 0SL0 0sL0 osLo 0sLo 0SL°0 osLo 0sLo [0}2] 0] 09L0 viEL
015t 0510 0510 0510 0sL°0 0SL°0 0510 0SL0 0sL'0 0SL°0 ogLo el sweoeidey pue syuswssassy abpug snouep
G200 G200 G200 G200 G200 G200 G200 G200 §200 6200 (00z'0) aouBlLEA
0se’L 0520 0S.°0 0S.°0 0S.°0 0S.0 0S2°0 0S.0 0S.°0 0s.20 0090 yLEL
CTAA STAN G2L0 62l 0 G2ZL0 [ TAAI] ScL'0 ecL0 szL0 g2l 0 0080 €Lz 3 ainpnuseyu) skemybiy SnoueA
sAemybiy
{moteq
w3y w3y w3 w3 w3y w3 w3z w3z w3 w3 w3y ees)
aviol €2/220Z TZ/VZ0Z  12/020Z 0Z/6L0Z  6L/8LOZ  8L/LLOZ  LL/9LOZ  9LSLOZ  SkivLOZ  vL/ELOZ  139ANE  AIM

€ XION3ddV

(s334N914 139and €1/Z210Z OL NOILVITIONODIY) €2/2202 - ¥1/€10Z STNTHOS INNVEOO0Ud FH0D



Page 12

020°0 §20°0 6200 5200 §20°'0 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 §20°0 (s0z°0) aJueliep
ove'Le ozle 0zLe 0zLe 0zLe 0zLe 0zLe ozLe ozLe ozLe 09.°C 14713
0zz'L2 §69°C §69°C 569°C $69°C $69°C §69°C $69°C $69°C §69°C §96°C €Lzl ONINYYIT ONOT3HIT - TVIOL
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 soueliep
S0L°0 0,00 0.0°0 0400 0.00 0.0°0 0,00 0.0°0 0,00 0.00 §.0°0 yLEL
S0L°0 0.0°0 000 000 0,00 0.0°0 000 0.00 0,00 000 S.00 ELeL (sseud uonepunog) sjuswuosaul bulusea snoueA
sjooyoss Aewnd
0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 VUBLIBA
GGS0 G500 §50°0 G500 §500 GS0°0 §50°0 §50°0 SS0°0 G600 0900 yLIEL
GGS50 GS0°0 G500 G500 G500 GS0°0 §50°0 G500 G500 §S0°0 03800 elel juswdinb3 pue ainpuing Snouep
0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 000°0 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 8ouBlIeA
S0L°C 0.20 020 020 0.2°0 0420 020 0420 020 0420 G20 147018
50.°C 0.20 020 020 020 0420 0.20 0420 020 020 S.2°0 14 574% s|idnd [enpiaipu] - 1oy uoleuluLosIq Aljigesia SNoueA
0200 G200 G200 5200 G200 G200 6200 §20°0 5200 G200 (s0z°0) aoueleA
AR XA AN T4 N4 Geee TANA AN A G2ee S TANA STANA geee 0se'e yLEL
GGZ'EeT 00€C 00€2 00€eC 0oeC 00€C 00€C 00EC 00ee 00€C §66¢C ELCL I soueuajuiei pue siedsy sbulpjing jooyos snouep
|e13uag - uojeanp3y
ONINYVIT ONOI3dIN
{moaq
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 29g)
aviol €2/220Z ZZ/120T  bZ/OZOZ 0Z/6L0Z  6L/8LOC  BL/LLOZ  LL/9LOZ  9L/SLOZ  SL/VLOZ  vLELOZ 139ANG A3

€ XION3ddV

(S34N9I4 139an9 £41/2102 OL NOLLVITIONODIY) £2/2202 - ¥1/€10Z STNTHOS INNVAOO0NUd FH0D



Page 128

(0sL°¢) (62¢'0)  (sze0) (500 {sz80) (sz£0)  (sie0)  (sLe0)  (G2e0)  (G80)  (5L€°0) 9ouBLEA
vieL
0sL'e SlE0 G.E0 SLEO SLED S.€0 SLE0 GLE0 GLE0 SLE°0 SLE0 el € « (ma1nay Buisnol 0} Josfang) suondo 3ools Buisnoy |elauag
(000'1) (001°0) (ooL"0) (0010 (0010} (00L°0) (0010 (o010} (00L0) (00L°0) (001°0) uelep
0001 00L0 0010 00L0 0010 00L0 0010 00L°0 ooLo ooLo 0010 pLIEL
000¢C 00c0 0020 0020 00z0 0020 0020 0020 0020 0020 000 ezl I saipnis Aljiqises - uoisirold ajesodiod |[ejsusg
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 aoueueA
0S.°0 S.00 SL00 S.0°0 S.00 S.0°0 5100 §.0°0 .00 S.0°0 S.0°0 pLEL
0S.0 G.00 SL00 /00 S.00 S.0°0 S.00 .00 S.00 G.00 §.00 eLet Kjages 3 yileaH - SYIO0M [elided Jouiy |essusg
adueul ajesodion
000°L 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0050 00S°0 aouelep
000°L 0050 00S°0 yLEL Z
000°0 IANA) S)08UUOY aNYSUIl4 snolep
S}o8uuo anysjulld
90L0 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 €5£°0 €GE°0 8oueleA
90.°0 €6€°0 €GE°0 pLIEL [4
00070 cLZL Juswaaiby asudiajug yososon |eJsusg
ocvo 0000 000°0 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 oLco oLco aoueLeA
ocyo oLeo oLco 147143 k4
000°0 el aimpnuseyu) 1901 |ejauag)
0920 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0€0°0 S0L°0 GeLo 9oUBLEA
0920 0€0°0 S0L°0 GZLo pLEL [4
0000 eLeL uonejuswadw| SINMA3 |essua)
0520 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 000°0 0000 00L0 0510 aduelep
0§20 00L'0 0610 1471 4
0000 AN AN juswi)sanu) Gunjopp ayiby |eJsuac)
e TAN1] 0200 0200 0200 0200 0200 0200 0200 0200 0200 (550°0) aouelIeA
osv'e 0szo 0s20 0520 0sz0 0sZ'0 0520 0sZ'0 0sZ'0 0SZ°0 0020 vLIEL
i TA A 0€20 0€2°0 0€20 0€2°0 0€20 0€£2°0 0€C0 0€Z'0 0€2°0 §62°0 ELrey I ampniseyu) 191 |eJauag
S3921AJ9G JBW0ISN) pue 19)
S3JIANYIS LVHOdN0D
(mojeq
w3 w3 w3y w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 a9g)
aviol €2/220Z ZZ/L20T  12/020CZ  0Z/6LOZ  6L/8LOZ  8L/LLOZ  LL/ALOZ  9L/SLOZ  SLPLOZ  vL/€LOZ  13O9ANG A3

€ XION3ddVv

(S3uN9I4 139an9 £4/210Z OL NOLLVITIONOD3Y) £2/2202 - ¥1/€10Z SANIHOS IWWVHOOAUd FH0D



-(wooipesy Wold) £1/Z102 Ul parcidde Sawayas JO JNSa) B SB SPIBMUO $1/¢10Z O MaN

-Jojjeg BuisnoH ayj Jo nsai e se papasu JabuojoN ¢

]

*s1eak ainyny Joao pajyold-a1 Ing suonjoaafoid Buipuny paanpal yym aui| uy paanpar 18bpng ¥L/€102 1 A

126pnq [euonIppe/PaseaIdLl Ue pajayoelqun 4ebpng paonpal e ajeaipul sjaxdelq Ul sainbiy

JONVRIVA

Page 129

(rveL) (ogs'0)  (osc0)  (ogse0)  (ose0) (osg'0)  (osc0)  (ose0)  (0S€0) 8’1 8250 aJuelep
196°16 $98'8 $98'8 598'8 $98'8 $98°'8 $98°'8 $98°8 5688 £8¥°0) 825°0) pLIgL
S0Z°c6 SYZ'6 SYZ'6 S¥2'6 SYT'6 SYZ'6 SvT6 A SvT6 SYZ'6 000°0} 4 ¥rA} GNN4 TIONNOD - TV10L
(686°1) (ssv'0)  (sstro)  (ssp'e)  {ssv'o)  (ssvr0)  (ssp0)  (gst0)  (szvo) £18°0 8080 aouelep
980°L osv'0 oS0 0st°0 0S¥°0 0st'0 0sv'0 0s¥'0 08¥°0 8LLL sel'L yLIEL
5106 $06°0 $06°0 506°0 506°0 $06°0 $06°0 5060 $06°0 $06°0 0£6°0 (¥4} SIIIAYIS FLVHOLNHOD - TVLOL
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 aoueueA
0520 6200 5200 6200 6200 5200 G200 5200 5200 5200 G200 rLEL
0sZ0 6200 5200 6200 5200 5200 G200 6200 5200 5200 5200 gL/zy uoisinold [esauag)
nwAp neay ) pAmo
(7u09) $391AYIS FLVHOLH0D
(mojeq
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 0835)
VIOl  €2/2Z0Z  ZILZOZ  LZ/0TOZ  OZ/6LOZ  6L/8LOZ  BL/LLOZ  LM9LOZ  9L/SLOZ  SLVIOZ  ¥L/ELOZ  13DANE AT

€ XION3ddV

(s3uNoI14 139an4d €1/210Z OL NOILVITIONOOIN) €2/2202 - ¥1/EL0Z STNIHOS FNNVIO0Nd FH0D



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Agenda ltem 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: COUNCIL
DATE: 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2013/14,

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT
2013 — 2016 AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES 2013 - 2016.

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of Cabinet in relation to
the Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 in conjunction with:-

e Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016,
e Draft Treasury Management Practices 2013 — 2016.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council adopted the 2011 edition of The CIPFA Code of Practice
in March 2012 which requires:-

e The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

e The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and
controlled.

e The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

Page 131



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

e Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to Head of
Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s
policy statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of
Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury
Management Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has
nominated the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the treasury management function. The
Audit Committee has previously agreed to include treasury
management as a standing item on each quarterly agenda to
receive an update.

CONSIDERATIONS

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 30" January 2013, Members
reviewed the Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 - 2016,
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 and Treasury Management
Practices 2013 - 2016. The Audit Committee recommended to
Cabinet that the Council approves the Policy Statement, Strategy and
Practices.

A meeting of the Cabinet on 19" February 2013 received the
recommendation from the Audit Committee and resolved to
recommend the Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 - 2016,
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 and Treasury Management
Practices 2013 - 2016 to Council.

The Cabinet report, which includes the Treasury Management Policy
Statement 2013 - 2016, Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 and
Treasury Management Practices 2013 — 2016, is attached appendix 1.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’'s treasury management advisors on
the 29™ January 2013.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Council approves the Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 in
conjunction with:-

e Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016,
e Treasury Management Practices 2013 -16.

Page 132



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Limited.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Limited.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet — 19" February 2013

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers: Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 -
2016
Treasury Management Practices 2013 — 2016
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas, Finance Manager — Strategy &

Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk.

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL APPENDIX 1

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 19 FEBRUARY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE_

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2013/14, TREASURY

1.00

1.01

2.00

MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT 2013 - 2016 AND
TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 2013 — 2016._

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the draft Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 for approval to the
Council in conjunction with:-

e Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016,

e Draft Treasury Management Practices 2013 -16.

BACKGROUND

2.01

2.02

The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have due regard to
both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury
Management in Public Services: Code of Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice)
and Welsh Government guidance on Local Authority Investments.

The Council adopted the 2011 edition of The CIPFA Code of Practice in March
2012 which requires:-

e The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management Policy Statement
which states the Council’s policies, objectives and approach to risk
management of its treasury management activities.

e The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury Management Practices
(TMPs) and accompanying schedules, stating how those policies and
objectives will be achieved and prescribing how those activities will be
managed and controlled.

e The Council to receive reports on its treasury management policies, practices
and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance
of the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

o Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined. The Council
delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular monitoring of its
treasury management policies and practices to the Cabinet, and for the
execution and administration of treasury management decisions to Head of
Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement
and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

Page 135



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

« A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management Policy,
Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the Audit Committee to be
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function.
The Audit Committee has previously agreed to include treasury management
as a standing item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

CONSIDERATIONS

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 30" January 2013, Members reviewed the
Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 - 2016, Treasury Management
Strategy 2013/14 and Treasury Management Practices 2013 - 2016. Any
comments from the Audit Committee will be reported verbally at Cabinet.

The Audit Committee report, which includes the Treasury Management Policy
Statement 2013 - 2016, Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 and Treasury
Management Practices 2013 — 2016, and an explanation of changes from previous
years, is attached appendix 1.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was run by
Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury management advisors on the 29" January 2013.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet approves and recommends to the Council the draft Treasury Management
Strategy 2013/14 for approval in conjunction with:-

e Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016,

e Draft Treasury Management Practices 2013 -16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Limited.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Limited.

Page 136



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Report to Audit Committee — 30" January 2013

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers: Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016
Treasury Management Practices 2013 - 2016
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE

DATE: 30 JANUARY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2013/14, TREASURY

1.00

1.01

1.02

1.03

2.00

MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT 2013 - 2016, TREASURY

MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 2013 - 16 AND TREASURY

MANAGEMENT UPDATE 2012/13,

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the draft Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 for review prior to
recommending to Cabinet in conjunction with:-

e Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016,

e Draft Treasury Management Practices 2013 -16.

To provide members with a quarterly update on matters relating to the Council’s
2012/13 Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statement up to the end of
December 2012.

This report will be supplemented with training available to all Members of the
Council on treasury management on 29" January 2013.

BACKGROUND

2.01

2.02

The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have due regard to
both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury
Management in Public Services: Code of Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice)
and Welsh Government guidance on Local Authority Investments.

The Council adopted the 2011 edition of The CIPFA Code of Practice in March

2012 which requires:-

e The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management Policy Statement
which states the Council’'s policies, objectives and approach to risk
management of its treasury management activities.

e The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury Management Practices
(TMPs) and accompanying schedules, stating how those policies and
objectives will be achieved and prescribing how those activities will be
managed and controlled.

e The Council to receive reports on its treasury management policies, practices
and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance
of the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

Page 139



2.03

2.04

2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

e Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined. The Council
delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular monitoring of its
treasury management policies and practices to the Cabinet, and for the
execution and administration of treasury management decisions to Head of
Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement
and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

e A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management Policy,
Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the Audit Committee to be
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function.
The Audit Committee has previously agreed to include treasury management
as a standing item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

The Welsh Government guidance on Local Authority investments requires that the
Council prepares an Investment strategy before the start of each financial year
which sets out the Council’'s policies for the prudent management of its
investments, giving priority, firstly to the security of those investments (protecting
the capital sum from loss), and secondly liquidity (keeping money readily available
for expenditure). The generation of investment income is distinct from these
prudential objectives, however provided that proper levels of security and liquidity
are achieved, it may (but only then) be reasonable to seek the highest yield
consistent with those priorities.

The guidance stipulates that the investment strategy must also include the
following:

e Specified Investments

Non-specified Investments

Credit Risk Assessment

Investment Consultants

Investment Training

Investment of money borrowed in advance of need

On 1% March 2012 the Council approved the Treasury Management Policy and
Strategy Statement for 2012/13, following the recommendation of the Cabinet and
consideration by Audit Committee.

The Council’s treasury management advisors have changed to Arlingclose Ltd, as
detailed in paragraph 3.06.

CONSIDERATIONS

2013/14 and onwards Treasury Management Documentation

In previous years members have been asked to approve a combined Treasury
Management Policy and Strategy Statement which included the Policy Statement,
the annual Strategy and as an appendix, detailed Treasury Management Practices
and accompanying Schedules.

Following discussions with Arlingclose, the Council's Treasury Management

advisors, the conclusion was drawn that it would be clearer if separate treasury
management documents were provided.

Page 140



3.03

3.04

3.05

Attached in Appendix 1 for review and discussion is the Treasury Management
Policy Statement to cover the 3 year period from 2013/14 to 2015/16. Once
approved, this document will only be reported to members during its lifetime in the
event of any significant changes. The content of the Policy Statement remains
unchanged from its approval in 2012/13; defining the Council’'s treasury
management activities, setting out the Council’s criteria to measure the
effectiveness of treasury management activities and includes the Council’s high
level policies for borrowing and investments.

The Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules to
cover the 3 year period from 2013/14 to 2015/16 are attached in Appendix 2 and
Appendix 3 for review and discussion. Again, once approved, this document will
only be reported to members during its lifetime in the event of any significant
changes.

The TMPs and schedules state how treasury management policies and objectives
will be achieved and give specific details of the systems and routines employed and
the records to be maintained including:-

TMP 1 Risk Management

TMP 2 Performance measurement

TMP 3 Decision-making

TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques

TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities and dealing
Arrangements

TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements

TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements

TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management

TMP 9 Money laundering

TMP 10 Training and qualifications

TMP 11 Use of external service providers

TMP 12 Corporate Governance

The contents of the practices and schedules have been changed to reflect the
transfer of responsibility of the treasury management function from the Funds
section to the Strategy and Technical section of Corporate Finance following the
Finance Function Review.

Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14

The 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy is attached in Appendix 4 for review
and discussion. The Strategy will be updated and reported annually to members in
accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Welsh Government guidance.

The Treasury Management Strategy details the approach the Council will take for
investing and borrowing over the next year, including the budgetary implications of
the planned investment and borrowing strategy and a number of treasury
management indicators that the CIPFA Code requires.

The contents of the 2013/14 Strategy has not materially changed from that of the
2012/13 Strategy. Following the transfer of the treasury management function as
described in paragraph 3.03 above and discussions with Arlingclose, the Council’s
Treasury Management advisors, the layout of the Strategy has been amended to
make plans clearer and easier to follow.

Page 141



3.06

3.07

The few minor changes that have been made to the 2013/14 Treasury
Management Strategy and the rationale behind the changes made are listed
below:-

In defining ‘high credit quality’ investments the Council will only use Long Term
credit ratings and will no longer use Short Term ratings to simplify and
strengthen the Council’s counterparty list.

Time limits on investments have been introduced to differentiate between the
grades awarded by the credit rating bodies. For example, previously there was
no distinction made between an investment made with a counterparty rated as
the highest credit quality AAA, and high credit quality A. The Strategy now
reflects the lower credit risk associated with counterparties awarded higher
credit quality by placing a higher time limit on investments with those
counterparties. An investment could be made for up to 4 years for a
counterparty rated as AA / Aa2, but only up to 1 year for a counterparty rated
as A/ A2.

Following discussion with Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management
advisors, investments rated as A-/A3 will be defined as high credit quality. This
is a reduction from the A/A2 current position, which does introduce a higher
level of credit risk; however this has been mitigated by placing a time limit of 6
months on such investments and is considered to be a measured risk that will
introduce more counterparties to spread the risk.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management will be run by
Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury management advisors on the morning of the 29"
January. Further explanation of the content of the Policy Statement, Practices and
Strategy will be covered in this training session.

Treasury Management 2012/13 Update

A statement setting out the Council’s investments as at 31 December 2012 is
attached as Appendix 5. Members are requested to note the following:

The investment balance was £66.4m across 22 counterparties.

Our self-imposed low risk strategy of investing for a maximum of 3 months with
banks and building societies, with consideration given to suitable longer term
investments as appropriate, continued.

Given sustained improvements in monitored credit risk, with credit ratings being
more stable and some banks’ profitability improving, steps banks have taken
towards strengthening their balance sheets, and central bank intervention both
in the UK and the Eurozone increasing liquidity the risk of a bank that the
council deals with defaulting has reduced and consideration was given to
relaxing the self imposed rule of investing for a maximum of 3 months with
banks and building societies. Discussions took place with Arlingclose, the
Council's treasury management advisors. All though the economic outlook is
somewhat mixed, with significant risks still being posed by the US public
finance ffiscal cliff and a sustainable solution to the Eurozone crisis being
someway off, as can be see from the economic context in Appendix 4 —
2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy, the decision has been made that the
time is right to invest with banks and building societies for longer.

One long-term investment was made - £3 million with Bank of Scotland at an
interest rate of 1.6%, maturing on 5™ December 2013.

Page 142



3.08

3.09

3.10

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

e The Council’s treasury management advisor, Sterling Consultancy Services
was acquired by Arlingclose Limited in October 2012. The terms of the contract
remain unchanged and Arlingclose continues to provide advice and information
on the Council’s investments and borrowing activities.

e Arlingclose revised their base interest rate forecast from that included in the
2012/13 Strategy, with the rate now remaining at 0.50% until at least the end of
2015. The financial implications of this change of rate will be reported in the
Central Loans and Investment Account in the revenue budget monitoring
report.

e A £1.5 million PWLB loan matured on 22" November 2012, and due
consideration was given to either repay or refinance the loan with new
borrowing. Given the Council’s high level of cash balances, the current cost of
debt being higher than returns on investments the prudent decision was made,
following discussion with the Arlingclose, to reduce interest risk and credit risk
and repay the loan.

e The transfer of responsibility for the treasury management function from the
Funds section to Strategy and Technical team in Corporate Finance continues,
and is expected to be completed by the end of the 2012/13 financial year.

Landsbanki

Previous reports to the Audit Committee have updated members with the latest
position regarding the reimbursement of our investments with Landsbanki and an
estimate of associated legal costs.

A further £217k was received from Landsbanki on 9" October 2012. The total
received to date is now £1.76 million. The total outstanding is £1.94 million,
approximately 52.4%. In March 2012, the Winding up Board announced that
recoveries in the Landsbanki administration would now likely be 100% of deposits,
subject to potential future exchange rate fluctuations, although this is only a
forecast and not guaranteed. The pattern of future distributions is not yet known.

The Local Government Association have recently written to advise that Flintshire’s
share of the associated legal costs between 18" December 2011 and 17"
December 2012 is £2,607. A budget of £3,700 has been set to cover our
anticipated legal fees for 2012/13 within the Central Loans and Investment
Account.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members review the draft Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 and
identify any matters to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet on 19/02/2013.

That members review the draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013-2016
and identify any matters to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet on 19/02/2013.

That members review the draft Treasury Management Practices 2013-2016 and
identify any matters to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet on 19/02/2013.

That members note the Treasury Management 2012/13 quarterly update.

Page 143



5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set outin the report.

6.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 None directly as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None directly as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None directly as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 Arlingclose Limited.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Arlingclose Limited.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016
Appendix 2 — Draft Treasury Management Practices 2013 - 2016
Appendix 3 — Draft Treasury Management Practices Schedules 2013 - 16
Appendix 4 — Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14
Appendix 5 — Investments as at 31/12/2012

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers: Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016
Treasury Management Practices 2013 - 2016
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 144



Appendix 1

Slry Fflint
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DRAFT
TREASURY MANAGEMENT

POLICY STATEMENT

2013 - 2016

Page 145



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury management
activities as follows: -

"The management of the authority's investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks".

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk implications
for the Council, and any financial instruments entered into to manage these
risks.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is
therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury
management, and to employing suitable comprehensive performance
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management.

The Council greatly values revenue budget stability and will therefore borrow
the majority of its long-term funding needs at long-term fixed rates of interest.
Short-term and variable rate loans will only be borrowed to the extent that
they either offset short-term and variable rate investments or can be shown to
produce revenue savings.

The Council will set an affordable borrowing limit each year in compliance with
the Local Government Act 2003, and will have regard to the CIPFA Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities when setting that limit. It will
also set limits on its exposure to changes to interest rates and limits on the
maturity structure of its borrowing in the treasury management strategy report
each year.

The Council’s primary objectives for the investment of its surplus funds are to
protect the principal sums invested from loss, and to ensure adequate liquidity
so that funds are available for expenditure when needed. The generation of
investment income to support the provision of local authority services is an
important, but secondary, objective.

The Council will have regard to Welsh Government Guidance on Local
Government Investments and will approve an investment strategy each year
as part of the treasury management strategy. The strategy will set criteria to
determine suitable organisations in which cash may be invested, limits on the
maximum duration of such investments and limits on the amount of cash that
may be invested with any one organisation.

The Council has adopted the 2011 edition of the Chartered Institute of Public

Pagell46



Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code
of Practice and has included the Code’s required clauses in its Financial
Procedure Rules.

Page 147



Appendix 2

DRAFT
TREASURY MANAGEMENT

PRACTICES

Part 1: Main Principles

2013 - 2016

Flintshire County Council

Page 148



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) set out the manner in which this
organisation will seek to achieve its treasury management policies and objectives
and how it will manage and control those activities.

Page
Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) 2
TMP 1 Treasury risk management 3-4
TMP 2 Performance Measurement 5
TMP 3 Decision-making and analysis 5
TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques 5
TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and 5-6
dealing arrangements
TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information 6-7
arrangements
TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements 7
TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management 7
TMP 9 Money laundering 7
TMP 10 Staff training and qualifications 7-8
TMP 11 Use of external service providers 8
TMP 12 Corporate governance 8

Page 149



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

TMP1 TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Head of Finance will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the
identification, management and control of treasury management risk, will report at
least annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of
urgency, the circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the Council's
objectives in this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMPG6
Reporting requirements and management information arrangements.

In respect of each of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure
compliance with these objectives are set out in the schedule to this document.

[1] Credit and counterparty risk management

The Council regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be the
security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its
counterparty lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations with
whom funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved Instruments,
methods and techniques and listed in the schedule to this document. It also
recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counterparty
policy in respect of those organisations from which it may borrow, or with whom it
may enter into other financing or derivative arrangements.

[2] Liquidity risk management

The Council will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources,
borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to
have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its
business/service objectives.

The Council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business
case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance
future debt maturities.

[3] Interest rate risk management

The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the
amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance with
TMP6 Reporting requirement and management information arrangements.

It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved instruments, methods and
techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at
the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of
unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest
rates. This should be subject at all times to the consideration and, if required,

Page 150



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

approval of any policy or budgetary implications.

It will ensure that any hedging tools such as derivatives are only used for the
management of risk and the prudent management of financial affairs and that the
policy for the use of derivatives is clearly detailed in the annual strategy.

[4] Exchange rate risk management

The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as to
minimise any detrimental impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels.

[5] Refinancing risk management

The Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile of
the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for renewal
or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the
organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions
prevailing at the time.

It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions in
such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid over-reliance on any one
source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above.

[6] Legal and regulatory risk management

The Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with its
statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such compliance,
if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities. In framing its
credit and counterparty policy under TMP1.1 credit and counterparty risk
management, it will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties' powers, authority
and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the organisation,
particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged.

The Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on
its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will
seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the organisation.

[7] Fraud, error and corruption, and contingency management

The Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it
to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury
management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and procedures,
and will maintain effective contingency management arrangements, to these ends.
[8] Market risk management

The Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and

objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the
principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself from the effects of

Pade 151



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

such fluctuations.

TMP2 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The Council is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury
management activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of that
aim, within the framework set out in its Treasury Management Policy Statement.

Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing
analysis of the value it adds in support of the Council's stated business or service
objectives. It will be the subject of regular examination of alternative methods of
service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives, and
of the scope for other potential improvements. The performance of the treasury
management function will be measured using the criteria set out in the schedule to
this document.

TMP3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS

The Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and of
the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the
purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps
were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into
account at the time. The issues to be addressed and processes and practices to be
pursued in reaching decisions are detailed in the schedule to this document.

TMP4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

The Council will undertake its treasury management activities by employing only
those instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the schedule to this
document, and within the limits and parameters defined in TMP1, Risk management.

Where the Council intends to use derivative instruments for the management of
risks, these will be limited to those set out in its annual treasury strategy. The
Council will seek proper advice and will consider that advice when entering into
arrangements to use such products to ensure that it fully understands those
products.

TMP5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES,
AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and
monitoring of its treasury management activities, and for the reduction of the risk of
fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are
structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times a
clarity of treasury management responsibilities.

The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged

Page 452



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

with setting treasury management policies and those charged with implementing and
controlling these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission
of funds, the recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the
audit and review of the treasury management function.

If and when the Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other
circumstances, to depart from these principles, the Head of Finance will ensure that
the reasons are properly reported in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements
and management information arrangements, and the implications properly
considered and evaluated.

The Head of Finance will ensure that there are clear written statements of the
responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, and the
arrangement for absence cover. The Head of Finance will also ensure that at all
times those engaged in treasury management will follow the policies and procedures
set out. The present arrangements are detailed in the schedule to this document.

The Head of Finance will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals and
transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. The
present arrangements are detailed in the schedule to this document.

The delegations to the Head of Finance in respect of treasury management are set
out in the schedule to this document. The Head of Finance will fulfil all such
responsibilities in accordance with the Council's policy statement and TMPs and, if a
CIPFA member, the Standard of Professional Practice on treasury management.

TMP6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
ARRANGEMENTS

The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the
implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of decisions
taken and the transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications
of changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or
other factors affecting its treasury management activities; and on the performance of
the treasury management function.

As a minimum:
The County Council will receive:

¢ An annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year

e A mid-year review

e An annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on
the effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past
year, and on any circumstances of non-compliance with the organisation's
Treasury Management Policy Statement and TMPs.

In addition to the above, the Audit Committee will receive regular monitoring reports
on treasury management activities and risks. Audit Committee will also have

Page 153



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices.

Treasury Management Indicators will be reported in the Strategy.
The present arrangements and the form of these reports are detailed in the schedule
to this document.

TMP7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

The Head of Finance will prepare, and this organisation will approve and, if
necessary, from time to time amend, an annual budget for treasury management,
which will bring together all of the costs involved in running the treasury
management function, together with associated income. The matters to be included
in the budget will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, together
with such information as will demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk management,
TMP2 Performance Measurement, and TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and
techniques. The Head of Finance will exercise effective controls over this budget,
and will report upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with
TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements.

The Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made
and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and
standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time being.

TMP8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the
hands of this organisation will be under the control of the Head of Finance, and will
be aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes. Cash flow
projections will be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the Head of Finance
will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with
TMP1 [1] liquidity risk management. The present arrangements for preparing cash
flow projections, and their form, are set out in the schedule to this document.

TMP9 MONEY LAUNDERING

The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to
involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money. Accordingly, it will
maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and
reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this are properly trained.
The present arrangements, including the name of the officer to whom reports should
be made, are detailed in the schedule to this document.

TMP10 STAFF TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS
The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the

treasury management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and
responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are

Page 154



Treasury Management Practices 2013/14

both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to
acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The
Head of Finance will recommend and implement the necessary arrangements.

The Head of Finance will ensure that committee/council members tasked with
treasury management responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, have
access to training relevant to their needs and those responsibilities.

Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure
that they have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively.

The present arrangements are detailed in the schedule to this document.

TMP11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times. It recognises that there may be potential
value in employing external providers of treasury management services, in order to
acquire access to specialist skills and resources. When it employs such service
providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons which have been submitted to a full
evaluation of the costs and benefits. It will also ensure that the terms of their
appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. And it will ensure, where
feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid over
reliance on one or a small number of companies. Where services are subject to
formal tender or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be
observed. The monitoring of such arrangements rests with the Head of Finance, and
details of the current arrangements are set out in the schedule to this document.

TMP12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout
its businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and practices by
which this can be achieved. Accordingly, the treasury management function and its
activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and
accountability.

The Council has adopted and has implemented the key principles of the Code. This,
together with the other arrangements detailed in the schedule to this document, are
considered vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury
management, and the Head of Finance will monitor and, if and when necessary,
report upon the effectiveness of these arrangements.

Page 155



Appendix 3

DRAFT
TREASURY MANAGEMENT

PRACTICES

Part 2: Schedules

2013 - 2016

Flintshire County Council

Page 156



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES - SCHEDULES

This section contains the schedules which set out the details of how the Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) are put into effect by this organisation.

Page

Treasury Management Practices — Schedules 2
TMP 1 Risk management 3-7
TMP 2 Performance Measurement 8-9
TMP 3 Decision-making and analysis 9-10
TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques 11-12
TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and 12 -16

dealing arrangements
TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information 16 -18

Arrangements
TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements 19
TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management 19 -20
TMP 9 Money laundering 20
TMP 10 Staff training and qualifications 20 -21
TMP 11 Use of external service providers 21-22
TMP 12 Corporate governance 22
Appendix A — Definition of ratings 23-24

Page 157



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT

1

1.

Credit & Counterparty Policies

Criteria to be used for creating/managing approved counterparty lists/limits -

The Head of Finance will formulate suitable criteria for assessing and
monitoring the credit risk of investment counterparties and shall
construct a lending list comprising time, type, sector and specific
counterparty limits.

Treasury Management staff will add or delete counterparties to/from
the approved counterparty list in line with the policy on criteria for
selection of counterparties. The complete list is available in the
Strategy & Technical Section. It should be noted that not all of these
counterparties will be used. This depends on whether they are in the
market at the time of investment and whether they are offering
competitive rates.

The Council will use credit criteria in order to select creditworthy
counterparties for placing investments.

Credit ratings will be used as supplied from Fitch, Moody’s and
Standard & Poors credit rating agencies.

The minimum level of credit rating for an approved counterparty will be
as follows: -

Fitch | Moody’s | S&P | Cash Limit | Time Limit
Banks, Building Societies and other | AAA Aaa AAA £7m each 5 years
organisations whose lowest published AA+ Aa1 AA+ 5 years
long-term credit rating from Fitch, AA Aa2 AA 4 years
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s is: AA- Aa3 AA- 3 years
A+ A1 A+ 2 years
A A2 A 1 year
A- A3 A- £5m 6 months
The council’s current account bank £5m next day
(NatWest Bank plc) if rated below A-
UK Building Societies with assets £5m each 1 year
greater than £1bn, which are either
unrated by the credit rating agencies or
have a minimum rating of BBB or
equivalent and above.
Money Market Funds' and similar £7m each 1 year
pooled vehicles  whose lowest
published credit rating is AAA
UK Central Government (irrespective unlimited 5 years
of credit rating)
UK Local Authorities? £7m each 5 years

1

Page 158

as defined in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
Regulations 2003 2 as defined in the Local Government Act 2003




Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

A definition of the ratings can be found in appendix A.

In addition, UK Building Societies without credit ratings or those which
are lower rated will be considered to be of ‘high credit quality’, but
subject to a lower cash limit (£5m) and shorter time period than higher
rated building societies in the table above The minimum asset size of
the building society must be £1bn. However, no investments will be
made with building societies that hold a long term credit rating lower
than BBB Fitch and Standard & Poors or Baa2 Moody’s, due to the
increased likelihood of default implied by this rating. Due to the strong
regulatory framework to which building societies must adhere, the
additional risk is minimised and widening the scope for investment will
maximise the investment return available.

The Council also has access to all UK local authorities, the
Governments Debt Management Office (DMO) and AAA rated Money
Market Funds (MMFs)

The maximum period for investments will be 5 years.

For rated banks and building societies, the maximum value for any one
investment transaction will be £7 million or 25% of the total portfolio if
balances fall below £30 million. For non-rated the limit will be £5
million or 10% of the total portfolio if balances fall below £30 million.
The aim is to spread any risk over as many Counterparties as are
available within the credit rating criteria.

A group of financial institutions under the same ownership will be
treated as a single organisation for limit purposes with a maximum limit
of £7m.

The maximum percentage of the portfolio which may be invested in the
building society sector will be 60%.

The approved counterparty list may include non UK registered
counterparties from foreign countries with a minimum sovereign rating
of AA+. The individual overseas country limit will be £10 million. Total
Overseas % of investment portfolio will be 25% (Overseas banks do
not include UK incorporated banks e.g. Clydesdale. Although they are
subsidiaries of foreign banks they are incorporated in the UK, have
substantial domestic operations and are subject to full oversight by the
FSA.)

The sector limits are shown below —

UK banks 100%
Building Societies 60%
Overseas Banks 25%
Money Market Funds 100%

Debt Management Office (DMO) 100%

2. Approved methodology for changing limits and adding/removing
counterparties

Credit ratings for individual counterparties can change at any time. The Head
of Finance is responsible for applying the stated credit rating criteria in 1.1 for

Page 159



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

selecting approved counterparties, and will add or delete counterparties as
appropriate to / from the approved counterparty list when there is a change in
the credit ratings of individual counterparties or in banking structures e.g. on
mergers or take-overs. The Head of Finance will also adjust lending limits
and periods when there is a change in the credit ratings of individual
counterparties or in banking structures e.g. on mergers or take-overs in
accordance with the criteria in 1.1.

3. Details of Credit Rating Agencies’ services or other services which provide
current credit ratings and updates on changes.

Ratings from the three agencies are updated monthly by Arlingclose;
however, they will provide immediate notification of any changes which
affect Flintshire County Council counterparties. If a counterparty no
longer meets the investment criteria, no further investments will be
made with that counterparty and consideration will be given to recalling
the monies. If a counterparty is being reviewed for a possible
downgrade outside the criteria no more investments will be made.
Arlingclose will also inform the Head of Finance of any other market
information that they have (e.g. Credit Default Swap prices, news
reports and opinion, balance sheet analysis in the absence of credit
ratings) which may require credit ratings to be overridden and no
further investment to be made with that counterparty.

1.2  Liquidity

1. Amounts of approved minimum cash balances and short-term investments

The Council manages its cash balances on a daily basis, dependent
upon cash flow demands. The objective is to achieve a balance of +/-
£300,000 each day by means of temporary investments and borrowing.
Temporary investments are cash flow driven with the objective of
ensuring that future temporary borrowing is minimised.

2. Details of:

Standby facilities - Short-term borrowing undertaken.

Bank overdraft arrangements - authorised arrangement up to £300,000
overdrawn.

Short-term borrowing facilities - short term borrowing will be arranged
for any overdrawn balance in excess of £200,000 through the money
market if no call money is available.

Insurance/guarantee facilities - not required.

Other contingency arrangements - negotiations with the Council's
bankers.

Call Accounts with limits of £7 million each (subject to ratings and
sector limits).

Page 460



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Interest Rate
Details of approved interest rate exposure limits -

e The upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures is £200 million.
e The upper limit on variable interest rate exposures is £40 million.

Trigger points and other guidelines for managing changes to interest rate
levels —

e This is monitored in conjunction with the Council's treasury advisers,
Arlingclose and through the London money market on a daily basis.

e The management of a balanced investment portfolio which retains a
mix of long term investments (fixed rate) and shorter term (variable
rate) investments which are variable to protect against interest risk.

Exchange Rate
Approved criteria for managing changes in exchange rate levels -

e The Council does not make payments or receive foreign currency in
sufficient levels that warrant currency management e.g. hedging

Refinancing
Debt/other capital financing maturity profiling, policies and practices.
e To manage the Council's debt maturity profile i.e. to leave no one
future year with a high level of repayments that could cause problems
in re-borrowing.

Projected capital investment requirements.

e The borrowing requirement is determined as part of the Capital
Programme.

Policy concerning limits on revenue consequences of capital financing.
e This is part of the ongoing budget monitoring process
Legal & Regulatory
References to relevant statutes and regulations
e Prior to entering into any capital financing, lending or investment

transaction, it is the responsibility of the Head of Finance to be
satisfied, by reference to the Monitoring Officer, the Authority's legal

Page 161



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

1.7

1.8

department and external advisors as appropriate, that the proposed
transaction does not breach statute, external regulations or the
Authority's Financial Procedures.

e The Council’s legal powers and regulatory requirements come from —

+»+ Local Government Act 2003
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2003/pdf/ukpga_20030026 en.pdf

% Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
Regulations 2003 (and subsequent amending regulations)
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/wales/wsi2003/wsi_20033239 en.pdf

+» Welsh Government “Guidance on Local Government Investments”

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/guideinvest/;jsessionid=m
p3KKNDTyn91SG3PQvVIFrpgnBVTnIXvyGH1pynJcCpJg5n9hL0tP!5142917697?

lang=en

s CIPFA “Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of
Practice”

« CIPFA “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities”

Hard copies are available in the Strategy & Technical Section.
Fraud, error and corruption, and contingency management
Details of systems and procedures to be followed, including internet services.

e These are documented in the Treasury Management Operational
Guidelines.

Emergency and contingency planning arrangements

e This process is currently under review.

Fraud, Error & Corruption.

e There is a system of internal control in place to prevent and identify
fraud and error.

e Any issue identified will be immediately reported to the Head of
Finance and Head of Internal Audit and subsequently to Audit
Committee and Council.

Market Value of Investments
Details of approved procedures and limits for controlling exposure to
investments whose capital value may fluctuate (Government Issue Long Term

Stock - GILTS, Certificates of Deposit - CDs, etc.)

e No current investments are held where capital values may be
influenced by market movements and fluctuate.

Page 162



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

TMP 2 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

21

1.

2.2

2.3

2.4

Performance Measurement

The Council’s Treasury Management Consultants recommended the following
for use as benchmarks against which to compare performance. For
investments, the most commonly used benchmark is the 3 month London
Inter-Bank Bid (LIBID) rate.

In the annual Treasury Management Out-turn Report, investment and
borrowing rates are analysed against the above recommended rates and with
previous years.

Health checks are undertaken by the Council’'s Treasury Management
Consultants.

The Council is a member of CIPFA's benchmarking club on Treasury
Management

Value for Money
Frequency for reviewing and tendering for the following services:

Banking services - tendered every 5 years.

Money-broking services - annual review.

Treasury Consultant services — tendered every 3 years.

External Cash Managers - none currently employed but this will be
analysed as part of a continuous review.

Methods to be employed for measuring the performance of the
organisation’s Treasury Management activities

The Head of Finance will receive a monthly update on Treasury Management
from the Finance Manager (Strategy & Technical).

The performance of treasury management will be reported quarterly to the
Audit Committee and then to Cabinet and Council in the Mid-year Report and
Annual Out-turn Report using the performance measures outlined in 2.1.

Benchmarks and calculation methodology:
Debt management:

Average rate on all external debt.

Average rate on external debt borrowed in previous financial year.
Average rate on internal borrowing.

Average period to maturity of external debt.

Average period to maturity of new loans in previous year.

Page 163



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

2. Investment:

The performance of investment earnings will be measured against the
following benchmarks: -

e 3 month LIBID rate.

e Indicative rates provided by the CIPFA Benchmarking Club on
Treasury Management.

TMP 3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS

3.1 Funding, borrowing, lending and new instruments/techniques:

1. Records to be kept:

e These are documented in the Treasury Management Operational
Guidelines. All records are kept to provide a full audit trail for all
Treasury decisions.

2. Processes to be pursued:

e All reports on Treasury Management issues are submitted to the Head
of Finance for decision making

3. Issues to be addressed:

¢ In respect of every decision made the Council will:

a.

b.

Above all be clear about the nature and extent of the risks to
which the Council may become exposed

Be certain about the legality of the decision reached and the
nature of the transaction, and that all authorities to proceed have
been obtained

Be content that the documentation is adequate both to deliver
the Council's objectives and protect the organisation's interests,
and to deliver good housekeeping

Ensure that third parties are judged satisfactory in the context of
the Council's creditworthiness policies, and that limits have not
been exceeded

Be content that the terms of any transactions have been fully
checked against the market, and have been found to be
competitive.

¢ In respect of borrowing and other funding decisions, the Council will:

a.

b.

Evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence
the manner and timing of any decision to fund.
Consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding,

Page 464



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

4.

including funding from revenue, leasing and private
partnerships.

C. Consider the alternative interest rate bases available, the most
appropriate periods to fund and repayment profiles to use.
d. Consider the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the

implications for the organisation's future plans and budgets.

¢ In respect of investment decisions, the organisation will:

a. Consider the optimum period, in the light of cash flow availability
and prevailing market conditions.
b. Consider the alternative investment products and techniques

available, especially the implications of using any which may
expose the organisation to changes in the value of its capital.

Considerations to be made before each temporary borrowing and investment
decision.

e Borrowing

a. Are funds available in call accounts?

b. Arrange temporary borrowing through a broker for the
shortest period of time at the lowest rate of interest
available.

e Investing

a. Establish funds available to be invested

b. Establish a maturity date using cash flow and
Arlingclose’s monthly investment strategy

C. Using the Ratings spreadsheet —

Check the limit for building societies (60% of portfolio)
Headroom available with each counterparty

d. Check the credit ratings and other market information
available for the chosen counterparty.

e. Use a broker to find the highest rate of interest for the
requirements above

f. If after the above, funds still cannot be placed and call

accounts are full, then invest with DMO.

TMP 4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

4.1

Approved activities of the Treasury Management operation

All borrowing is undertaken in accordance with the Local Government Act
2003 section 1 and all investments undertaken in accordance with section 12.

The approved activities are:

Page 165



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

4.2

borrowing;

lending;

debt repayment and rescheduling;

consideration, approval and use of new financial instruments and treasury

management techniques;

e managing the underlying risk associated with the Council's capital
financing and surplus funds activities;

e managing cash flow;

e banking activities;

e leasing.

Approved Instruments for Borrowing

4.3

44

4.5

All borrowings are undertaken in line with the following approved loan
instruments -

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

European Investment Bank (EIB)

Local Authorities

Banks

Building Societies

Pension Funds

Negotiable Bonds

Stock Issues

Internal sources

Sterling commercial paper (for 7 days to 1 year)
Sterling medium term notes (for 1 to 5 years)

Approved Instruments for Investments

The annual Treasury Management Strategy provides details of specified and
non-specified investments and the maximum limits for each, as is required
under Guidance issued by the Welsh Government. The approved investment
instruments are -

Fixed Term Deposits

Certificates of Deposit

Bank Accounts (Instant Access & Notice Accounts)

Pooled Investment Vehicles (Such as Money Market Funds)
U.K. Treasury Bills

U.K. Government Bonds (Gilts)

Approved Techniques

e Forward dealing up to 364 days;
e Callable deposits.

Approved methods and sources of raising capital finance

Page1166



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

Finance will only be raised in accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance, and within this limit the Council has a number of approved methods
and sources of raising capital finance. These are:

On Balance Sheet

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
European Investment Bank (EIB)
Local Authorities

Banks

Building Societies

Pension Funds

Stock issues

Negotiable Bonds

Internal sources (capital receipts & revenue balances)
Sterling commercial paper
Sterling medium term notes
Finance Leases

Off Balance Sheet
Deferred Purchase

Other Methods of Financing
Government and EC Capital Grants
Lottery monies

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

All forms of funding will be considered dependent on the prevailing economic
climate, regulations and local considerations. The Head of Finance has
delegated powers through this Policy and the Strategy to take the most
appropriate form of borrowing from approved sources.

TMPS5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES,

5.1

AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

Limits to Responsibilities/Discretion at Committee/Cabinet levels
County Council

The Council is responsible for:-

e Receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies,
practices and activities.

e Approval of annual policy and strategy.

e Approval of/famendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses,
treasury management policy and strategy.

e Budget consideration and approval.

e Approval of the division of responsibilities.

Patge 167



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

5.2

5.3

Cabinet
The Cabinet is responsible for:

e Receiving reports from the Head of Finance informed by the
deliberations of the Audit Committee on the implementation and regular
monitoring of its treasury management policy, strategy and practices.

e Consideration of Treasury Policy and Strategy for approval by Council.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for —
¢ Reviewing the treasury management policy and practices and making

recommendations to Cabinet.
e Receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports.

Principles and practices concerning segregation of duties
Procedure Regular Trained in Absence
Cash Balances Accounting Technician Accounting Technician

Dealing and Limit | Accounting Technician | Accountancy Technician
Calculations

Logotech Accounting Technician Accounting Technician
Dealing Check Accounting Technician Accounting Technician
/Finance Assistant
Dealing 5 Authorised Bank
Authorisation Signatories (Head of

Finance, Corporate
Finance Manager, 3
Finance Managers)

Funds Transfer Finance Assistant Finance Assistant
Operators

Funds Transfer Accountants
Approval

Bankline System | Administration Manager | Business Support Officer
Administrators

Statement of duties/responsibilities of each Treasury post
Head of Finance / Corporate Finance Manager —
e Recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance.
e Submitting regular treasury management policy and strategy reports.
e Submitting budgets and budget variations.

¢ Receiving and reviewing management information reports.

Page 1868



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

2.

3.

4.

5.4

5.5

Reviewing the performance of the treasury management.

Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills
and the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury
management function.

Ensuring the adequacy of internal audit and liaising with external audit.
Approving the selection of external service providers (within the
Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules) and agreeing terms of
appointment.

Finance Manager (Strategy & Technical)

To deputise for the Head of Finance.

To advise the Head of Finance in the discharge of his/her duties.
Regularly review the Treasury Management function.

Submitting management information reports to the Head of Finance.
Drafting reports for Audit Committee, Cabinet and Council.

Review a monthly report from the Technical Accountant on the
performance of the Treasury Management function.

Technical Accountant

Supervise treasury management staff.

Review the draft report on the performance of the Treasury
Management function.

Identify and recommend opportunities for improved practices.

Ensure that the day to day activities accord with the Treasury
Management Policy Statement and Practices.

Accounting Technician

Execution of transactions.

Adhere to agreed policies and practices on a day-to-day basis.
Maintain relationships with counterparties and external service
providers.

Draft reports for Audit Committee, Cabinet and Council.

Produce cash flow projections and monitor performance.

Report on the performance of the treasury management function.

Other Officers

To deputise as necessary for the above posts, adhering to their duties
and responsibilities.

Dealing Limits

As outlined in 1 - Credit and Counterparty Policies

List of Approved Brokers

Pade 169



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Five approved brokers are currently used by the Council (see 11.2).

Garban Intercapital Limited

Martin Brokers (UK) Plc

Prebon Marshall Yamane (UK) Limited
Tradition (UK) Ltd

Sterling International Brokers Ltd

Policy on Brokers’ Services

Reviewed annually.

Policy on taping conversations

No conversations are currently taped

Direct Dealing Practices

This is undertaken as and when required to maximise investment return

Settlement transmission procedures

Standard Settlement Instructions

Documentation Requirements

Flintshire CC Treasury Management Policy Statement.

Flintshire CC Treasury Management Annual Strategy.

Flintshire CC Treasury Management Annual Outturn Report.

Treasury Management Health checks.

Loans and Treasury Management System Manual (LOGOTECH).
Manual Diary and Cash Flow Statement (LOGOTECH).

Money Market Dealing Form.

Loans Outstanding Form / Limit Calculations.

List of Brokers and Telephone Numbers.

Approved Counterparties (Regular update from Arlingclose).
Outstanding and Matured Investments/Borrowing File.

Previous TM Consultants Correspondence Files.

Arlingclose Consultancy Services Correspondence File (TM Consultants).
Treasury Management Operational Guidelines.

Treasury Management (Long Term Borrowing) Operational Guidelines.

Arrangements concerning the management of third-party funds.

Third party funds are included in the net daily bank balance and the funds are
utilised by the Council on that basis. Interest is paid as follows -

Page1$70



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

e Education Trust Funds — base rate, annually.

e Optec Youth Exchange Fund — average monthly rate, quarterly.
e Insurance Fund — average seven day rate, annually.

e Education Delegated Fund — average seven day rate, annually.

TMP 6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

6.1

6.2

ARRANGEMENTS
Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the specific expected treasury
activities for the forthcoming financial year. This Strategy will be scrutinised by
Audit Committee, submitted to the Cabinet and then to the County Council
Committee for approval before the commencement of each financial year.

The formulation of the annual Treasury Management Strategy involves
determining the appropriate borrowing and investment decisions in the light of
the anticipated movement in both fixed and shorter-term variable interest
rates. For instance, this organisation may decide to postpone borrowing if
fixed interest rates are expected to fall, or borrow early if fixed interest rates
are expected to rise.

The Treasury Management Strategy is concerned with the following elements:

the prospects for interest rates;

the limits placed by this organisation on treasury activities
the expected borrowing strategy;

the expected investment strategy;

the expectations for debt rescheduling;

any extraordinary treasury issue.

Treasury Management Indicators.

The Treasury Management Strategy will establish the expected move in
interest rates (using all available information such as published interest rate
forecasts where applicable).

Prudential Code for Capital Finance

In accordance with legislation, the Council is required to approve key
indicators and limits for the Prudential Code for Capital Finance. These are
listed below and reported in the Prudential Indicators Report.

e Estimates of Capital Expenditure

¢ Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

¢ Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on council tax/housing
rents

e Capital financing requirement

Patje 171



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

6.3

6.4

e Authorised limit for external debt
e Operational Boundary for external debt

The following are within the Treasury Management Code.

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures

Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures

Upper and lower limits for maturity structure of borrowing

Limit for principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The Head of Finance is responsible for incorporating the relevant limits for the
Treasury Management Code into the Annual Treasury Management Strategy,
and for ensuring compliance with the limits. Should it prove necessary to
amend these limits, the Head of Finance shall submit the changes for scrutiny
by the Audit Committee and recommendation by the Cabinet before
submission to County Council for approval.

Annual Investment Strategy

The Welsh Government requires the documentation of an Annual Investment
Strategy including the following:

Specified Investments — Investments offering high security and liquidity
Non-specified Investments — Investments with greater potential risk
Investments which can be prudently committed for longer than 1 year.
Credit Risk Assessment.

Use of Investment Consultants.

Investment Training.

Investment money borrowed in advance of need.

Annual Report on Treasury Management Activity

An annual report will be presented to the Audit Committee, Cabinet and then
the County Council at the earliest practicable meeting after the end of the
financial year, but in any case by the end of September. This report will
include the following: -

e a comprehensive picture for the financial year of all treasury policies,
plans, activities and results

e transactions executed and their revenue (current) effects

e report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions executed

e monitoring of compliance with approved policy, practices and statutory /
regulatory requirements

e monitoring of compliance with powers delegated to officers

e degree of compliance with the original strategy and explanation of
deviations

e explanation of future impact of decisions taken on the organisation

e measurements of performance

Page'172



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

6.5

6.6

6.7

e report on compliance with CIPFA Code recommendations
The report will be subject to review by the Audit Committee
Mid-Year Review

A mid-year report will be presented to the Audit Committee, Cabinet and
Council, which will include the following:

activities undertaken

variations (if any) from agreed policies/practices

interim performance report

regular monitoring

monitoring of treasury management indicators for local authorities.

The report will be subject to review by the Audit Committee
Management Information Reports

The Technical Accountant will report management information to the Finance
Manager (Strategy & Technical) monthly for review. The Finance Manager
(Strategy & Technical) will report monthly to the Head of Finance/Corporate
Finance Manager.

Presentation of Reports
As a minimum:
The County Council will receive:

¢ An annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming
year

e A mid-year review

e An annual report on the performance of the treasury management
function, on the effects of the decisions taken and the transactions
executed in the past year, and on any circumstances of non-compliance
with the organisation's Treasury Management Policy Statement and
TMPs.

In addition to the above, the Audit Committee and Cabinet will receive regular
monitoring reports on treasury management activities and risks.  Audit
Committee will also have responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury
management policies and practices.

Treasury Management Indicators will be reported in the strategy.

Patje 173



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

TMP 7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

7.1

7.2

7.3

Statutory/ Regulatory Requirements

The Treasury Management part of the statement of accounts has been
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies applicable to local
authorities.

Accounting Practices and Standards

The accounts are prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Sector Code of Practice, supported by guidance
notes on the application of accounting standards.

Budget Monitoring

The budget for treasury management activities is monitored on a monthly
basis through the Central Loans and Investment Account (CLIA).

TMP 8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

8.1

8.2

8.3

Arrangements for preparing/submitting cash flow statements

Annual cash flow prepared before the start of the financial year and updated
throughout the year.

Content and frequency of cash flow budgets
All known cash flow factors are included for the coming financial year.
Listing of sources of information

Correspondence from external organisations and internal departments,
together with various information extracted from the Annual Budget Book.

External —

e Welsh Government
e North Wales Police Authority
e North Wales Fire Authority

Internal —
e Payroll
e Pensions

Page 274



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

e Council Tax
e Creditors
8.4 Bank statement procedures

All bank statement information is obtained electronically from the NatWest
Bankline website.

8.5 Procedures for banking of funds

All day to day treasury management transactions are paid and received by the
Clearing House Automated Payments System (CHAPS).

8.6 Cash Flow Management
Arrangements as detailed in section 3.1.4
8.7 Debtors and Creditors

Debtors and Creditors are monitored so that any significant moves can be
prepared for. Creditors provide warning of payments 2 days in advance.

TMP 9 MONEY LAUNDERING
9.1 Procedures for establishing identity/authenticity of Lenders

1. The Council does not accept loans from individuals. All loans are obtained
from the PWLB or from authorised institutions on the FSA Register which is a
public record of financial service firms, individuals and other bodies which fall
under its regulatory jurisdiction as defined in the Financial Services & Markets
Act 2000 (FSMA). This Act came into force on 1% December 2001.

2. Any borrowing undertaken from the money markets is through money brokers,
who are also authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.
This adds a further layer of protection as the broker vets the institutions
involved in any transactions.

TMP 10 STAFF TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS

10.1 Details of approved training courses

1. Reviewed as part of the annual Employee Appraisal process. Arlingclose also
provide training on treasury issues to staff when required.

2. Flintshire County Council is a member of the CIPFA Treasury Management
Network. Treasury officers receive weekly updates from the Network and
attend seminars organised by the Network, as required.

10.2 Records of training received by Treasury staff

Page 175



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

All training is recorded on a departmental database.

10.3 Approved qualifications for Treasury staff
All treasury officers are qualified to AAT Technician level as a minimum.

10.4 Training of Members
Audit Committee Members will receive a quarterly Treasury Management
report and training will be given as required. Other Members will be invited to
attend training and receive treasury reports as outlined in these practices.

10.5 Statement of Professional Practice (SOPP)

1. Where the Head of Finance is a member of CIPFA, there is a professional
need for the Head of Finance to be seen to be committed to professional
responsibilities through both personal compliance and by ensuring that

relevant staff are appropriately trained.

2. Other staff involved in treasury management activities who are members of
CIPFA must also comply with the SOPP.

TMP 11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

11.1 Details of contracts with Service Providers, including Bankers, Brokers,
Consultants & Advisers

1. Banking services:
¢ National Westminster Bank Plc
e Contract commenced June 2008 to run for 5 years.
e Cost of core service - £35,000 p.a.
e Payments due on an ongoing basis throughout the year

2. Money-broking services:

The following money market brokers services are utilised for day to day
transactions as and when required.

Garban Intercapital plc

Martin Brokers (UK) plc

Prebon Marshall Yamane (UK) Limited
Tradition UK Limited

3. Treasury Consultant services:

¢ Arlingclose Consultancy Services

PageZl76



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

e Contract commenced 1st May 2010 for 3 years with the option to extend
for a further 2 years.
e Cost of service - £8,800 plus VAT per annum
e Payments due quarterly
11.2 Procedures and frequency for tendering services

See TMP2 Performance Measurement section (2.2) for full details of services
tendered. The process must comply with the Council’s Contract Procedure
rules.

TMP 12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

12.1 List of documents to be made available for public inspection
12.1.1 Treasury Management Policy Statement

12.1.2 Treasury Management Strategy

12.1.3 Treasury Management Practices

12.1.4 Treasury Management Mid Year Report
12.1.5 Treasury Management Annual Out-turn Report

Pagge 177



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

APPENDIX A

Definition of Ratings

Fitch Long Term

e AAA -Highest credit quality. Rating denotes the lowest expectation of
credit risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong capacity
for payment of financial commitments. The capacity is highly unlikely to be
adversely affected by foreseeable events.

e AA - Very high credit quality. Rating denotes expectations of very low
credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial
commitments. This capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable
events.

e A - High credit quality. Rating denotes expectation of low credit risk. The
capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. The
capacity may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to changes in
circumstances or in economic conditions than is the case for higher
ratings.

e BBB - Good quality rating. ‘BBB’ ratings indicate that there are currently
expectations of low credit risk. The capacity for payment of financial
commitments is considered adequate but adverse changes in
circumstances and economic conditions are more likely to impair this
capacity. This is the lowest investment grade category.

The modifiers “+” & “-“ may be appended to any of the ratings above to
denote a relative status within major categories.

PageZ878



Treasury Management Practice Schedules 2013/14

Moody’s Long Term

Aaa - Judged to be one of the highest quality, with minimal credit risk

Aa - Judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk

A - Considered upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk

Baa - Offers adequate credit quality. However, certain protective elements
may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any great
length of time.

Moody’s appends numerical modifiers 1, 2 and 3 to each rating
classification. 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of its
category, 2 mid-range and 3 a ranking in the lower end of that category.

Standard & Poors Long Term

AAA - An obligor rated 'AAA' has the highest rating assigned by Standard
& Poor's. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the
obligation is extremely strong.

AA - An obligor rated 'AA’ differs from the highest-rated obligations only to
a small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on
the obligation is very strong.

A - An obligor rated 'A' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse
effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than
obligations in higher-rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to
meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.

BBB - An obligor rated ‘BBB’ has adequate capacity to meet its financial
commitments. However, adverse economic conditions or changing
circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the
obligor to meet its financial commitments.

Plus (+) or minus (-) The ratings from 'AA' to 'CCC' may be modified by

the addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) sign to show relative standing within
the major rating categories

Paife 179



Appendix 4

Slry Fflint
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DRAFT
TREASURY MANAGEMENT

STRATEGY

2013/14

Page 180



Section

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

CONTENTS

Introduction

Economic Context

Interest Rate Forecast

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios
Investment Strategy

Borrowing Strategy

Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives
Treasury Management Indicators

Other Matters

APPENDIX A — Debt Maturity Profile

Page 181

11

12

13

15



Treasury Management Strategy Report 2013/14

The Council is recommended to:
approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14
approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2013/14

1.0

Introduction

In April 2012 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice 2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to
approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial
year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised guidance on local
authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an
investment strategy before the start of each financial year.

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government
Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

Economic Context — as provided by Arlingclose Ltd

Despite some stronger economic growth data towards the end of 2012,
consumers are yet to loosen their purse strings and businesses are still
reticent to make long-term investment decisions. The momentum in GDP
growth is therefore unlikely to be sustained while uncertainty over the
economic outlook persists. Consumer Price Inflation has picked up from the
low of 2.2% in September to 2.7% in December and it is expected to be
affected by volatility in energy and commaodity prices throughout 2013.

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee is monitoring current
economic conditions after voting not to extend quantitative easing in
November. Policymakers appear to be hoping the Funding for Lending
Scheme (FLS), which started in August, is more effective at easing restricted
credit conditions. Although HSBC has opted out of the scheme, most of the
UK'’s biggest lenders have now signed up. There has been some indication in
recent data that the FLS is beginning to boost lending to the household
sector, but business lending remains relatively subdued. Further asset
purchases remain a distinct possibility, although above target inflation may
constrain the MPC in the near future. Based on the last Inflation Report, Bank
of England policymakers believe there is a good chance that the CPI rate will
remain above target throughout 2013.

The US Federal Reserve has responded to the slowdown in growth and
employment with large scale asset purchases of $85bn a month until the
outlook for the labour market improves substantially. The US public finance
‘fiscal cliff remains a serious risk despite the last minute deal reached before

1
Page 182



the deadline at the end of December. The political turmoil is likely to return in
February when the talks on increasing the debt ceiling will create a stage for
further political brinkmanship, no doubt prompting further volatility in financial
markets unless a political solution is reached soon.

The Eurozone is making slow headway, with the European Stability
Mechanism now operational, announcements on the Outright Monetary
Transactions programme well received, and some progress being made
towards banking union. These have placated markets and curtailed some of
the immediate risks to the stability of the monetary union. A sustainable
solution to the Eurozone crisis is some way off though, as fiscal integration
and mutualisation of Eurozone sovereign debt liabilities remain politically
unpalatable.

3.0 Interest Rate Forecasts

The Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose, believes that it
could be 2016 before official UK interest rates rise. The US Federal Reserve
has signalled it will keep interest rates "at exceptionally low levels" until at
least 2015. The UK's safe haven status and the minimal prospect of short-
term rate rises, should maintain gilt yields near their current lows.

Arlingclose central interest rate forecast — December 2012

Bank 3 month | 12 month | 20-year

Rate LIBID LIBID gilt yield *
Q12013 0.50 0.40 0.90 2.80
Q2 2013 0.50 0.40 0.90 2.80
Q3 2013 0.50 0.40 0.95 2.80
Q4 2013 0.50 0.45 0.95 2.80
H1 2014 0.50 0.50 1.00 2.90
H2 2014 0.50 0.50 1.00 2.90
H1 2015 0.50 0.55 1.10 3.00
H2 2015 0.50 0.60 1.10 3.00

* The Council can currently borrow from the PWLB at 0.80% above gilt yields

HM Treasury Survey of Forecasts — November 2012

Average annual Bank Rate %
2013 2014 2015 2016
Highest 0.60 1.60 2.80 3.60
Average 0.50 0.65 1.30 1.80
Lowest 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new investments will
be made at an average rate of 0.60%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed
at an average rate of 4.1%.

2
Page 183



4.0

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios

Current portfolio

The Council’s treasury portfolio as at 315 December 2012 was as follows.

Principal Interest

amount £m rate %
Investments:
Call accounts 3.3 0.40
Money market funds 30.9 0.36
Short-term deposits 30.3 0.99
Long-term deposits - -
Total Investments 64.5 0.66
Borrowing:
Short-term loans - -
Long-term PWLB loans (fixed) 143.16 5.86
Long-term PWLB loans (variable) 10.00 0.55
Long-term market loans (LOBOs) 18.95 4.53
Total Borrowing 172.11 5.42
Net Borrowing 107.61

Expected changes in portfolio

According to current cash flow forecasts, net borrowing is expected to
increase to £117.11 million by 31 March 2013. Net borrowing will remain at
a fairly constant level throughout 2013/14, until the single status agreement is
implemented and the reserve created specifically is used.

This forecast increase in net borrowing may be achieved by reducing
investment balances, as discussed in the borrowing strategy below.

Budget implications

The budget for investment income in 2013/14 is £380K, based on an average
investment portfolio of £64 million at an interest rate of 0.60%. The budget for
loan interest paid in 2013/14 is £9.3 million, based on an average debt
portfolio of £172.11 million at an average interest rate of 5.42%. If actual
levels of investments and borrowing, and actual interest rates differ from
those forecast, performance against budget will be correspondingly different.

Investment Strategy

The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £51.8 and £80.1 million,
and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

3
Page 184



Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.

Investment criteria and limits
The Council defines the following as being of “high credit quality” (as per the
WG Guidance), subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

Fitch Moody’s S &P | Cash Limit| Time Limit

Banks, Building Societies and other | AAA Aaa AAA £7m each 5 years
organisations whose lowest published AA+ Aa1 AA+ 5 years
long-term credit rating from Fitch, AA Aa2 AA 4 years
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s is: AA- Aa3 AA- 3 years
A+ A1 A+ 2 years
A A2 A 1 year
A- A3 A- £5m 6 months
The council’s current account bank £5m next day
(NatWest Bank plc) if rated below A-
UK Building Societies with assets £5m each 1 year

greater than £1bn, which are either
unrated by the credit rating agencies or
have a minimum rating of BBB or
equivalent and above.

Money Market Funds' and similar £7m each 1 year
pooled vehicles whose lowest
published credit rating is AAA

UK Central Government (irrespective unlimited 5 years
of credit rating)
UK Local Authorities? £7m each 5 years

' as defined in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)

Regulations 2003
2 as defined in the Local Government Act 2003

To manage the risk of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any
one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £7 million. A group
of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for
limit purposes.

Current account bank

Following a competitive tender exercise held in 2008, the Council’s current
accounts are held with NatWest Bank plc, which does not currently meet the
above credit rating criteria. The Council will treat NatWest as “high credit
quality” for the purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the
next working day, even if it does not meet the above criteria, subject to the
bank maintaining a credit rating no lower than BBB-.

Building societies

UK building societies without credit ratings, but with an asset size of at least
£1bn will be considered to be of “high credit quality”, but subject to a lower
cash limit and shorter time limit than rated societies. The Council takes

4
Page 185




additional comfort from the building societies’ regulatory framework and
insolvency regime where, in the unlikely event of a building society liquidation,
the Council’s deposits would be paid out in preference to retail depositors.
The Government has announced plans to amend the building society
insolvency regime alongside its plans for wide ranging banking reform, and
investments in lower rated and unrated building societies will therefore be
kept under continuous review.

However, no investments will be made with building societies that hold a long-
term credit rating lower than BBB or equivalent, due to the increased
likelihood of default implied by this rating.

The limit for building society investments is 60% of the total investment
portfolio.

Money market funds

Money market funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of instruments
similar to those used by the Council. They have the advantage of providing
wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager. Fees of between 0.10% and 0.20% per annum
are deducted from the interest paid to the Council.

Investments in money market funds involve the acquisition of share capital,
and are therefore counted as capital expenditure under WG regulations.
However, since withdrawals from funds count as capital receipts, these will be
used to fund the capital expenditure, leaving no overall impact on the
Council’s capital programme.

Foreign countries

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or
AA+ / Aa1 sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies,
and to a maximum of £10 million per foreign country. Investments in
countries whose lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one
year's duration. No country limit will apply to investments in the UK,
irrespective of the sovereign credit rating.

Overseas subsidiaries of foreign banking groups will normally be assessed
according to the country of domicile of the parent organisation. However,
Santander UK plc (a subsidiary of Spain’s Banco Santander) and Clydesale
Bank plc (a subsidiary of National Australia bank) will be classed as UK banks
due to their substantial UK franchises and the arms-length nature of the
parent-subsidiary relationships.

Sovereign credit rating criteria and foreign country limits will not apply to
investments in multilateral development banks (e.g. the European Investment
Bank and the World Bank) or other supranational organisations (e.g. the
European Union).

Risk assessment and credit ratings

5
Page 186



The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’'s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as
speculative grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set to ensure that it
is unlikely that the Council will hold speculative grade investments, despite the
possibility of repeated downgrades.

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria
then:
¢ no new investments will be made,
e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be,
and
o full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”)
so that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments
will be made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is
announced. This policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

The Council’s investments are normally senior unsecured liabilities of the
borrower, and the credit rating of the investment is therefore normally identical
to the credit rating of the counterparty. However, where a credit rating agency
awards a different rating to a particular class of investment instruments, the
Council will base its investment decisions on the instrument credit rating
rather than the counterparty credit rating.

Other information on the security of investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other
available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it
invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports
in the quality financial press. No investments will be made with an
organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even
though it may meet the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of
all organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances,
the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit
quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the

6
Page 187



required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with
prevailing financial market conditions.

If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high
credit quality” are available to invest the Council’'s cash balances, then the
surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management
Office for example, or with other local authorities. This will cause a reduction
in the level of investment income earned, but will protect the principal sum
invested.

Non-specified investments
The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those:
e denominated in pound sterling,
e due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,
e not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and
e invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o abody or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed
as non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments in
foreign currencies, nor any with low credit quality bodies, nor any that are
defined as capital expenditure by legislation (such as company shares), Non-
specified investments will therefore be limited to money market funds (which
are defined as capital expenditure in Wales) and long-term investments, i.e.
those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of
arrangement.

The total limit for money market funds is £30 million, the total limit on long-
term investments is £20 million and the total limit on non-specified
investments is £50 million.

Liguidity management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine
the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The
forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and
payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments.

Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium
term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

Planned investment strategy for 2013/14

The economic climate in 2012/13 meant it was necessary for the strategic
approach to centre on placing money “on call” with banks, depositing with
other local authorities and extensive use of AAA rated Money Market Funds.

7
Page 188



With the exception of two longer term fixed rate deposits, investments
operated within a self-imposed maximum 3 month term for deposits with
banks & building societies, unless economic conditions deteriorate.

Following discussions with the Council’s treasury management advisors amid
an improvement in the credit risk environment, the 3 month self imposed limit
will not be applied during 2013/14.

Treasury management staff will continue to seek out investments that meet
the criteria detailed within this strategy whilst having full regard for the
Council’s cash flow requirements, in particular the expectancy to meet single
status and equal pay obligations during the 2013/14 financial year.

The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three
categories:
e Short-term — cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next
month, plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the
same period.

e Medium-term — cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash
flow cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned
uses of reserves, and a longer-term contingency.

e Long-term — cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily
to generate investment income.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month
or so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance.  Generating investment returns is of limited concern here,
although it should not be ignored. Instant access AAA-rated money market
funds and bank deposit accounts will be the main methods used to manage
short-term cash. It is estimated that about 35% of surplus monies will be
short term for cash flow purposes, although this may vary depending on
changes to the interest rate yield curve.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months
will be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to
liquidity but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments
in this period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be
maintained to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks. Itis
estimated that about 55% of surplus funds will be medium term. However,
again this may vary depending on changes to the interest rate yield curve.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any
losses from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price
and even occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a
diversified portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be
possible to sell investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments

8
Page 189



arise unexpectedly. A wider range of instruments, including structured
deposits, certificates of deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to
diversify the portfolio. The Council will consider employing external fund
managers that have the skills and resources to manage the risks inherent in a
portfolio of long-term investments. However, in the current economic and
financial environment it is likely that only a small percentage, about 10% will
be invested longer term, probably over two years in fixed term deposits or
callable deposits.

With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, due
consideration will also be given to using surplus funds to make early
repayments of long-term borrowing. In addition to the savings on the interest
rate differential, this strategy will also reduce the Council’s exposure to credit
risk and interest rate risk.

Borrowing Strategy

The Council currently holds £172.11m of long-term loans, as part of its
strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The Council’s
capital financing requirement (CFR, or underlying need to borrow for capital
purposes) as at 31 March 2013 is expected to be £175m, and is forecast to
rise to £176m by March 2014 as capital expenditure is incurred.

Given the Council’s latest cash flow forecast, and the forecast pattern of
interest rates during the year, the Council does not anticipate undertaking any
long term borrowing during 2013/14, considering it to be more cost effective to
defer borrowing until later years, and to temporarily reduce the size of the
Council’s investment balance instead.

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up
to two weeks) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

The Council's debt portfolio position as at 31% December 2012 is:

Type Principal Average
£m Interest Rate %
Fixed Rate Funding PWLB 143.16 5.86%
Variable Rate Funding PWLB 10.00 0.55%
Market 18.95 4.53%
Total Long Term Debt 172.11 5.42%

The efficient management of cash flow should mean that no short term
borrowing is required unless as a short term measure during debt re-
structuring, so it is assumed the cost of short term borrowing will be zero. The
Council has an overdraft limit with the bank of £300,000.

The Council has £172.11m of long term borrowing. Most of these loans are

9
Page 190



with the Public Loans Works Board (£153m of PWLB debt). Loans of
£143.16m are at a fixed rate of interest which has the advantage of providing
budget certainty. The interest payment on this debt is £8.4m per annum. A
loan of £10 million is at a variable rate (currently 0.55%), which cost the
Council £70k in 2012/13. The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before
maturity and either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a
formula based on current interest rates. There may be opportunities to re-
structure debt in 2013/14 by replacing some higher rate loans with new loans
at a lower rate where this will lead to an overall saving or reduce risk.
However, given current expectations of interest rates, this is unlikely.

The remainder of the long term debt (£19m) has been borrowed from banks in
the form of three LOBOs (Lenders Option, Borrowers Option). These have a
short fixed interest rate period (which has now passed for these loans)
followed by a longer variable rate period. There is an option for the Council to
repay the loan during the variable rate period if the lender increases the
interest rate. The advantage of using these loans is that the interest rate,
during the fixed rate period especially, can be lower than the PWLB.

The interest cost on these loans is estimated to be £860K in 2013/14 but they
are all in their variable rate period and the lender could increase the interest
rate, albeit given the current expectations for interest rates this is unlikely.

The total estimated interest cost for 2013/14 is £9.3m.

For a number of years the Council has not taken any new long term borrowing
and used cash reserves to fund capital expenditure. The Council’'s Capital
Programme, including Prudential Borrowing will be reviewed to consider the
most financially advantageous method of financing future debt. The situation
is monitored on an on-going basis by the Head of Finance.

Sources of borrowing
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:
e Public Works Loan Board
e any institution approved for investments above
e any other bank or building society approved by the Financial Services
Authority
e capital market bond investors
e special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond
issues.

Planned borrowing strateqgy for 2013/14
The Head of Finance will:

e Manage the Council's debt maturity profile, i.e. to leave no one future year
with a high level of repayments that could cause problems in re-borrowing
with the limits stated in this Strategy Statement. Appendix A analyses the
debt portfolio of the Council, as at 31st December, 2012.

e To effect any borrowing that maybe required in 2013/14 at the cheapest

10
Page 191



cost commensurate with future risk based on interest rate forecasts.

e To monitor and review the level of variable interest rate loans in order to
take greater advantage of interest rate movements, within the limits stated
in this Strategy.

e Continue to monitor options for debt-restructuring and debt re-payment.

The Head of Finance will monitor the interest rate market and adopt a
pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances, reporting any decisions
and actions taken under delegated powers to Cabinet via the Audit
Committee.

With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it is
likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either borrow short-term
loans, variable rate loans or to not borrow and reduce the level of investments
held instead. However, with long-term rates forecast to rise in the coming
years, any such short-term savings will need to be balanced against the
potential longer-term costs.

The Council has previously raised the maijority of its long-term borrowing from
the Public Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of
finance, such as bond issues and bank loans, that may be available at more
favourable rates.

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender’s option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans and variable rate loans will be restricted to
the limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the treasury
management indicators below.

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives

The Localism Act 2011 includes a general power competence that removes
the uncertain legal position over English local authorities’ use of standalone
financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or
investment). Although this change does not apply to Wales, the latest CIPFA
Code requires authorities to clearly detail their policy on the use of derivatives
in the annual strategy.

In the absence of any legislative power, the Council’s policy is not to enter into
standalone financial derivatives transactions such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options. Embedded derivatives will not be subject to this policy, although
the risks they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk
management strategy.

11
Page 192



Treasury Management Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:

Interest rate exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as
an amount of net principal borrowed will be:

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures £200m £200m £200m
Upper limit on variable interest rate £40m £40m £40m
exposures

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.

Maturity structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10%
24 months and within five years 0% 30%
Five years and within 10 years 0% 50%
10 years and above 0% 100%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’'s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on
the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will
be:

end

Any long term investments carried forward from previous years will be
included in each years limit.

12
Page 193

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Limit on total principal invested beyond year £20m £20m £20m




Borrowing limits

The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of

the Capital Programme report.
completeness.

However they are repeated here for

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Operational boundary — borrowing £182.6 £198 £233.1
Operational boundary - other long-term £15.6 £16.6 £17.6
liabilities £198.2 £214.6 £250.7
Operational boundary — TOTAL
Authorised limit — borrowing £202.6 £218 £253.1
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities £15.6 £16.6 £17.6
Authorised limit — TOTAL £218.2 £234.6 £270.7

Other Matters

The WG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following three
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

Treasury Management Advisers
The Council’s treasury management adviser Sterling Consultancy Services
was acquired by Arlingclose Limited in October 2012. Arlingclose continues
to provide advice and information on the Council’s investment and borrowing
activities, although responsibility for final decision making remains with the
Council and its officers. The services received include:

e advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,
advice on investment decisions,
notification of credit ratings and changes,
other information on credit quality,
advice on debt management decisions,
accounting advice,
reports on treasury performance,
forecasts of interest rates, and
training courses.

The quality of this service is controlled by Financial Procedure Rules

Investment training

The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in
investment management are assessed as part of the staff appraisal process,
and additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff
change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study
professional qualifications from CIPFA, the Association of Corporate
Treasurers and other appropriate organisations.

13
Page 194



)2 OCoO~NOOOPrWN -

- O

Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

The Head of Finance under delegated powers may borrow in advance of need
if it is within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and
if there is a clear business case for doing so.

Risks associated with any advance borrowing activity will be subject to
appraisal in advance and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or

annual reporting mechanism. The Council would not look to borrow more
than 12 months in advance of need.

The Council will only invest money borrowed in advance of need for known
debt maturities or to finance the borrowing requirement for the year

concerned.

Other Options Considered

The WG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not
prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to
adopt. The Chief Financial Officer, having consulted the Cabinet Member for
Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance

between risk management and cost effectiveness.

Some alternative

strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed

below.

Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk
management

Adopt a narrower definition of
“high credit quality” and/or shorter
time limits

Interest income will be lower

Reduced risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Adopt a wider definition of “high
credit quality” and/or longer time
limits

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long
term costs will be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing if debt
rescheduling costs weren’t
prohibitive

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be less certain

14
Page 195




APPENDIX A — DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Debt Maturity Profile

£m

15
Page 196



%6°C %00 %GEL %091 %9°29 %0°001
61 00 06 901 6y 799
00 00 00 00 6°0€ S'9y 6°0€ SANNS LIXNHVIN ASNOW
6l 00 00 00 00 6¢C 61 (MNVYESANY1) ANV 130l
00 00 0¢ 00 00 0€¢ 0¢C S3ILIYOHLNY TVOO01 ¥3HLO
00 00 00 00 S'g €8 S'g SVYISHINO|
00 00 0L 9'0) G'8 £'6¢ 1'9¢ XN
00 00 00 00 00 00 00 (OWa@) 301440 LNJWIOVYNVIN 183d
w3 w3 w3 w3 % w3
puejes] + syjuow z|, + syjuow ¢ syjuow ¢ - ||ssa| 10 yuow |, 1ejol Aewwng
¥'99 0€'790°LEE ¥'99
06 + syjuow €/00°000'8Y. %091 £€1-983-60 Z21l-933a-g 0'¢ ANVY1LO2S 40 MNVd
+ syjuow ¢loe'8ey'ZL 1L %00°¢ €1-Inr-¥0 cl-inr-2¢2 oY ANVY1LOOS 40 MNvE
+ syuow ¢l¥9'196°'6€ %0¢€"1 €l-1dv-91 L1-00-€ 0¢ JIONNOD H3.1SYONOQ
90l syjuow ¢ - LIEE'¥90°C %9t 0 €l-JeN-8l Z2l-993a-41 8'l SAV10dvd
syjuow ¢ - 1110°E9Y°L %090 €1-1eN-90 Zl-9ed-, 0l AL3ID0S ONIATING SIILNNOD TVNOLLVYN
sypuow ¢ - L/€°1G2°) %S0 €1-994-8¢ Zl-983a-¢ gl ALIIO0S ONIATING FHIHSHHOA]
Syjuow ¢ - 1|2 V€8 %SE°0 £1-994-8¢ Z2l-933a-¢ 0l ALIID0S ONIATING I2dIHFNVI)
syjuow ¢ - LIy '0EY’L %090 €1-994-8¢ Zl-9eda-¢ 0l ALIID0S ONIATING SFILNNOD TVNOILLVYN
syuow ¢ - 1160°968°C %S¥ 0 €1-994-¢¢ Zl-983a-¢ 6¢C SAV10dvY
syjuow ¢ - 118/°GeS") %t 0 £1-994-2¢ Z1-NON-€2 vl ALIID0S ONIATING JAIMNOILYN
6 vy $S9| JO yuow |[Z1°L12'G %1S°0 gl-uer-1¢ 2l-983a-g 99 ANNd ALIAINDOIT ONITHILS SINDI
Ss9) Jo yuow 1/€°190°2 %0 0 gl-uer-1¢ Zl-983a-g £¢ NIMNVYESTIANVH
SS9 Jo yjuow L]} | '9€G'E %¥E€ 0 gl-uer-i¢ CJ-NON-| (44 AaNNd sgd
SS9| JO yuow L[Zy EE'El %cCe0 gl-uer-1¢ 2l-unr-gg 02 [NNd ALIAINDIT ONITHILS LSNI MOOUMOVId
$S9| JO yjuow L|06°LSS" L %SE°0 gl-uer-1¢ cl-unpe-| 4 aNNd ALIdINOIT IVEO01D dIMS|
Ssd| Jo yyuow LIS LLL'9L %1€°0 gl-uer-i¢ Zl-idy-g 4] AaNNd ALIJINDIT d99 VOSS
SS9| JO yjuow L[ge"9)L°El %¥€0 gl-uer-1¢ Zl-ldy-g L'y ANNd ONITY31LS dIOVNVYIN FHOS.LN3d
$S9| JO yuow L[9Z'LL L' %9t°0 g£l-uer-gg CL-NON-G 0¢C ALIID0S ONIATING AYLNIANOD
Ss9| Jo yjuow 1[66°285°) %9t°0 g£l-uer-gg Z1-NON-G gl ALIID0S ONIATING AHLNINOD
SS9| JO yjuow ||5G°088°L %ty 0 €l-uer-¢e CL-NON-G 0¢ AL3II00S ONIATING SAIMNOILYN
$S9| JO yjuow |[8G°9v8°¢ %810 gl-uer-gg Z21-10-v2 0¢C ALIID0S ONIATING STILNNOD TVNOILVYN
$S9| JO yjuow 1]02°G09'L %9¢°0 gl-uer-g| Z1-NON-G 2'¢ INOILLYHOJHOD ONIMNVYE ISINIHO-VISHIAQ
SS9| JO yjuow L[81°6L1°C %S8°0 €l-uer-co ZL-1P0-¢ 0l AL3I00S ONIATING S3ILNNOD TVNOILVN
puejad| 1ed ul pauiniay|ze 6z0‘L | %.19'S 80-AON-8| 80-dog-g S0 SANVYISI IMNVESANY]
pue|so| ped ul pauiniay|ez yee’/ L %0.4°S 80-AON-¥| 80-dog-| 80 SANVISI IMNVESANY
pue|ad| Wed ul pauiniey|e/ 9v9'9L %Z8'S 80-1°0-21 80-Inr-¢¢ 90 SANVISI MNVESANYT
Em UO_LQQ jusawijsaaul Ew
TIunIE 0] poliag| BuMnP peulEdIsaIRl [Seaes oy Auniep ajeq 3e)S [3unowy swepN Auediajuno)

g Xipuaddy

3P AJINJeW Aq - Z}0Z Joquiada( JS|E JE Se SJUSWSOAU]

Page 197



16'51L1293 SIZL0Z 19qWLaAON YI0€ LV SV €1/210Z ¥Od LSIYILNI A3LVINILST

99 92'¥90°LEE 799
Gl syuow ¢ - LJ/€°162°) %SE°0 £1-494-8¢2 Z2l-98g-¢ gl ALIID0S ONIATING FHIHSHHOA
2¢ $S8| JO yuow L|06°1SS"L %SE 0 gl-uer-1¢ cl-unpr-| '€ AaNNd4 ALIJINDIT IVEO19D dIMS|
4] ss9| Jo yjuow L|1G°LLL9L %.E 0 gl-uer-i¢ Zl-idy-g 4] ANNd ALIAINDIT 99 VOSS
f44 $S8| Jo yyuow |[11°9¢G°¢ %¥E 0 gl-uer-j¢ CL-AON-| (44 aNNd sgyd
2¢ $S8| JO yuow 1]02°G09°L %9€ 0 gl-uer-g| C1-AON-G 2'¢ INOLLYHOJHOD ONIMNYE ISINIHD-VISHINAQ
Ve syjuow ¢ - ||8/°GES'L %¥¥ 0 £1-994-2¢ C1-NON-€C 7'l ALIID0S ONIATING IAIMNOILYN
SS9| Jo yjuow 1|5G°088°L %t 0 gl-uer-gg C1-AON-G 0¢ ALIID0S ONIATING JAIMNOILYN
[0§°] syjuow ¢ - L[L0'E9Y'L %09°0 £1-1eIN-90 Z2l-98Q-L 0l ALIID0S ONIATING SIILNNOD TVNOILLVYN
syjuow ¢ - ||yl 0EY'L %090 £1-994-8¢ Z21-993a-¢ o'l ALIID0S ONIATING STILNNOD TVNOILVYN
$S9| Jo yjuow 18G°9¥8°¢C %810 gl-uer-gg 21 10-v2 0¢ ALIID0S ONIATING STILLNNOD TVYNOILVYN
ss®| Jo yjuow 1816112 %580 g£l-uer-¢o Z21100-¢ 0l ALIID0S ONIATING SIILNNOD TVNOILLVYN
puejag| Jed ul pauinidyfze 6z0‘L | %.19'S 80-AON-8| 80-dog-8 S0 SANVISI IMNVYESANYT
puejsg| Jed ul pauiniay|ez yee’ /L %0.L'G 80-AON-¥7| g0-des-| 80 SANVISI IMNVESANY
puejag| ped ul Um:._zaww_._.mﬁowo.w_‘ %Z8'S 80-1°0-21 80-INr-2¢ 90 SANVISI IMNVESANYT
99 ss9| Jo yjuow LIZ1°L12'S %150 gl-uer-1¢ Z21-983a-g 99 ANNd ALIJINDIT ONITHILS SINDI,
€'e $s9| Jo yjuow 11/€°190°2 %0¥°0 gl-uer-L¢ Z2l-983a-g £'e NIMNVYESTIANYH
0¢ + syjuow ¢l49'196°6€ %0€"1 £l-1dy-9| 1 L-190-¢€ 0¢ TIONNOD H¥31SVONOd
LY $S8| JO yjuow L[ge'9LL'El %¥E 0 gl-uer-1¢ Z1-1dv-2 LY ANNd ONITHILS dIOVNVYIW FHOS.LNIJ
g'e ss9| Jo yjuow LI9z'LL L2 %9¥°0 g€l-uer-gg C1-AON-G 0'¢ ALIID0S ONIATING AYLNIAOD
ss®| Jo yjuow L|56°/8S ) %9t°0 g£l-uer-gg CL-NON-G gl ALIID0S ONIATING AHLNIAOD|
0l Syjuow ¢ - 1|2 V€8 %SE 0 £1-994-8¢ Z2l-98Q-¢ 0l ALIID0S ONIATING IDAIHINV)
0/ $S8| IO yjuow L[gi EEY'EL %20 gl-uer-i¢ cl-unr-gg 02  [ANND ALIINDITONITIILS LSNIMOOHUMOVIg
Ly syjuow ¢ - L|e€¥90°C %9t°0 €l-lelN-8L Z2l-98Qa-LL 8’ SAV1Odvd
syjuow ¢ - 11€0°968°C %S¥'0 £1-994-2¢ Z2l-98Q-¢ 6'¢C SAV10dvd
0 + syjuow ¢]00°000'8¥% %091 £1-983-60 ¢l-99d-9 0'¢ ANVY1LODS 40 MNVd
+ Syjuow ¢loe8ev2l | %00°¢ £L-Inr-¥0 Zl-nr-2¢ oY ANV1LOIS 40 MNVd
pouad juswisaaul w3
w3 Tunje o3 ponag| Bulnp pausedsasRlul SEaTea) Rumen a1eQ 3E)S [3unowy sweN Apediajuno)

3ueq Aq - Z10Z Joquiada(Q JS|S JE SE SJuaWISaAU|

[I5UNGY AJUNoY SJIysIully

Page 198



Agenda Item 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: COUNCIL
DATE: 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2013/14 TO 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a range of prudential indicators

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting of 19 February 2013, Cabinet considered a report from
the Head of Finance in respect of the setting of Prudential Indicators
for the period 2013/14 to 2015/16.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Appendix 1 — Prudential Indicators 2013/14 to 2015/16 (the report to
Cabinet of 19 February 2013).

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Council is requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet as
set out in the attached report (Appendix 1).

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set outin the report.

6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None directly as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None directly as a result of this report.

Page 199



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet 19" February 2013: Prudential
Indicators 2013/14 to 2015/16.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government papers

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 200



APPENDIX 1
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 19 FEBRUARY

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2013/14 TO 2015/16

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

3.00

3.01

3.02

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present proposals for setting a range of prudential indicators in accordance with
the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

BACKGROUND

The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice to support
local authorities in determining their programmes for capital investment in fixed
assets. Local authorities are required by Regulation to have regard to the
Prudential Code when carrying out duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act
2003.

The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to support local
strategic planning, local asset management planning and robust option appraisal.
The objectives of the Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital
investments plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable,
and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice.

The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors that
must be taken into account in preparing such.

CONSIDERATIONS

The prudential indicators required by the Prudential Code are designed to support
and record local decision making; they are not designed to be comparative
performance indicators — the use of them in this way would likely to be misleading
and counter productive. They are considered in parallel with the treasury
management indicators required by the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes, as reported
elsewhere on this agenda.

The Prudential Code recognises that in making capital investment decisions, and in
reviewing the prudential indicators, the Council must have regard to the following:

e Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority

e Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

Page 201



3.03

3.04

3.05

Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents

¢ Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing

Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan

The Code does not specify how the Council should have regard to these factors,
but instead concentrates on the means by which it demonstrates that the proposals
are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Affordability is the ultimate constraint on the amount that a local authority can
spend or borrow. In practice, when making a decision to invest in a capital asset,
the authority must do more than simply determine whether it can afford the
immediate cost. In order to ensure long term affordability, decisions have to be
prudent, and in the long term sustainable. Borrowing has to be prudent because,
since future interest rates and revenue streams are uncertain, it must involve an
element of risk. Furthermore, if the Council is unable to deliver its capital
programme, or to afford the cost of running and maintaining the new facilities, the
chosen level of capital investment will not be sustainable in the long term.
Prudence and affordability are related concepts.

The Prudential Code specifies that prudential indicators are required to be
calculated for the forthcoming financial year and two subsequent financial years,
this process links in with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Based on those resources currently allocated (including specific grants, but
excluding any rephasing of expenditure from 2012/13 to future years), the
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred in 2013/14 (and the following two
years), are as indicated in the table below; unsupported (prudential) borrowing of
£26.49m has been assumed in the three year period for Council Fund purposes.
This is in line with the capital programme proposals recommended to commence in
2012/13 in the Council Fund Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2022/23 report which
is included elsewhere on this agenda.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 29.908 27.540 53.406
Housing Revenue Account 10.992 11.592 10.395
Total 40.900 39.132 63.801

The capital expenditure totals essentially provide the base financial data from which
all other indicators follow.

Page 202



3.06

3.07

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2013/14 based
on those expenditure assumptions outlined in the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue budget report (both included elsewhere on this agenda), are as included
in the table below; these indicators of affordability address the revenue implications
of the Council’s financial strategy.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
% % %
Council Fund 5.489 5.491 6.153
Housing Revenue Account 7.535 6.940 6.145

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from Rent payers. The Council Fund ratio
reflects an increasing burden of total external interest being borne by the Council
Fund due to the continuing reduction in HRA debt outstanding as a percentage of
an increasing level of revenue stream income. The estimate of financing costs
includes the current commitments and the proposals included in the capital
programme report. The HRA as calculated, reflects a reducing financing cost
attributable to the continuing reduction in HRA debt outstanding as a percentage of
an increasing level of revenue stream income.

The Prudential code requires that the estimate of the incremental impact of capital
investment decisions as proposed in the capital budget report for the period
2013/14 to 2015/16, over and above capital investment decisions that have
previously been taken by the Council are reported in terms of their impact on Band
D Council Tax and Housing Rents, and are shown in the table below:

ESTIMATE OF INCREMENTAL IMPACT OF CAPITAL
INVESTMENT
2013/4 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£ £ £
Band D Council Tax 5.14 8.28 23.38
Average Weekly Housing Rents Nil Nil Nil

The incremental impact of capital investment on the Council Tax reflects the
inclusion of annual unsupported (prudential) borrowing charges included in the
revenue budget report totals included elsewhere on this agenda.

Whilst the impact of capital investments decision is nominally shown in terms of
impact on Council Tax levels, the actual levels of Council Tax increase each year

Page 203



3.08

3.09

3.10

will be in accordance with the Council’s policy of 3% to 3.5% as set out in the
Medium Term Financial Strategy. Detailed medium term financial planning will
identify efficiencies to enable investment to take place whilst maintaining Council
Tax levels as agreed.

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Estimates of the capital financing requirement, as described in section 3.09 below,
for 2013/14 are:

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT
2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 158.454 | 162.347 | 172.275
Housing Revenue Account 25449 | 24.941 24.442
Total 183.903 | 187.288 | 196.717

The capital financing requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.
In accordance with best professional practice, Flintshire County Council does not
associate debt with particular items or type of expenditure. The authority has an
integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance
Notes. Flintshire County Council has, at any point in time, a number of cash flows
both positive and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its debt
and investments in accordance with its approved treasury management policy and
strategy. The Treasury Management Policy Statement 2013 — 2016 and the
Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 appear elsewhere on this agenda
following consideration by the Audit Committee in January 2013. In day to day
cash management, no distinction can be made between revenue cash and capital
cash. External debt arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the
authority and not simply those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the capital
financing requirement reflects the authority’s underlying need to finance capital
expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following; gross debt and the capital financing requirement, as a key indicator of
prudence.

‘In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the short
term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus
the estimates of any additional financing requirement for the current and next two
financial years’.

In November 2012 CIPFA issued an amendment to the Prudential Code changing
the indicator from net debt (total borrowing and other long-term liabilities less any
investments held) to gross debt. Following reflection that comparing the capital
financing requirement to the net position i.e., net of investments, could potentially

Page 204



3.1

3.12

mask a position where an authority had borrowed other than for a capital purpose
and then subsequently invested the surplus funds.

The Head of Finance reports no difficulty in meeting this requirement for the future
period to which the prudential indicators apply. This view takes into account current
commitments, existing plans, and all budget proposals.

Prudential Indicators for External Debt and Treasury Management

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves the
following authorised limits for its total external debt gross of any investment for the
next three financial years. These limits separately identify borrowing from other
long term liabilities such as finance leases. The Council is asked to approve these
limits and to delegate authority to the Head of Finance, within the total limit for any
individual year, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for
borrowing and other long term liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and
best value for money for the authority. Any such changes made will be reported to
the Council at its meeting following the change.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Capital/Revenue) 202.600 | 218.000 | 253.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 15.600 16.600 17.600
Total 218.200 | 234.600 | 270.700

The authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the capital programme report, and with its
approved Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14. They are based on the
estimate of most likely, prudent position with, sufficient headroom over and above
this to allow for operational management, for example unusual cash movements.
Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been taken into account, as
have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital financing requirement
and estimates of cash flow requirements for all purposes.

The Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for
external debt for the same period. The proposed operational boundary for external
debt is based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but reflects directly the
estimate of the most likely, prudent provision, without the additional headroom
included in the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual cash movements,
and equates to the maximum of external debt projected by this estimate. The
operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring.
Within the operational boundary, figures borrowing and other long term liabilities
are separately identified. The Council is also asked to delegate authority to the
Head of Finance, within the total operational boundary for any individual year, to
effect movement between the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other
long term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes
will be reported to the Council at its next meeting following the change.

Page 205



3.13

3.14

4.00

4.01

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Capital/Revenue) 182.600 | 198.000 | 233.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 15.600 16.600 17.600
Total 198.200 | 214.600 | 250.700

The figure for all borrowing has increased in line with the assumption made in 3.05
that for Council Fund purposes there is a requirement to borrow £26.49m through
unsupported (prudential) borrowing over the three year period. In addition, the
figure for other long term liabilities has increased from prior years due to the value
of those finance leases associated with the redevelopment of Deeside Leisure
Centre and the Jade Jones Pavilion Flint.

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the
authorised limit and operational boundary, since actual external debt reflects the
position at a point in time.

The Council is asked to note that the authorised limit determined in 2013/14 (see
section 3.11 above) will be the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the
Local Government Act 2003.

The prudential indicator in respect of treasury management is confirmation that the
Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (as reported elsewhere on
this agenda). The aim of this indicator is to ensure that treasury management is led
by a clear integrated forward treasury management strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve and recommend to County Council on 1% March 2013:
a) the prudential indicators as detailed in Section 3 of the report

Capital expenditure (3.05)

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream (3.06)

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the council tax (3.07)
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rents (3.07)
Capital financing requirement (3.08)

Gross debt and the capital financing requirement (3.10)

Authorised limit for external debt (3.11, 3.13)

Operational boundary for external debt (3.12)

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code
of Practice ad Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (3.14)

b) delegated authority for the Head of Finance to effect movements between the
separately agreed limits within the authorised limit for external debt and the
operational boundary for external debt (3.11, 3.12)

Y for XA ge 206



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers: Various Welsh Government and CIPFA papers
Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: COUNCIL
DATE: 1 MARCH 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a prudent minimum revenue provision for the
repayment of debt.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting of 19 February 2013, Cabinet considered the Head of
Finance’s report in respect of the calculation of Minimum Revenue
Provision for 2013/14.

2.02 The report of 19 February detailed the requirements and associated
guidance, in respect of:

e The 4 available options for making prudent provision.

e The circumstances for using the options, 2 of which are
available in respect of capital expenditure funded by way of
Welsh Government supported borrowing, and a further 2 in
respect of that funded by unsupported (prudential) borrowing.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
section 4.00 of the report to Cabinet of 19 February 2013, a copy of
which is included as appendix 1 to this report.

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Council is requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet,
being that :-

e Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of

the minimum revenue provision in 2013/14 for all supported
borrowing.

Page 209



5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

e Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2013/14 for all unsupported
(prudential) borrowing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2013/14 Council Fund revenue budget provides for the minimum
revenue provision in respect of all supported borrowing, on the basis
of Option 1 — Regulatory Method calculation.

Any planned use of unsupported (prudential) borrowing, will need to
take account of the revenue consequences of the Option 3 — Asset
Life Method calculation, as part of the overall options appraisal and
budget setting processes.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet 19" February 2013: Minimum
Revenue Provision 2013/14.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government papers

Page 210



Contact Officer:  Liz Thomas,

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: Liz.Thomas@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



APPENDIX 1
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 19 FEBRUARY

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present proposals for the setting of a prudent minimum revenue provision for the
repayment of debt in 2013/14, as required under the Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008
Regulations’).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Local Authorities are required each year to set aside some of their revenue
reserves as provision for the repayment of debt i.e. a provision in respect of capital
expenditure financed from borrowing or credit arrangements.

2.02 Regulation 22 of the 2008 Regulations requires an authority to each year make an
amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it considers to be ‘prudent’,
but the regulation does not itself define ‘prudent provision’. However, the Welsh
Government (WG) has provided guidance which makes recommendations to
authorities on the interpretation of the term; the guidance was last updated in April
2010.

2.03 Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy on making
MRP, which mirrors the existing requirements on the prudential borrowing limit and
investment policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS
Meaning of ‘Prudent Provision’

3.01 The WG guidance provides for number of options for making ‘prudent provision’. It
explains that provision for the borrowing which financed the acquisition of an asset
should be made over a period bearing some relation to that over which the asset
continues to provide a service.

Options for Prudent Provision

3.02 Option 1 — Regulatory Method.

For debt which is supported by Revenue Support Grant (RSG), authorities may
continue to use the formula specified in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 2003 (the regulations which preceded the 2008

Page 213



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

Regulations), since the RSG is calculated on that basis, i.e. authorities are able to
calculate MRP exactly as if the 2003 Regulations were still in force.

Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a technically simpler alternative to option 1 and may also be used in relation
to supported debt. While still based on the concept of the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), which is easily derived from the balance sheet, it avoids the
complexities of the formula in Regulation 22. However, for most authorities it will
probably result in a higher level of provision (and subsequent impact on service
budgets) than Option 1, as it would for Flintshire County Council.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method

For new borrowing under the Prudential system for which no Government support
is being given and is therefore self-financed, there are two options. Option 3 is to
make provision in equal instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which
borrowing is undertaken. This is a possible simpler alternative to the use of
depreciation accounting (Option 4), though it has some similarities to that
approach.

Option 4 — Depreciation Method

Alternatively, for new borrowing under the Prudential system for which no WG
support is being given, Option 4 may be used. This means making MRP in
accordance with the standard rules for depreciation accounting.

Conditions for using the options

The intention is that Options 1 and 2 should be used only for WG supported
borrowing. Options 3 and 4 should be used in relation to all capital expenditure

which is to be financed by unsupported borrowing or credit arrangements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 1% March 2013:-

o Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the minimum
revenue provision in 2013/14 for all supported borrowing; this represents a
continuation of the approved and adopted policy for 2012/13.

o Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the minimum
revenue provision in 2013/14 for all unsupported (prudential) borrowing; this
represents a continuation of the approved and adopted policy for 2012/13.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2013/14 Council Fund revenue budget provides for the minimum revenue
provision in respect of all supported borrowing, on the basis of Option 1 —
Regulatory Method calculation.

Any planned use of unsupported (prudential) borrowing, will need to take account of
the revenue consequences of the Option 3 — Asset Life Method calculation, as part
of the overall options appraisal and budget setting processes.

Page 214



6.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 None directly as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None directly as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None directly as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers: Various Welsh Government papers
Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Strategy & Technical
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



Agenda Item 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: FRIDAY 15T MARCH 2013
REPORT BY: HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: PAY POLICY STATEMENT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek approval on the Council's Pay Policy Statement, to be
effective from 1 April 2013.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Under the Localism Act 2011, Councils in England and Wales are
required to prepare and agree a Pay Policy Statement. The statement
needs to set out the Council’s policies on remuneration for Chief
Officers, how the statement will be published and accessed, the
Council's policies for the remuneration of its lowest paid employees
and the relationship between remuneration for Chief Officers and
other employees.

2.02 Pay Policy Statements must be produced and published on an annual
basis in advance of the beginning of each financial year. The
provisions of the Act do not apply to employees of Local Authority
Schools and consequently, teaching employees will not be brought
into the scope of the statement.

2.03 The provisions of the Act bring together the need for increasing
accountability, transparency and fairness in the setting of local pay
which will enable the tax payer to understand and access information
on remuneration levels across all groups of Council employees.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The attached Pay Policy Statement has been drafted in accordance
with the requirements of 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 and
incorporates all existing pay arrangements for the workforce groups
within the Council including Chief Officers and the lowest paid
employees.

Page 217



3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

The achievement of Single Status for Green Book employees in the
early part of 2013/14 will result in a new equality proofed pay and
grading structure. Arrangements for maintaining the new pay and
grading structure, to ensure that there is no pay discrimination and
that all pay differentials can be justified, will be part of the new
structure.

Within the options for our final Pay and Grading model under Single
Status, we have developed positive proposals to address low pay.
Council members will be encouraged to meet the objective of
protecting employees from low pay when the Single Status Agreement
is presented for approval.

The Council is developing a new Market Supplement Policy, to ensure
that the Council is able to offer competitive rates to attract and retain
talented people where there may be limited availability of particular
skills or expertise in the market place. Such a policy will be
recommended for introduction alongside a Single Status Agreement
during 2013/14.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the County Council approves the attached Pay Policy Statement
for 2013 / 2014, acknowledging that there is work in progress to
achieve a complete set of pay and reward arrangements, once a
Single Status Agreement is achieved, which will be reflected in
subsequent Pay Policy Statements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no new financial implications for the Council arising from
this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising directly from this report or the attached Pay Policy
Statement.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None arising directly from this report or the attached Pay Policy
Statement.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Page 218



9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

None arising directly from this report or the attached Pay Policy
Statement.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None as the attached document captures existing pay and reward
arrangements only.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Not applicable.

APPENDICES

Pay Policy Statement is attached as Appendix 1.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Helen Stappleton
Telephone: 01352 702720
Email: Helen.stappleton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



APPENDIX 1

Pay Policy Statement
2013/14

Sir y Fflint
'5!&!3!3!3.!%

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 221 1




CONTENTS

Section

10

Introduction and Purpose
Legislative Framework
Scope of the Pay Policy Statement

Background of Principles
e Remuneration Data
Policy Documents
Development of a Pay and Reward Strategy
Pay Structure
o Job Evaluation
o Chief Officer Job Evaluation
o Honoraria

Responsibility for Decisions on Remuneration

Remuneration for Chief Officers

i) Chief Executive
ii) Directors
iii) Heads of Service

Additions to Remuneration for Chief Officers
Severance Payments

Recruitment of Chief Officers
Publication of Pay Policy Statement
Remuneration of the Lowest Paid Employees

Pay Relativities within the Council

Pay Policy Statement - March 2013 Page 222



1. Introduction and Purpose

The Local Government Act 1972, (section 112) sets out the Council’s ‘power
to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Authority
thinks fit'. This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council's pay policy in
accordance with the requirements of 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011, which
requires English and Welsh local authorities to produce and publish a Pay
Policy Statement for 2013/14 and for each financial year after that, detailing
the:

¢ Council’s policies towards the remuneration of Chief Officers;
publication of and access to information on the remuneration of Chief
Officers;
Council’s policies for the remuneration of its lowest paid employees;
relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and other
employees.

The Council is a large complex organisation with a multi-million pound budget.
It has a very wide range of functions and provides and /or commissions a
wide range of services. Whilst a consistent approach to remuneration will be
adopted across the Council, there may be differences to reflect specific
circumstances at a local, Welsh or UK national level.

This Pay Policy Statement reflects the current position as at 1 April 2013. The
Council is currently working towards achieving a Single Status Agreement for
Green Book employees which is planned for implementation part way through
the financial year 2013/14.

2. Legislative Framework

The Council will comply with all relevant employment legislation including the
Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable
Treatment) Regulations 2000, the Agency Workers Regulations 2010, the
Working Time Regulations 1998, the National Minimum Wage Rates and,
where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Earnings)
Regulations 2006. The Council will ensure through the Single Status
Agreement that there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and
that all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of equality
proofed Job Evaluation.

3. Scope of the Pay Policy Statement
The Localism Act 2011 requires authorities to develop and make public their
pay policy on Chief Officer remuneration (including on ceasing to hold office),

and their pay policy for the ‘lowest paid’, explaining the relationship between
remuneration of chief officers and other workforce groups.

In the interests of transparency and accountability, the Council has chosen to
produce a wider policy statement covering all employee groups (with the

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 223 3



exception of school staff appointed by a school governing body) including
employees appointed under the terms and conditions agreed with:

¢ The National Joint Council for Local Government Services;

e The Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Craft and
Associated Employees;

e The Joint Negotiating Committee for Youth and Community Workers;

¢ JNC for Chief Officers;

e JNC for Chief Executives.

4. Background and Principles

The Council is committed to an open and transparent pay policy which will
enable the tax payer to understand and assess information on remuneration
levels across all groups of Council employees.

In Flintshire County Council, the term ‘Chief Officer covers the Chief
Executive, Directors and the Heads of Service. Throughout the document,
the term Chief Officer refers to all three job roles.

The statement is effective from 1 April 2012 and will be subject to review on a
minimum of an annual basis in accordance with the relevant legislation
prevailing at that time.

The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development will have
the authority to review the policy within the one year period, to make any
minor amendments required by legislation.

The following supporting information is available on the Council’s website at
www.flintshire.gov.uk:

¢ Remuneration data

(1) All Employee pay scales

(i) Individual remuneration details for senior employees (see
footnote on page 8) whose remuneration is over £60,000
per annum and the number of employees whose
remuneration exceeds £60,000 as required under the
Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations
2010

e Policy documents
(1) Honoraria Policy

(i) Policy Statement on Redundancy and Severance
Payments (including additional pension payments)

Pay Policy Statement - March 2013 Page 224 4



e Development of a Pay and Reward Strategy

The primary aim of a pay and reward strategy is to attract, retain and
motivate suitably skilled employees so that the organisation can
perform at its best. The biggest challenge for the Council in the current
circumstances is to maximise productivity and efficiency within current
resources. Pay policy is a matter of striking a balance between setting
remuneration levels to secure a sufficient supply of appropriately skilled
individuals to fill the Council’'s wide range of posts, and ensuring that
the burden on the public finances can be fully and objectively justified.

It needs to be recognised that at the more senior grades in particular,
remuneration levels need to attract of a suitably wide pool of talent and
retain suitably skilled and qualified individuals once in post. It should be
recognised that the Council will often be seeking to recruit in
competition with other public and private sector employers.

The Council is a major employer in the County and the region. The
availability of good quality employment on reasonable terms and
conditions and fair rates of pay has a beneficial impact on the quality of
life in the community as well as on the local economy. The Council
should be a role model in setting a benchmark example on pay and
conditions to other employers.

In designing, developing and reviewing pay and reward strategy the
Council will seek to balance these factors to have a workforce which
will help it met its objectives for public services. This Pay Policy will be
reviewed an annual basis.

o Pay Structure
o Job Evaluation

Job evaluation is a systematic way of determining the value/worth
of a job compared to other jobs within an organisation. It aims to
make a systematic comparison between jobs to assess their
relative worth in a rational pay structure ensuring pay equity. For all
jobs that are not nationally prescribed, and are not Chief Officer
posts, the Council uses the Greater London Provincial Committee
(GLPC) Scheme.

Based on the application of the job evaluation process, the Council
currently uses the nationally negotiated pay spine as the basis for
its local grading structure. This determines the salaries of the large
majority of the non-teaching workforce, together with the use of
other nationally defined rates where relevant. There have been no
increases in salary on the national pay spine since 2009.

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 225 5



o Chief Officer Job Evaluation

For Chief Officers, the Council uses the Hay Scheme for job
evaluation purposes. The Council undertook reviews of all Chief
Officers roles and associated pay arrangements in 2007 and 2008.

All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally
or locally negotiated rates, having been determined from time to
time in accordance with collective bargaining machinery and/or as
determined by Council Policy.

o Honoraria

There may be occasions when an employee is asked to carry out
additional duties to those of their substantive post for a period of
time. In such circumstances an additional payment may be made in
line with the Council’s Honoraria Policy.

5. Responsibility for Decisions on Remuneration

Where there are significant changes to remuneration arrangements which are
locally set, such proposed changes will be agreed by full County Council.

6. Remuneration of Chief Officers

For the purposes of this statement, senior management means ‘Chief
Officers’ as defined within S43 of the Localism Act. The posts falling within
the statutory definition are set out below, with details of their basic salary as at
1st April 2012.

The pay and grading structures for Chief Officers were reviewed in two
phases. The first tier (Chief Executive and Directors) was reviewed in
2007/08 and the second tier (Heads of Service) was reviewed in 2008/09.
Specialist advice was provided by the Hay Consultancy Group on the conduct
of the reviews. The Council was able to access data on comparative market
rates within the public sector to ensure that the pay and grading arrangements
were sufficiently competitive to recruit and retain capable employees, that the
differentials between grades were justifiable and that the pay and grading
structures were affordable and appropriate. These pay and grading
structures, and the associated arrangements, were approved by full County
Council prior to implementation. The salary rates for each Chief Officer post
are as follows:

(i) Chief Executive

The salary falls within a range of 1 — 4 incremental points between
£120,737 rising to a maximum of £131,233.

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 2206 6



(i) Directors

The salaries of posts designated as Director fall within a range of 1 — 3
incremental points between £89,132 rising to a maximum of £97,328.

(i)  Heads of Service

The salaries of posts designated as Head of Service fall within a
range of 1 — 7 incremental points between £63,519 risihng to a
maximum of £81,960.

The Head of Finance and Head of Legal and Democratic Services hold
additional statutory responsibilities (Section 151 Officer and Monitoring
Officer respectively) and fall within the higher range of 4 - 7 incremental
points between £71,715 rising to a maximum of £81,960. All other
Heads of Service fall within the range of 1 - 4 incremental points
between £63,519 rising to a maximum of £71,715.

Progression through the incremental scale is subject to satisfactory
performance, which is assessed on an annual basis. The level of
remuneration is not variable dependent on the achievement of defined
targets.

Additions to Remuneration for Chief Officers

The Council does not offer any bonuses or any additional performance
related pay to its Chief Officers.

In addition to basic salary, the details below define ‘additional pay’
which is chargeable to UK Income Tax and does not solely constitute
reimbursement of expenses incurred in the fulfillment of duties:

e The Returning Officer for the County Council is the Chief Executive.
Returning Officer duties are not part of the Chief Executive’s
substantive role. Fees for these duties are paid separately and are
determined by the full Council.

e Lump Sum for Essential Car User — see Appendix 1 (this may
change as a result of the implementation of a new Single Status
Agreement).

o Where membership of an approved professional body is deemed to
be essential for an employee to carry out their duties, the employee
will be reimbursed for the cost of the professional membership fees.
Reimbursement can only be for one professional body per person
and only one claim can be submitted each financial year.

Severance Payments for Chief Officers and all Employees

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 227 7



The Council’'s approach to discretionary payments on termination of
employment of Chief Officers and all employees, prior to reaching
normal retirement age, is set out within its policy statement in
accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early
Termination of Employment) (Discretionary = Compensation)
Regulations 2006 Regulation 12 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contribution) Regulations 2007.

Any other payments falling outside the provisions or the relevant
periods of contractual notice for Chief Officers shall be subject to a
formal decision made by a committee or panel of elected members with
delegated authority to approve such payments.

7. Recruitment of Chief Officers

The Council’'s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief
Officers is set out within Article 15, 15.01 sub section (b) of the Constitution.
When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of
equality in accordance with our Diversity and Equality Policy and Recruitment
procedures. Determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly
appointed Chief Officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and
relevant policies in place at the time of recruitment.

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant
grade, although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best
candidate.

Where the Council remains unable to recruit Chief Officers under a contract of
service, or there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant
substantive Chief Officer post, the Council will, where necessary, consider
engaging individuals under ‘Contracts for Service’. These will be sourced
through a competitive procurement process. The Council does not currently
have any Chief Officers engaged under such arrangements.

8. Publication of Pay Policy Statement

Upon approval by the full Council, this statement will published on the
Council's Website at www.flintshire.gov.uk and the Council’s Internal Infonet
site. In addition, for senior employees' where the full time equivalent salary is
at least £60,000, the Council’'s Annual Statement of Accounts sets out the
amount of:

pensionable pay;

any expense allowance;

total remuneration excluding pension contributions;
employer’s pension contributions;

' For the purpose of the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts Senior Employees are
defined as the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Statutory Chief Officers (Head of
Finance and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services).

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 228 8



¢ total remuneration including pension contributions.

9. Remuneration of the Lowest Paid Employees

The lowest paid persons employed under a contract of employment with the
Council are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in
accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use within the
Council’'s grading structure. As at 1% April 2013, this is £12,145 per annum.
The Council employs Apprentices who are not included within the definition of
‘lowest paid employees’ as they are employed under a separate
‘apprenticeship’ / learning fixed term contract and paid at the current national
minimum wage.

10. Pay Relativities within the Council

This Pay Policy Statement includes the ratio (multiple) of pay between the
Council’s top earner, who is the Chief Executive, and the median earner. The
multiple between the median full time equivalent earnings and the Chief
Executive is 1:6.58.

For this calculation pay includes all taxable earnings for the given year
including base salary, variable pay, bonuses, allowances, and the cash value
of any benefits in kind.

This multiple will be monitored each year within the Pay Policy Statement

As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay

markets, both within and outside the sector, the Council will use available
benchmark information as appropriate.

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013 Page 229 9



Chief Executive Pay Scale

Salary Scales

Appendix 1

Scale SCP Salary 01/04/2007 and continuing
CEO Point 01 1 £120,737.00
CEO Point 02 2 £124,234.00
CEO Point 03 3 £127,734.00
CEO Point 04 4 £131,233.00

Chief Officer Pay Scale

Scale SCP Salary 01/04/2008 and continuing
Director Grade 1 1 £89,132.00
Director Grade 2 2 £93,742.00
Director Grade 3 3 £97,328.00

Second Tier Officer Pay Scale (Heads of Service)

Scale SCP Salary 01/11/2008 and continuing
Point 01 1 £63,519.00
Point 02 2 £66,593.00
Point 03 3 £69,154.00
Point 04 4 £71,715.00
Point 05 5 £76,325.00
Point 06 6 £79,399.00
Point 07 7 £81,960.00

Pay Policy Statement - March 2013 Page 230

10



Flintshire County Council Pay Scale (Green Book)

Scale SCP Salary 01/04/2009 and continuing
Scale 1 4 £12,145.00
Scale 1 5 £12,312.00
Scale 1 6 £12,489.00
Scale 1 8 £13,189.00
Scale 1 10 £13,874.00
Scale 1/Scale 2 1" £14,733.00
Scale 2 12 £15,039.00
Scale 2/Scale 2a 13 £15,444.00
Scale 2a/S3 14 £15,725.00
Scale 2a/Scale 3 15 £16,054.00
Scale 3 16 £16,440.00
Scale 3 17 £16,830.00
Scale 4 18 £17,161.00
Scale 4 19 £17,802.00
Scale 4 20 £18,453.00
Scale 4 21 £19,126.00
Scale 5 22 £19,621.00
Scale 5 23 £20,198.00
Scale 5 24 £20,858.00
Scale 5 25 £21,519.00
Scale 6 26 £22,221.00
Scale 6 27 £22,958.00
Scale 6 28 £23,708.00
Senior Officer 1 29 £24,646.00
Senior Officer 1 30 £25,472.00
Senior Officer 1 31 £26,276.00
Senior Officer 2 32 £27,052.00
Senior Officer 2 33 £27,849.00
Senior Officer 2/Management 1 34 £28,636.00
Management 1 35 £29,236.00
Management 1/Management 2 36 £30,011.00
Management 1/Management 2 37 £30,851.00
Management 2 38 £31,754.00
Management 2/Management 3 39 £32,800.00
Management 3 40 £33,661.00
Management 3 41 £34,549.00
Management 3/Management 4 42 £35,430.00
Management 4 43 £36,313.00
Management 4 44 £37,206.00
Management 4/Management 5 45 £38,042.00
Management 5 46 £38,961.00
Management 5 47 £39,855.00
Management 5/Management 6 48 £40,741.00
Management 6 49 £41,616.00
Management 6 50 £42,519.00
Management 6 51 £43,414.00
Senior Management 1 52 £44,697.00
Senior Management 1 53 £45,989.00
Senior Management 1 54 £47,275.00

Pay Policy Statement - March 2013 Page 231




Senior Management 1 55 £48,564.00
Senior Management 2 56 £49,859.00
Senior Management 2 57 £51,150.00
Senior Management 2 58 £52,437.00
Senior Management 2 59 £53,733.00
Senior Management 3 60 £55,012.00
Senior Management 3 61 £56,306.00
Senior Management 3 62 £57,602.00
Senior Management 3 63 £58,884.00

Craft & Associated Employees (excludes apprentice grades)

Scale Salary 01/04/2009 and continuing
Band 1 - Electrician £21,418.12
Band 1 - Joiners & Builders £19,191.48
Band 1 - Labourer £17,495.00
Band 1 - Plumber £20,357.82
Band 2 - Diag/Electrician £23,326.67
Band 2 - Joiners & Builders £21,206.06
Band 2 - Labourer £19,615.61
Band 2 - Plumber £22,266.37
Band 2 - Plumber (Gas Qual) £23,326.67
Band 3 - Diag/Electrician £24,917.12
Band 3 - Joiners & Builders £22 584.46
Band 3 - Plumber £23,856.82
Band 3 - Plumber (Gas Qual) £24,917.12

Youth & Community Officers

(72}
o

Scale

Salary 01/09/2009 and continuing

C
Y&C Officers Point 01 1 £33,555.00
Y&C Officers Point 02 2 £34,653.00
Y&C Officers Point 03 3 £35,751.00
Y&C Officers Point 04 4 £36,871.00
Y&C Officers Point 05 5 £38,009.00
Y&C Officers Point 06 6 £39,120.00
Y&C Officers Point 07 7 £40,256.00
Y&C Officers Point 08 8 £41,547.00
Y&C Officers Point 09 9 £42 258.00
Y&C Officers Point 10 10 £43,357.00
Y&C Officers Point 11 11 £44 450.00
Y&C Officers Point 12 12 £45 546.00
Y&C Officers Point 13 13 £46,633.00
Y&C Officers Point 14 14 £47,731.00
Y&C Officers Point 15 15 £48,831.00
Y&C Officers Point 16 16 £49,933.00
Y&C Officers Point 17 17 £51,042.00

Pay Policy Statement - March 2013 Page 232

12



Youth Workers

Scale SCP Salary 01/09/2009 and continuing
Point 01 1 £14,143.00
Point 02 2 £14,733.00
Point 03 3 £15,324.00
Point 04 4 £15,917.00
Point 05 S £16,509.00
Point 06 6 £17,100.00
Point 07 7 £17,697.00
Point 08 8 £18,291.00
Point 09 9 £19,047.00
Point 10 10 £19,636.00
Point 11 11 £20,591.00
Point 12 12 £21,525.00
Point 13 13 £22,489.00
Point 14 14 £23,485.00
Point 15 15 £24,166.00
Point 16 16 £24,875.00
Point 17 17 £25,574.00
Point 18 18 £26,279.00
Point 19 19 £26,975.00
Point 20 20 £27,673.00
Point 21 21 £28,461.00
Point 22 22 £29,352.00
Point 23 23 £30,219.00
Point 24 24 £31,091.00
Point 25 25 £31,968.00
Point 26 26 £32,847.00
Point 27 27 £33,726.00
Point 28 28 £34,613.00
Point 29 29 £35,496.00
Point 30 30 £36,377.00

Essential Car User Allowance from 1 April 2010

Essential Users

Lump sum per annum

Pay Policy Statement — March 2013

451 - 999cc

£846

1000 - 1199cc

Page 233

£963

1200 - 1450cc

£1,239

13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234



	Agenda
	4 Council Minutes
	9 Council Fund Revenue Budget 2013/14
	Enc. 1 for Council Fund Revenue Budget 2013/14

	10 Council Tax Setting for 2013-14
	Enc. 1 for Council Tax Setting for 2013-14
	Enc. 2 for Council Tax Setting for 2013-14

	11 Council Fund Capital Programme 2013/14 - 2022/23
	Enc. 1 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2013/14 - 2022/23

	12 Treasury Management Policy & Strategy Statement 2013/14
	Enc. 1 for General Template (all other Committees) for Treasury Management Policy & Strategy Statement 2013/14
	Enc. 2 for General Template (all other Committees) for Treasury Management Policy & Strategy Statement 2013/14

	13 Prudential Indicators 2013/14 - 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Prudential Indicators 2013/14 - 2015/16

	14 Minimum Revenue Provision 2013/14
	Enc. 1 for Minimum Revenue Provision 2013/14

	15 PAY POLICY STATEMENT
	Enc. 1 for PAY POLICY STATEMENT


